PARKSON 1%
Retail Group Limited

BREERRAHE

Stock Code AR L% : 3368




CORPORATE PROFILE
REEIT

Parkson Retail Group Limited (the "Company”) is a leading
nationwide lifestyle retail operator in the People's Republic of
China ("the PRC"). The Parkson brand was introduced to the Beijing
market in the early 1990's and has now operated and managed a
diversified collection of retail formats, including department stores,
shopping malls, city outlets, "Parkson Beauty" concept stores and
supermarkets. As at 31 December 2024, through the Company's
subsidiaries and associates (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
"Group"), the Group operated and managed 43 stores and 2 Parkson
Newcore City Malls in 27 cities in PRC and Laos.

Localisation and consistent market positioning are the key strategies
for the continuous growth and success of Parkson. We are tailoring
our merchandise assortments, brand mix and floor space allocation
on a store-by-store basis to better serve our targeted middle to
middle-upper end consumers in every city that we operate. The
Group offers a wide range of internationally renowned brands of
fashion and lifestyle related merchandises focusing on four main
categories of merchandise namely, Fashion & Apparel, Cosmetics
& Accessories, Household & Electrical, and Groceries & Perishables,
targeting the young and contemporary market.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEM

AS OF THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road
Changning District
Shanghai 200051

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1010, 10th Floor
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie, FCG, HKFCG(PE)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

BEAXABRETAH

BEEFg

BITESE
FEBEER (T/E)
3 T 3

IFRITES:
EEHEMAREEL

BIIERITES :
EEHPDRE
E#8%Y

SHILLE

=X it S B

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman lIslands

MM ERRTEESEME,
[

8 ™5200051

REE

£ 1B & 55557
EEERESHE

EBFTESEMEL
EBET

& FT3E3955
ERBKAE

10121010F

NEIME
= SARRFCG, HKFCG(PE)

EERE
R EEER
RAM

BEZEEY
=BG (TE)
E#8%
EEHEAREEL

2B SH



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Yau Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman)
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road,
Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN THE PRC

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
China Zheshang Bank

Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN HONG KONG

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong ) Limited

Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch

AUDITOR

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE

www.parksongroup.com.cn
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The Board would like to present the Group's annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2024. The overall performance for year 2024 was
underwhelming as a result of the slower-than-expected economic recovery
that led to consumers being more cautious in their spending.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

The global economy in 2024 carried both the hope of recovery and faced
numerous challenges of uncertainties. In the post-pandemic era, while the
global economy gradually rebounds, the path to recovery is not smooth.
Geopolitical tensions, escalating international trade frictions, and the
vulnerability of global supply chains have contributed to an uncertain
global economic environment.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In this global economic context, the economy of the People's Republic of
China (the "PRC") has demonstrated strong resilience and vitality. Despite
facing complex domestic and global challenges, China's economy grew at a
steady pace in 2024, supported by robust measures and targeted reforms.
However, the pace of economic recovery has been slower than expected,
with the market slowdown becoming a new normal during the year. This
highlights the need for continued vigilance and strategic planning to adapt
to these evolving conditions.

During the year under review, the Chinese market faced a notable lack of
consumer confidence, primarily due to the slower-than-expected economic
recovery. Additionally, the market also experienced an unprecedented
evolution, marking the year as one of its most challenging periods in
recent years. These challenges include consumption segmentation, where
consumer groups became increasingly diverse and distinct; consumer
stratification, reflecting the varying levels of income and purchasing power
among consumers; changes in consumption pattern driven by factors
such as the pandemic; and heightened industry competition as businesses
compete for market share in a more fragmented consumer landscape.

According to the latest data released by the National Bureau of Statistics of
China, the PRC's GDP reached RMB134.91 trillion in 2024, representing an
increase of 5.0% from 2023. In addition, the total retail sales of consumer
goods in PRC in 2024 increased by 3.5% year-on-year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group recorded gross sales proceeds of
RMB8,696.6 million (including value-added tax), representing a decrease
of 13.8% compared to the previous year. This decline was mainly due
to slower-than-expected economic recovery that led to a consumption
downgrade, making consumers more cautious in their spending. Same-
Store-Sales ("SSS") decreased by 16.1% as compared to the year before
and the overall gross profit margin of the Group was 13.3% in 2024.
The operating profit of the Group was RMB244.9 million as compared to
RMB505.5 million the previous year, representing a decrease of RMB260.6
million.

During the year, the Group renewed the tenancy agreements for Guiyang
store, Shenyang store, Harbin store, Shanghai Huaihai store and Nanning
store. Having operated and managed these stores for over 20 years,
the Group has established a strong reputation and market recognition,
laying a solid foundation for its business. The Group has also opened two
supermarkets, namely Mianyang Guanhua Supermarket and Kunming
Nanya Supermarket, to better serve our customers.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEE

As of 31 December 2024, the Group and its associates operated and
managed 43 Parkson stores, including department stores, shopping malls,
city outlets, the "Parkson Beauty" concept store and supermarkets, as well
as 2 Parkson Newcore City Malls, across 27 cities in PRC and Laos.

FOCUSING ON CORE BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS INNOVATION

In response to the increasingly diverse demands of consumer in China,
who are placing higher emphasis on quality, brand recognition, and service,
the Group has adhered to its original intention of focusing on its core
business and implemented a series of operational improvement plans.
These initiatives are guided by the strategic approach of "pursue progress
in stability; discard the old to implement the new", ensuring that the Group
remains agile and competitive in a rapidly changing market.

While enhancing our core business operations, the Group has developed
customised optimisation and upgrading plans for each store, taking into
account their unique positioning and competitive market situation. These
plans are aimed at improving service quality and meeting the evolving
expectations of consumers, who are increasingly focused on cost-
effectiveness and emotional consumption. The Group has categorised
existing stores into three types, allowing for more targeted and effective
strategies.

For stores with traditional retail strengths, the Group will concentrate on
optimising products categories and curating a selection of brands that
resonate with customers, allowing the retail format to take a leading
role. For stores located in central business districts, the Group will fully
tap into the commercial potential of downtown areas, matching suitable
formats and brands to create high-end flagship stores that serve as urban
landmarks. Additionally, for existing shopping centre, the Group will also
actively explore and improve shopping centre models that integrate the
retail and service formats. By developing enhancement and upgrading
plans, the Group will promote the refinement of a comprehensive
commercial centre model.

During the year, Harbin store successfully created a themed street
district called "Erbin Story" This innovative concept was highly praised
by customers as a “uniquely Parkson" and quickly became a landmark
attraction in the city, significantly boosting the store's foot traffic.
Similarly, Hefei store also emerged as a gathering spot for the otaku
community, drawing young people from nearby regions. These examples
exemplify the Group's strategic adjustments and upgrades throughout the
year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Group will continue to revamp and remodel stores as part of its
continuous efforts to enhance the stores' image. At the same time, the
Group will adjust the brand mix and introduce new shopping experiences
to keep pace with evolving market trends. By providing a comfortable
shopping environment and high-quality products, the Group aims to better
serve our customers to ensure a satisfying retail experience.

STRATEGIC BUSINESS EXPANSION

The Group is also actively seeking innovative business development models
with distinctive features while further expanding its business scope.
During the year, the Group opened two Parkson supermarkets, namely the
Mianyang Guanhua Supermarket and Kunming Nanya Supermarket. These
openings reflect the Group's strategic initiatives of "Multiple Stores in a
City" and "Model Innovation”, which are designed to adapt to evolving
consumption patterns.

The Mianyang Guanhua Supermarket, marking the fourth store in
Mianyang City, Sichuan Province, was opened in January 2024. Meanwhile,
the Kunming Nanya Supermarket, the second store in Kunming
City, Yunnan Province, welcomed shoppers in November 2024. Both
supermarkets offer complementary business formats and features as an
experiential supermarket, meeting the wellness and sophisticated needs of
the local residents.

The Group also plans to open two new stores in Datong City and Mianyang
City in 2025. The business formats for these new stores include outlets
and shopping mall. This aligns with the Group's differentiated market
positioning strategy of "Multiple Stores in a City", enabling each store to
serve a broader range of customers with diverse consumption needs and
habits. In the long run, this strategic expansion will help the Group gain a
larger market share and strengthen its competitive position.

EERS

K%lhﬁniﬁfLﬁm%ﬁL_ﬁﬁ
RNETRAPIE KRB — o [B) B » AN B
B EEmEES %I)\%ﬁﬁ’\]ﬂ%%iﬁ%%ﬁ’
MR EHHZBERND X B EHFMRT K
PNER BRTARENZTERR ®
EERHTBENBYRERSEENE

=]
an °

R MERRER R

FEFRTEE-—TRAREFLENFEE IR
BB REEFENAITEEEREN
REAR FEBRAKRTMAXERET B
MEERTTEDNERmMmEBM - BLEN
ERNRARRRT AEENT—H S5 UK
MENAT) R R SEBRAEHE
fERYHBERE

WMEBRTETNR _T_NE-—RAR% &
P91 4R 85 T B 55 PO R P E o B It [R) B
%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁig_ﬂﬁ+ AR%
AEEEERMINE RIS -BEMK
BhESBEAERERRNERIIBT W
BT EMEREERKRBENTRK-

FEETHEE T HEN KB TR
B T 58 5% W SR G © 15 LM E R KRR B4R
TRRRFRBYP L -ENEFER—
TZIEINHIEERCEMBR  EX/E6E

REEZAEHERTRKAEENRER It
REE BREBRERFTENNEAEEE
BEANTHMEEL RS HHEF AL

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT

7



8

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESEE

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PLANS

Looking ahead, with two new stores in the pipeline, the Group is well-
positioned to seize growth opportunities in markets that we have
established presence. We are committed to becoming an outstanding
commercial space operator, with a mission to deliver exceptional shopping
and lifestyle experiences to our customers. These new stores will enable us
to offer our customers a wider range of high-quality products and services.

Our strategy, grounded on the principle of "pursue progress in stability;
discard the old to implement the new", will guide the Group in navigating
the complexities of China's retail landscape. By balancing stability with
innovation, dismantling outdated practices, and strategically embracing
change, we will position ourselves to not only survive but thrive in the
coming years. This approach will enable us to stay at the forefront of
the industry, meet the evolving needs of our customers, and continue
delivering long-term value to our shareholders.

| would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to our
employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners for
their unwavering support throughout the year. We look forward to working
with them closely in the years to come.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

AT 2

Operating Results (RMB'000)

Gross sales proceeds'

Total operating revenues

Profit/(Loss) from operations

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Profit/(Loss) attributable to
owners of the Company

Basic earnings|(loss) per share
(RMB)?

Interim dividends per share (RMB)

Final dividends per share (RMB)

Full year dividends per share (RMB)

e ARETT)
HEPERIERETE
et
RERE/ (58
EENE/ (B8
ZN/NITIE=PN
RiaRE,/ (55
BREARF/ (BH)
(A\R#T)? B
SHEERE (AR
BRADRE (\RKT)
BR2ERE (NARETD)

10,026,893
4,428,349
348,959
(236,920)

(250,114)

(0.095)

10,667,264
4,738,502
323,550
(170,630)

(175,979)

(0.067)

2022 2024
—Z°C = —E_EF
(restated)
(i= 871
8,262,172 9,080,998 7,844,580
3,748,667 4,177,490 3,726,652
(10,993) 505,481 244,870
(385,423) 70,502 (174,525)
(383,599) 66,413 (174,759)
(0.146) 0.025 (0.066)
- 0.01 0.02
- 0.01 0.02

(restated)
(=7

Summary of consolidated

statement of financial position ()\E%?Tﬁ)
(RMB000) o

Non-current assets FRBEE 11,112,119 9,436,636 8,539,727 8,041,711 8,500,259

Current assets mEEE 3,317,112 2,881,452 3,012,123 3,035,072 2,881,762

Total assets mEE 14,429,231 12,318,088 11,551,850 11,076,783 11,382,021

Current liabilities mENAE 3957,162 4,628,155 2,816,118 2,841,805 2,538,884

Non-current liabilities FRBaE 6,271,059 3,633,259 5,417,453 4917,831 5,756,043

Total liabilities BEBE 10,228,221 8,261,414 8,233,571 7,759,636 8,294,927

Net assets BERE 4,201,010 4,056,674 3,318,279 3,317,147 3,087,094

Represented by: MTABIERT

Equity attributable to owners of AABMB AEGER

the Company N 4,122,700 3,983,874 3,249,384 3,244,942 3,015,374

Non-controlling interests RS 78310 72,800 68,895 72,205 71,720

Total equity Bren 4,201,010 4,056,674 3,318,279 3,317,147 3,087,094

NOTES: [

1. GSP (excluded value-added tax) represent the sum of sales proceeds from 1. HEFISTIRAREE (N2 IBER) 155K 8
direct sales and concessionaire sales, income from providing consultancy ERBEE RS EREERNHEREN
and management services, rental income, credit service income and other B R R EERS WA B UL
operating revenues. %\ EERBUA KRB M E W m AR

D o

2. The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2. (E_TNE+_A=+—HILEFE
2024 is based on the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Eﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁaﬂ%%@ RABERE
Company for the year of approximately RMB174,759,000 and the weighted RERFEARGOBEEFEOARE
average number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year. 174,759,00077 Kz £ A B 2547 N #E 19 81

H2,634,532,00008 51 & ©
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December [ —— —_A=+—H JJ:E\YE
2023 is based on the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders E’]&Hx%ﬂiﬁﬁﬂ *ETJ’%E’W KA ERE
of the Company for the year of approximately RMB66,413,000 and the BEDFE ARMGHERENARE
weighted average number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year. 66,413,0007C 2 F A B T MNETHEE
2,634,532,0000% 51 & ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE RO

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Total GSP and operating revenues

Total GSP (inclusive of value-added tax) decreased by 13.8% to RMB8,696.6
million in 2024. The decrease in GSP was a result of slower-than-expected
economic recovery that prompted consumption downgrade and led to
consumers more cautious in their spending. SSS decreased by 16.19% in
2024.

TOTAL MERCHANDISE SALES

A 5 El B8
HEFRSRIEEEREE N
TETNEECHEEMSHIESEE (518
B17) TF£13.80FE AR 1E8,696.6 5 & 7T © 14
EFMERIBARZERN N ETH BB E BT
RFEER  EBCHERg FEHEETH
EREAEE  _ENFEREHE TE
16.10% ©

7 an $H E 4R ER

2024 2023 Year-on-

—E_ME S year change

RMB'000 9% of total RMB'000 % of total (%)

{L4EEERY 1L48%8RY Gillasp=E)|

AR%®Tx B2t AEETFT B2k (9%0)

Concessionaire sales B EIEHE 4,756,267 72.6% 5,661,107 72.7% (16.0%)
Direct sales HiBHE 1,798,059 27.4% 2,130,142 27.3% (15.6%)
6,554,326 100.0% 7,791,249 100.0% (15.9%)

Total merchandise sales (net of value-added tax) decreased by RMB1,236.9
million or 15.9% to RMB6,554.3 million in 2024. Concessionaire sales
which constituted 72.6% of the Group's total merchandise sales in 2024
decreased by 16.0% as compared to 2023 while direct sales decreased by
15.6% as compared to 2023. The total merchandise sales in 2024 decreased
across both concessionaire sales and direct sales as compared to 2023
as a result of slower-than-expected economic recovery that prompted
consumption downgrade and led to consumers more cautious in their
spending.

Merchandise gross margin

The Group's merchandise gross margin (the combination of concessionaire
commission rate and direct sales margin) decreased from 13.5% in 2023 to
13.3% in 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Total operating revenues

Total operating revenues of the Group decreased by RMB450.8 million
or 10.8% to RMB3,726.7 million in 2024. The decrease in total operating
revenues was mainly due to the decrease in sale of goods from direct sales
and commissions from concessionaire sales.

Revenue from contracts with customers consists of sales of goods from
direct sales, commissions from concessionaire sales and consultancy and
management service fees and constituted 65.6% of the total operating
revenues in 2024. Revenue from contracts with customers decreased by
RMB456.9 million or 15.7% compared to 2023.

Operating expenses
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories

Purchases of goods and changes in inventories represent the cost of
sales for direct sales, which decreased by RMB273.6 million or 14.9%
from RMB1,835.7 million in 2023 to RMB1,562.1 million in 2024. The
decrease was mainly due to decrease in direct sales and thus decrease in
procurement of goods from third party vendors.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by RMB6.4 million or 1.3% to RMB479.4 million in
2024 from RMB485.8 million in 2023, mainly due to cost controlling during
2024. On a same store basis, staff costs decreased by 2.2%.

Staff costs as a percentage of GSP was 6.1% in 2024, as compared to 5.4%
in 2023.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation decreased by 10.7% from RMB558.5
million in 2023 to RMB498.5 million in 2024. The decrease was primarily
due to decrease in depreciation expense for the right-of-use assets of
the properties as a result of changed in rental and payment term for
certain stores. In 2024, depreciation expense on the right-of-use assets
of RMB299.5 million was recognised as compared to RMB346.1 million in
2023. On a same store basis, depreciation and amortisation decreased by
11.2%.

Depreciation and amortisation as a percentage of GSP was 6.4% in 2024,
as compared to 6.2% in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT R

Rental expenses

Rental expenses decreased by RMB9.7 million to RMB80.4 million in
2024 from RMB90.1 million in 2023. The decreased in rental expenses
was mainly due to decrease in variable rent as a result of decline in the
performance of certain stores. On a same store basis, rental expenses
decreased by 12.0%.

Rental expenses as a percentage of GSP was 1.0% in 2024 and 2023.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses, which consist primarily of (a) utilities cost; (b)
marketing, promotional and selling expenses; (c) property management
expenses; (d) general administrative expenses; and (e) city development and
educational surcharge, increased by 22.7% to RMB861.5 million in 2024
from RMB701.9 million in 2023. The increased in other operating expenses
mainly due to assets impairment of RMB230.0 million was provided in
2024 as compared to RMB67.0 million provided in 2023. On a same store
basis, other operating expenses increased by 13.0%.

Other operating expenses as a percentage of GSP was 11.0% in 2024, as
compared to 7.7% in 2023.

Profit from operations

The Group recorded profit from operations of RMB244.9 million for 2024
as compared to RMB505.5 million in 2023.

Profit from operations as a percentage of GSP was 3.1% in 2024, as
compared to 5.6% in 2023.

Finance income/costs

The Group incurred net finance costs of RMB407.3 million in 2024 which
represented a decrease of RMB35.5 million or 8.0% compared to RMB442.8
million in 2023. For interest expense on lease liabilities, RMB269.9 million
was recognised in finance cost in 2024 as compared to RMB297.6 million
in 2023. For interest income on the net investments in sublease, RMB16.4
million was recognised in finance income in 2024 as compared to RMB22.7
million in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of profit of a joint venture

This is the share of profit from Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co.,
Ltd., a joint venture of the Group. The share of profit was RMB11.1 million
in 2023 and none for 2024. The joint venture was deregistered in August
2023.

Share of profit of associates

The share of profit from associates was RMB14.5 million in 2024 and
RMB12.8 million in 2023.

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Loss before tax was RMB147.9 million in 2024 as compared to profit before
tax was RMB86.6 million in 2023. The loss before tax in 2024 was primarily
due to decline in revenue and the increase in assets impairment provided in
light of the latest market environment.

Loss before tax as a percentage of GSP was (1.9%) in 2024 and profit
before tax as a percentage of GSP was 1.0% in 2023.

Income tax expense

The Group's income tax expense is RMB26.6 million in 2024 as compared to
RMB16.1 million in 2023.

(Loss)/Profit for the year

The Group's recorded loss of RMB174.5 million in 2024 as compared to
profit of RMB70.5 million in 2023.

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Loss attributable to the owners of the Company was RMB174.8 million in
2024 as compared to profit attributable to the owners of the Company was
RMB66.4 million in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BT R

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMB1,466.5 million (2023: RMB1,583.4 million), time deposits of RMB35.4
million (2023: RMB43.8 million), financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of RMB66.7 million (2023: RMB57.5 million) and restricted
cash of RMB64.0 million (2023: RMB100.2 million).

The Group's cash and bank balances are mainly denominated in Renminbi
with the remaining denominated in United States dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and others.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 24.7% (2023: 22.5%) as at
31 December 2024.

Current assets and net assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2024 was RMB2,881.8
million. Net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2024 was RMB3,087.1
million.

Information on the financial products

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consisted of
non-principal-preservation type wealth management products managed by
licensed financial institutions in the PRC. As at 31 December 2024, the fair
value of these products was RMB66.7 million.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has pledge trade receivables of
RMB412.3 million, pledged buildings, investment properties and leasehold
land with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,326.2 million,
RMB523.7 million and RMB305.6 million respectively to secure general
bank loans. The Group has pledged unrealised receivables of RMB103.7
million which will be due within 48 months to secure the general
interest-bearing bank loans. In addition, the Group has pledged deposits
of RMB27.2 million held in designated bank accounts for performance
guarantee.

Other than the aforesaid, no other assets are pledged to any bank or lender.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group has one major operating segment,
which is "Retail”. The Group operates department stores, shopping mall,
outlets and supermarkets mainly in the PRC. Revenues arising from
this segment include sales of goods in direct sales, commissions from
concessionaire sales, consultancy and management service fees and rental
income from tenants. Besides, the Group provides consumer financing
business which is carried out by Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. ("Parkson Credit")
in Malaysia.

The revenue and results of retail and financial business are disclosure in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue from external customers are mostly generated in the PRC and
almost all significant operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Since revenue from external customers and non-current assets excluding
financial instruments and deferred tax assets of overseas companies
outside the PRC are not material to the Group's consolidated revenue
and non-current assets excluding financial instruments and deferred tax
assets, management believes there is no need to disclose geographical
information.

Employees

As at 31 December 2024, total number of employees for the Group was
3,536. The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme.

Treasury policies

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions for
funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk. Hedging
instruments including swaps and forwards have been used in the past
and would be used in the future, if necessary, to ensure that the Group's
exposure to the foreign exchange rate fluctuation and the interest rate
fluctuation is minimised.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFNEREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, aged 82, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Tan Sri Cheng is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He has more than 60 years of experience in the business
operations of the Lion Group of Companies (“Lion Group") encompassing
retail, financial services, steel, mining, property and industrial parks,
agriculture, tyre manufacturing, motor vehicle assembly, brewery and
computer industries. He oversees the operations of Lion Group and is
responsible for the formulation and monitoring of the overall corporate
strategic plans and business development of the Group.

Tan Sri Cheng was the President of The Associated Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of Malaysia ("ACCCIM") and The Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuala Lumpur and Selangor ("KLSCCCI")
from 2003 to 2012 and is now a Life Honorary President of ACCCIM and
KLSCCCI. He was also the President of Malaysia Retailers Association
("MRA") from May 2016 to May 2018, and was its Honorary President
from June 2018 to July 2020. He was again appointed the President of
MRA from July 2020 to May 2022 and in June 2022, he was appointed an
Honorary President of MRA. He was the Chairman of the Federation of
Asia-Pacific Retailers Associations from October 2017 to September 2019,
and was its Vice Chairman from September 2019 to November 2022. He is
a Trustee of ACCCIM's Socio-Economic Research Trust and the President of
Malaysia Steel Association.

Tan Sri Cheng's other directorships in public companies are as follows:
- Chairman and Managing Director of Parkson Holdings Berhad

- Chairman of Lion Posim Berhad

- Managing Director of Lion Industries Corporation Berhad
- Executive Chairman of Parkson Retail Asia Limited

- Director of Lion Asiapac Limited

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

HITES
ﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ’BZE’ﬂK@E%ﬂﬁ%%%
ITE-RAFEEERTAERAIRELE
Aif)i%ﬁ@ﬂiéﬁ B8 ° ﬁféﬁﬁfﬁ%l

A ((EMER) NEBEESTERES
/\—f-ﬁi“ B HPREZTE - SRR - 81
B oRE-MERIEEE -RE -HGIHR
SRR AR ERITEER -
REETHERNEE TESHIEME
RAEENERECERBRIM XL
& o

RFESERNR ST =FFE"2—_F
AERADREEHEG (BRAEPER
5g)) hERKETHETEERS (T2

EEEF'%EZ'Fﬁ ) NEREBBAAEBRATR
PEANERESPEETTRKARER
o 18275\—7_/\35355:?: E—N&FHR

BiAERARSERHE (BRARE
EmpEl) NER TR _ZE—NENXA
EETTFLAETELAETIE KR
TETEFELREET_ERABNRE
EEAERATTEBHITNER > &R
CE T TERBEZRTAEKRATEER
Trm NEEFF - RN _E—tE+H=E
E—HENBEEEASEFTRTHA
NEF > ER_E—NAFABEZZEC
F+—BETERIEZE - HAEKRAIRAH
EAFITHERBEHAERETENETALS
RGN R £ o

B EEERN T ARATBEHME
B

—  JParkson Holdings Berhadt&{E I & 3=
BEEREKIE

= #Lion Posim Berhad{&{F & &

— JRLion Industries Corporation Berhad#&
FEFEKE

= 2 Parkson Retail Asia LimitediE{F# 1T
B

—  ALion Asiapac Limited#&EE =



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

- A Founding Member and a Permanent Trustee of The Community
Chest, a company limited by guarantee established by the private
sector for charity purposes

Save for The Community Chest, all the above companies are public listed
companies in Malaysia whilst Parkson Retail Asia Limited and Lion Asiapac
Limited are public listed companies in Singapore.

Tan Sri Cheng is the father of Juliana Cheng San San, the Executive Director
of the Company.

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015 and in 2022, Ms. Cheng is entrusted
with additional responsibilities for audit, legal and public relations of the
Company.

Ms. Cheng started her career with the Lion Group in 1995 with stints in
Singapore and Malaysia. During her tenure from 1995 to 2004, she held
various positions in finance, human resource, administration and business
development. In 2004, Ms. Cheng was seconded to Parkson China as
Cosmetics Manager and thus, began her career in the retail industry. She
left Parkson China in May 2006 and joined Chanel (China) Co Ltd as the
National Accounts Manager for business development in the PRC. In June
2010, she re-joined Parkson China as Regional Director overseeing its
retail operations in the PRC. She is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. During her more than 25 years with Lion Group, Parkson
China and Chanel (China) Co Ltd, she has accumulated vast experience
and knowledge of the retail and branding industry which enables her to
contribute to the Group.

Ms. Cheng graduated with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce (Management)
from University of Western Sydney, Australia in 1994 and completed a
Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business School in year 2000.

Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company. From 24 May 2002 to 30 June
2014, Ms. Cheng was an alternate director to Tan Sri Cheng in LTC
Corporation Limited (formerly known as “Lion Teck Chiang Limited"), a
public listed company then listed in Singapore.
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EFNEREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung, aged 62, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 13
November 2014. Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou was a Member of Parliament and the
Deputy Minister of Higher Education Malaysia from 2008 to 2013. He holds
the Bachelor and Master of Arts from University of Malaya, while his Ph.D
was received from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University of
London.

Dato" Sri Dr. Hou served at University of Malaya from 1990 to 2008
as a lecturer and lastly as Associate Professor. During his tenure in
the university, he had been appointed and held positions as Head of
Department of East Asian Studies, and Director of Institute of China
Studies. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Furniweb Holdings Limited, a public listed company on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 20 September 2017. He has
also been appointed as an independent non-executive chairman of Wong
Engineering Corporation Berhad, a public listed company on the Kuala
Lumpur Stock Exchange on 26 March 2024.

Dato" Sri Dr. Hou was a member of the Senate in the Parliament of
Malaysia. He resigned as the Vice President of the Malaysian Chinese
Association (MCA) and Chairman of the Institute of Strategic Analysis
& Policy Research (INSAP) on 2 December 2018. Dato' Sri Dr. Hou is the
Council Member of Tunku Abdul Rahman University of Management and
Technology (TAR-UMT) and a Guest Professor at Xiamen University China.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow, aged 76, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 13 November 2014. Dato' Fu was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 29 February 2016 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dato’ Fu holds a Master
Degree in Industrial Engineering specialising in Management Science, Post
Graduate Diploma in Education and a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Physics. Dato'
Fu has 13 years of distinguished services since 1995 in the Parliament
and Malaysian Government as member of the Parliament, Parliamentary
Secretary and Deputy Minister. Before joining the Government, Dato' Fu has
worked in a few multinational companies. After retirement from politics
in 2008, Dato’ Fu was appointed as independent director cum chairman in
several listed companies.

Dato' Fu is currently the non-independent and non-executive chairman
of Tiong Nam Logistics Holding Berhad, public listed company in Bursa
Malaysia Berhad.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yau Ming Kim, Robert, aged 86, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2007, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau was the Chief Executive
or Managing Director of many major international and local apparel
companies since 1971. From 1998 to 2004, he was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Exporters’ Association, a member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Shippers' Council and the Garment Advisory
Committee of The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of Alltronics
Holdings Limited and he was an independent non-executive director of
Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited from September 2006 to August 2024,
both companies are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Yau has been censured by the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
on 28 June 2021 in connection with the disciplinary action against
Alltronics Holdings Limited (stock code: 833), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, and its 10 directors, of whom Mr. Yau is one
of the independent non-executive directors. Details as per announcement
of the Company made on 2 July 2021.

Datuk Koong Lin Loong, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 22 February 2021 and is the member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Datuk Koong is
qualified as member of ASEAN Chartered Professional Accountants (ASEAN
CPA), the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA), the Certified Practising
Accountants Australia (CPA Australia), the Malaysian Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (MICPA), the Institute of Internal Auditors Malaysia
and Kampuchea Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Auditors
(KICPAA), and fellow member of Chartered Tax Institute of Malaysia
(CTIM) and Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United
Kingdom (CIMA), associate member of Malaysian Association of Company
Secretaries.

Datuk Koong is an independent non-executive director of Parkson Retail
Asia Limited (stock code: SG2D81975377 - 09E) and Lion Asiapac Limited
(stock code:SG1BD6000002 - BAZ), these two companies are listed on the
Mainboard of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, which are
associated corporations of the Company.
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EFNEREEERE

Datuk Koong is the practising Auditor of Ministry of Finance in Malaysia,
Treasurer General of Associated Chinese Chambers of Commerce and
Industry of Malaysia (ACCCIM): Chairman of ACCCIM Small & Medium
Enterprises (SMEs) Committee. He is also a Board member of SME
Corporation Malaysia under the Ministry of Entrepreneur & Cooperatives
Development (MECD), Board member of The Credit Counselling and Debt
Management Agency (AKPK) under the Central Bank of Malaysia, Customs
Oversight Committee and Sales & services Tax Technical Committee of
Royal Malaysian Customs Department. Currently, Datuk Koong is the
Managing Partner and director of Reanda LLKG International, Chartered
Accountants. He is also the President of Southeast Asia & South Asia
Region of Reanda International Network and the Chairman of its
International Tax Panel. He is also a member of the Practice Review
Committee of MIA.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 55, was appointed as the Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015. Ms. Cheng oversees the Finance
Department, Public Relationship Division, New Business Division and the
Risk Control Center of the Group. Her other biographical details are set out
under the paragraph headed "Executive Directors" above.

Zhou lJia, aged 53, has been re-designated from the Acting Chief Executive
Officer to the Chief Executive Office of the Group ("CEQ") in July 2022. Mr.
Zhou obtained his bachelor degree in Business Administration from Yuzhou
University (Currently known as Chongging Technology and Business
University). In 1995, he joined the Merchandising Division of Chongging
Wanyou Parkson and was promoted to the Assistant General Manager of
Kunming Parkson in 2002. Mr. Zhou was promoted as the head of Kunming
Parkson in 2004, the Regional General Manager in 2010, the Group's Senior
Operating Officer in 2014 and the Group's Chief Operation Officer in 2016.

Li Bing, aged 68, has been re-designated from the Acting Chief Operating
Officer to the Chief Operating Officer of the Group in July 2022. Mr. Li
owned 15-year-working experience in large state-owned enterprises,
graduated from Chongging University with a bachelor's degree in
mechanical engineering. Mr. Li joined Parkson in 1996. In 2005, he was
promoted as the head of Nanning Parkson. Then he was promoted as
the head of Parkson in both Guangxi and Guangdong provinces in 2011
and worked as the Chief Operating Officer of the two regions in 2014.
After three years, he took charge of the regions of Guangdong, Guangxi,
Hunan and Jiangxi provinces. In 2019, he was appointed the Deputy Chief
Operating Officer of the Group as well as Senior Operating Officer of
Southeast Region.
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Yoong Kang Chee, aged 44, has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group in February 2023, leading the Finance Department
across accounting, reporting, taxation, investment, treasury, capital
management and offshore compliance. A Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) charterholder, Mr. Yoong holds a Bachelor's degree in Management
Information Systems from Tsinghua University's School of Economics
and Management. He brings over 15 years of extensive financial and
business management experience across retail, consumer, infrastructure,
environmental protection and manufacturing industries. Previously, he
served as Vice President and Treasurer of the Shanghai Singapore Business
Association in 2017, which later evolved into SingCham Shanghai.

Zhang Ji Ning, aged 51, has been appointed as the General Manager of
the Qingdao Lion Mall and the General Manager of Qingdao region since
2014. Mr. Zhang has more than 25 years of retail operation experience.
He obtained his Master of Arts in International Relations in Economy and
Trade from Nankai University. The program was a partnership between the
Flinders University from South Australia and Nankai University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's records. The Company's corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code"), which contained in Appendix C1 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules").

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has fully complied
with the CG Code (to the extent that such provisions are applicable). The
Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its businesses and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code"). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines") for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprised 6 Directors, including
2 executive Directors, 1 non-executive Director and 3 Independent non-
executive Directors. Below is the list of all Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

The Directors’ biographical information and the relationships between the
members of the Board are set out in the "Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management" section on pages 16 to 21 of this report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among the Directors and
senior management.

CORPORATE CULTURE

As a leading national lifestyle retail operator, we believe that a healthy
corporate culture and sound governance are the foundation for sustainable
development and building trust with all stakeholders. Our core values
are dedication, integrity & honesty, team spirit, customer orientation,
and mutual respect. We adhere to the principles of fairness, impartiality,
integrity and honesty, and focus on innovative services and responsible
operations as our main business strategy. Through specialised training
and daily publicity, the Company continuously strengthens its employees'
awareness of business ethics and anti-fraud, and creates a clean business
ecosystem. The Company emphasises intellectual property protection,
develops compliant marketing, and builds a responsible supply chain in
order to ultimately provide consumers with better service and high quality
products.

As of the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and considered that
the corporate culture of the Company is consistent with the mission,
values and strategies of the Group. Details of the corporate culture and
related initiatives of the Company can be found in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report" of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As of the date of this report, the Chairman of the Company is Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem and CEO of the Group is Mr. Zhou. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The CEO focuses on the Company's business development and
daily management and operations generally.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
CEO to ensure that there is a balance of power and authority. The Chairman
is primarily responsible for the orderly conduct and working of the Board
whilst the CEO is responsible for the overall operations of the Group and
the implementation of the Board's strategies and policies.

Management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Chairman and the CEQ.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors with one
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation as regards independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism
which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure a strong
independent element on the Board, which allows the Board effectively
exercises independent judgment to better safequard Shareholders'
interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or
further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions
of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board
performance, for instance, addressing individual training and development
needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the Board
will conduct annual review on its independence. The Board Independence
Evaluation Report will be presented to the Board which will collectively
discuss the results and the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

As of the date of this report, all Directors has completed the independence

evaluation in the form of a questionnaire individually. The evaluation
results were presented to the Board and considered satisfactory.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Under the Articles
of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's
Articles of Association also provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall hold office until the first
annual general meeting after appointment. The retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election.

Each of the Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a term of three years
respectively. All the Directors are subject to renewal and retirement
by rotation once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the CG Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board take decisions objectively in
the interests of the Company.

The Board directly and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board as a whole is also responsible for reviewing its composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience relevant to
the Company's business.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors have complied
with Code Provision C.1.4 to participate in continuous professional
development and receive trainings.

Record of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2024 are summarised as follows:

Directors Type of Training Note
Executive Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem A/B

Juliana Cheng San San A/B

Non-executive Directors
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung A/B

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow A/B
Yau Ming Kim, Robert A/B
Datuk Koong Lin Loong A/B
Note:

Types of Training

A. Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B. Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant
publications

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with
additional meetings to be convened as and when necessary to determine
the overall strategic directions and objectives of the Group and approve
quarterly, interim and annual results and other significant matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, four (4) board meetings were
held and the Directors' attendances are listed below:

RBEE_T_NE+_A=+—HILF
B BRTNWUREFEEH EF2HE
BRaT

Number of

Board Meetings

Held During
the Director's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2024 Attended

ATEIME

2%5&%?9

BTzEEE

Name of the Directors BERY
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) RETREER (F/E) 4 4
Juliana Cheng San San 2 1t 5 4 4
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEREMESEL 4 4
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEHEG 4 4
Yau Ming Kim, Robert F#EH 4 4
Datuk Koong Lin Loong EX=Fiiea 4 4

The Chairman had met with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of the other Directors during the year ended 31
December 2024.

Code Provision C.1.6 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend the issuer's
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors’ attendances at the
Company's general meeting are listed below:
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Meeting on 12 December Meetings

23 May 2024 2024 Attended
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Name of the Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) R EiEEHK (£/E)

Juliana Cheng San San 5 Hf 3

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEHFEMRSISEL
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEBPHEE

Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%

Datuk Koong Lin Loong 2EBAS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee. It currently comprises
four (4) members, three (3) are Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yau Ming
Kim, Robert and Datuk Koong Lin Loong, and the other member is a Non-
executive Director, namely, Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung.

The Audit Committee is required: (i) to advise the Board on the
appointment and retention of external auditor; (i) to review the external
auditor's independence and objectivity; (iii) to review quarterly, interim
and annual accounts of the Group; (iv) to access the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control; and (v) to review the internal audit
function and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year and the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, In-House Counsel, the Compliance
Officer and a representative of the external auditors of the Company shall
normally be invited to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary or her
nominee shall be the secretary of the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee held four
(4) meetings and the attendances are listed below:

Name of the Audit Committee Member

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EEHPDHE
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

Datuk Koong Lin Loong ZEASH
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee had met
with the executive Directors and management of the Company to review
the quarterly, interim and annual results, the interim report and annual
report and other financial, internal control, corporate governance and risk
management matters of the Group and made recommendations to the
Board. The Audit Committee had met with the external auditor without the
presence of management and discussed about the interim financial report,
its annual audit of the consolidated financial statements and key audit
issues.

The Group's results for the year 2024 was reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company's
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three (3) members, two (2)
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming
Kim, Robert (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Datuk Koong
Lin Loong, and the other member is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors; develop the Group's policy on remuneration for its
Directors (including Executive Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts
and retains the Directors needed to manage the Company and the Group
effectively and review and approve matters relating to share scheme under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules (if any). Directors do not participate in
decisions regarding their own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year and at
such other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting and
the attendances are listed below:

Name of the Remuneration Committee Member FrINEEGREYS
Yau Ming Kim, Robert 8%

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem T EEER

Datuk Koong Lin Loong =EEALSHE

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy
and the remuneration packages of the individual Directors and senior
management during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Particulars of the Directors' remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statement.
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Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration paid
to the members of the senior management (excluding Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed "Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management" by band during the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

Nil to 1,000,000 Z %1,000,000

#r & 88E (B)

TEERRS

RIBEEEATRSFRMESCEHE .56 &
E_E_NE+_A=+—HIEEEXH
TEREEBAE (FEIEES) (HEE
HENEEREREERBREFE —&) iR
BEBOMFEEIINOT :

Number of
person(s)

A™

1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001 22,000,000 2

2,000,001 to 3,000,000 2,000,001 3,000,000 1

3,000,001 to 4,000,000 3,000,0012 4,000,000 1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE e EEe

The Nomination Committee consists of three (3) members, one (1) of whom
is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and the other two (2) members are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert and Dato’ Fu Ah
Kiow.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to
the Board on appointment of the directors, review the Board Diversity
Policy and the Director Nomination Policy and assess the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and make
recommendation to the Board.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of directors of the
Company with a view to ensure that the Company's board of directors has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the Company and to ensure the Company's board of directors' continuity
and appropriate leadership at the board level.
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The nomination process set out in the Director Nomination Policy is as
follows:

Upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information of the candidate, the Nomination Committee will
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out in the Director
Nomination Policy to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee will rank them by order of preference based on
the needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate before
recommending them to the Board.

When considering the re-election of Director at general meeting, the
Nomination Committee will review and determine the (i) whether the
retiring director continue to meet the criteria as set out in the Director
Nomination Policy: and (ii) the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of participation and
performance on the Board.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate as
director at the general meeting, the relevant information of the candidate
will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Board and the Nomination Committee regularly examine the Board's
size and, with a view to determine the impact of the number upon
effectiveness, decide on an appropriate size of the Board, taking into
account the scope and nature of the Group's operations.

The Board comprises a balanced and well diversified members of different
age, cultural background and ethnicity. They provide the Board with the
necessary experience and expertise to direct and lead the Group.

A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, region and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account diversity.
The Nomination Committee will report annually (if it is necessary) in the
corporate governance report, on the Board's composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the Board has the appropriate

mix of expertise to lead and govern the Group effectively and provide a
balance of views.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting and the
attendances are listed below:

Name of the Nomination Committee Member

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem AT EEER
Yau Ming Kim, Robert B8
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow =ZEHEE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors, considered the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the annual
general meeting, and considered and recommended to the Board on the
appointment of Independent Non-executive Director.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Company has adopted Board Diversity Policy which sets out, among
others, a number of aspects of board diversity in reviewing and assessing
the board composition and nomination of directors, as applicable. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board,
and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
reviews regularly the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy and to ensure that the
Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee is committed
to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.
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The Nomination Committee and the Board are of the view that the current
composition of the Board has achieved the objectives set in the Board
Diversity Policy.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group and
especially the Board will always include at least one female Directors in its
composition. The Board currently has one female member, and the female
and male employee gender ratio as at 31 December 2024 is 58.7:41.3. The
Group when hiring employees considers a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
qualification, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service, and the Group will make sure achieving gender diversity
across the workforce.

The Board is satisfied that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its
workforce.

Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant data can be
found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 70 to
78 of this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 20 November 2018 which
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends
to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall take into account the following factors: (a) the Articles
of Association of the Company; (b) the applicable restrictions and
requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands; (c) any banking or
other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time to
time; (d) the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and
(e) any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and shall be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Dividend Policy will continue
to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any
given period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee was established by the Board for performing the
functions set out in the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external auditor, Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited, in respect of the year ended 31 December
2024 is set out below:
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Audit services
Non-audit services
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Total 485t

3,520

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that gives a true and
fair view on a going concern basis and the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties.

The statement of the auditor on their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the Auditor's
Report on pages 108 to 115 of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually.
The systems have been designed for: (i) safequarding assets against
unauthorised user or disposition; (i) ensuring the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication; and (iii) ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company's risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with the following principles, features and processes:

- Identity significant risks in the Group's operation environment;

- Assess and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's
business and the likelihood of their occurrence;

- Develop necessary measures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks;

- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures and report
to the Audit Committee and the Board regularly.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risk that it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans to mitigate
risks in day-to-day operations, monitors the risk management progress,
and provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group has adopted and implemented an inside
information procedure. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include the
maintaining of a good control environment with defined organisational
structure, limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities
in accordance with the Company's quidelines and the regulatory
requirements.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2024.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and provides its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the management and the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group, for the year ended
31 December 2024, and considered that such systems are effective and
adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

The Company has in place an anti-corruption system within all its
employees, which forms part of the Company's staff manual. Employees
are required to act with integrity and to report any suspected bribery,
corruptions and money laundering cases to the Risk Control Center. The
employees are required to declare any conflict of interest when performing
their duties.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorised
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie ("Ms. Yuen") of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as the company
secretary. Its primary contact persons at the Company are Ms. Juliana
Cheng San San and Mr. Yoong Kang Chee. Ms. Yuen has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2024 pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders' meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of one
or more members (including a recognized clearing house (or its nominees))
of the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by
the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s) held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition in aggregate at least one-tenth of the voting
rights at general meetings, on a one vote per share basis, in the share
capital of the Company, and such requisitionists(s) may add resolutions
to the meeting agenda so convened. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves, may convene the general meeting as a physical meeting at
only one location which will be the Principal Meeting Place in the manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

REME
SERBHEFSEEXFTHFERATN
ARz (R4 x)) EEZEAREXR
BNABEME - ERARBETEMBAL
mERMUL T REEHEE - RBRE-T
“HE+ZA=+—HLEEE RYXETE
BiE EHARAE3 205 2R D15/ B
RUAERIE EE -

iz SREF
HRERRED REFN ARBRREE
REFEE (BEERENES) RREKX
CREBIIRER - RIEAE LIREMFR
BERZBERRELDRUVETRERR
BRBFRRAERBNERRIAGERER
A B e Bk 3T PR A 0 T

RRBRAKRREINKE

RBEARBDNRBDERMAE7MF  EF
SRAHERRSBEZEAREDRRRS
AARE - REREFABART —HIMU
R (BE—EDIEER (HEALE
N) ZEHEXRMBHR BRERAXE
AREBNEBNIERFE (RHEARET
TERELATERFE  AAEMMRE
B ERIBAAREZIEHARFRLHFE
RANBREB HEZFFRAREEEZRZAH
ARAARTDREPEHRED+DZ—H
RRAERER ERN-R—FH8) -8
ZEBRAUTENLBRN G HRRTIE
MRZRFR - HEFGNEEERZ BEEST
“t+—HBRIEEEREREFINRE -+ —
ARARKXKE RIFERABSUREE
BROISFEEARAEZANER —EithE
(ZMEB R ETEGHME) ARARRX
SRS e ERLAATXERAZEAKR
RN ZEEAMERZAES =EAE
mEAR BRAREAMBRAEBNEE
EFgXRAARAEMAGEEAIRAKRE
PREEZFIAEGERX-



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Under normal circumstances, the Company will not deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:
Address: 5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road

Changning District

Shanghai 200051

China

(For the attention of Chairman of the Board)
Telephone: (8621) 6229-8001

Fax: (8621) 3258-0520

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders'
information may be disclosed as required by the law.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary at the Company's head office and principal place of business,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact
details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting
regarding any specified transaction/ousiness and its supporting documents.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board, all other members of the Board including
Non-executive Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors, and the
Chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

The Company has established a Shareholders Communication Policy
which sets out the Company's processes to provide shareholders and
the investment community with ready, equal and timely information on
the Company. An annual review had been undertaken and approved by
the Board and the effectiveness of the policy was confirmed considering
multiple channels were in place and adopted to reflect the current best
practice in communications with shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company's Articles of Association is also available on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Pursuant to the new Rule 2.07A of the Listing Rules and the Company's
Articles of Association, with effect from 31 December 2023, the Company
will disseminate future corporate communications of the Company to
Shareholders electronically and only send corporate communications
in printed form to Shareholders upon request. Refer to the notice to
Shareholders of the Company dated 31 January 2024 for details on the new
arrangements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Welcome to Parkson's Environmental, Social and Governance (known as
"ESG") (2024) Report, which provides an overview of Parkson's ESG-related
management measures, practices, progress, and achievements in 2024.

In 2024, the global economy presents a situation where numerous
opportunities and challenges coexist. Parkson Group, with a consumer-
centric approach, focuses on its core business and deepens the integration
of online and offline business formats, dedicated to providing excellent
quality and a delightful shopping experience. Meanwhile, the Group
has integrated the concept of sustainable development into its long-
term strategy, focusing on and continuously improving its management
practices in corporate governance, environmental protection, and social
responsibility. Together with shareholders and investors, consumers,
employees, suppliers, and other stakeholders, we will continue to engage in
responsible business practices to create sustainable value.

REPORTING STANDARDS

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Code (hereinafter referred to as the "ESG Reporting
Code”) set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules and covers the main
businesses of Parkson Group in Chinese mainland and Laos. The key
performance indicator(s) ("KPI(s)") in environmental and social areas cover
our department stores, shopping malls, outlets and supermarkets operated
in Chinese mainland and Laos in 2024, and employee-related KPIs further
include Hong Kong, Malaysia, and Singapore.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Reporting Principles
of the £SG Reporting Code, which include:

° Materiality: The Group identifies key ESG areas to be concerned
through stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment and
develops specific strategies and improvement plans.

° Quantification: This report presents the key environmental and
social performance indicators in quantitative terms, attaches with
quantitative data descriptions, explains its purpose and impact, and
provides comparative data.

° Balance: This report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
current performance on ESG management following the principle of
balance.

° Consistency: The data disclosure and statistics methods used for

this report are consistent with those for the 2023 ESG report to
ensure the comparability of information.
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ESG MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

To incorporate the concept of sustainable development into daily business
operations, we have established an ESG governance structure consisting of
the Board, senior management and the ESG working group. Responsibilities
have been defined for all levels to oversee ESG matters from top to bottom
and ensure the smooth development of the Group's ESG work.

The Board's statement on ESG management is as follows:

The Board of Directors takes requlatory responsibility for the Group's
ESG strategy and reporting, formulates ESG management policy and
strategy, reqularly reviews the ESG-related issues of the Group, identifies
and assesses ESG risks and priorities, and ensures that the Group has in
place appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems. Meanwhile, based on the ESG-related objectives, the Board of
Directors reqgularly reviews the performance and the progress of the
Group, and the relevance of ESG objectives to the Group's business, and
approves the disclosures in the ESG report. During the reporting period,
the Company's Board authorised Ms. Juliana Cheng San San, an executive
Director, to implement the ESG management on behalf of the Board of
Directors. Her specific responsibilities include establishing relevant teams,
promoting ESG management capacity building, implementing ESG work
and improving ESG information disclosure to ensure the Group's scientific
and efficient decision-making on all ESG matters.

The Group's senior management is responsible for executing ESG risk
management and internal control systems, reporting ESG risks and
opportunities to the Board, and ensuring the effective operation of relevant
ESG systems.

The ESG working group of the Group engages the principal departments of
Parkson, with the head of each department directly reporting ESG-related
risks upward and implementing ESG management policies approved by
senior management. Moreover, the ESG working group designates persons
to take the responsibility for ESG management and reporting.

To further develop the professional knowledge and skills for members of
our ESG governance structure, the Group invited external industry experts
in 2024 to conduct ESG training themed on climate change and other ESG
issues to continuously enhance the Group's ESG governance capabilities.
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Stakeholder Engagement MRS 2
In 2024, to fully incorporate the valuable views of all parties on the —Z _PFE > XEBFBEB AL EBBIL

Group's business planning and implementation, the Group adopted a > THRBF REE#E - RERKE A
regular communication mechanism to understand the needs and concerns ET -FAEmA HEE HER - HtTA
of stakeholders such as governments and regulators, shareholders and m—rn%%ﬂ 5 AR 5 O s SR ELRA Y] > =
investors, employees, business tenants, consumers, suppliers and the WRAVE HHAEBEFREILRATHNES
community. Parkson will respond to the expectations of all stakeholders, BB o B E#&FENE *EE@E‘E’JHHW%
provide timely feedback and responses, and further improve the HEXFE¥ERIE > 455 R B fx A5 B4 [O] FE >
management of each issue. TIRAZZBENEIRKT

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns ~ Communication channels Communication frequency

Fzm AR 7S HAZ K RiE BBRE BBAR

Compliance management

Compliance with laws and SREE
Governments and regulators regulations Proactive in tax payment T e e
B KREEHE BFABRRER FEFRM EE%%
Pay taxes Implementation of national
AN R policies
HATEIRBER
Return on investment Announcements and circulars
b EIE= NEFIBER
Shareholders and investors Corporate governance Annual financial statements Multiple times per year
RRKREEA TEEA FEPHRSE BEZR
Information disclosure Shareholders' meeting
EEWE &N
Protect employee's rights and Regular meetings and trainings
interests EHgE I
HWEETHGD Talent development program
Employees Career development channel AAE R 2 Multiple times per month
8T WEERBE Employee care activities BAZRX
Healthy and safe working BT REES
environment Intranet websites
REZENIIERIE AEE N
. . Daily communication
Protect rights and interests of o
. business tenants . " ﬁﬁ. . . .
Business tenants - a5 Meetings and trainings Multiple times per month
AEEF (RIER S 2 &R SEER
Win-win cooperat|on .
Py Service hotline and emails
el AR B R B 78

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B R E*&EB AR AH



ENVIRONMENTAL; SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE L EMERARS

Stakeholders Expectations and concerns  Communication channels Communication frequency

Fzm AR 7 HAZ K RE BRRE BBAR

Media activities

5
Provide high quality products .ﬁﬁﬁé,ﬁﬁj
. Satisfaction survey
and services 2 e
Consumers REEEER KRS Service/ h:t\linxeuan;emails Multiple times per month
HEE Satisfy the diversified needs of BAZXRX
’ / ARIS EA4R R 3D 58
consumers Social media and corporate
e HBEEZITTEN :
websites

R IRRE AN B AFUE

Business visit

: . . EFETRR
Fair and impartial procurement Dailv meetin
Suppliers NSSVN G EER Ely",%"ﬁ-f‘ég Multiple times per month
HAER Win-win cooperation . = (SYSEEN
Review and performance
XHER [=] ﬂE o
evaluation
B RIF
Community engagement
anE Company's official website
Community Business compliance NEEH Multiple times per year
HeEaA® EBER Public welfare activities BEZR
Environmental awareness NiEE

RREH
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Materiality Assessment

Materiality assessment is one of the most important prerequisites for
sustainability management in business. In 2024, the Group reviewed its
ESG issue matrix results based on the £SG Reporting Code, taking into
consideration global sustainability trends, conditions of the retail industry,
current situation of Parkson, and internal and external communication.
There were no significant adjustments to the results of the study from last
year.
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Responsible supply chain
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@ Business ethics
mEEE

v

Importance to Parkson
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CONDUCTING RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS FOR STABLE
PROGRESS

We recognise that corporate sustainability relies on responsible operation
practices. Therefore, the Group upholds the principle of fairness,
impartiality, integrity and honesty, and makes every effort to promote
“Integrity Parkson" building through compliant business and ethical
practices. In addition, we focus on the protection of intellectual property
rights and information security management, and take the responsibility
for society and various stakeholders through responsible business practices.

Commitment to Business Ethics

Integrity and compliance constitute the cornerstone of corporate
development. The Group regards compliance, integrity and honesty as the
important premise of business operations. As a member of the Enterprise
Anti-Fraud Alliance and the Trust and Integrity Enterprise Alliance, we learn
from extensive experience in anti-fraud remediation, working jointly to
create a fair, transparent and incorruptible business environment.

We strictly comply with the following anti-corruption laws and regulations
in daily operations:

1) Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China
2) Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People's Republic of China

3) Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery

We adopt a "zero-tolerance” policy on all forms of bribery and corruption,
and have established a comprehensive risk control framework and
operation system. The Group has built lines of defence comprising the
Audit Committee, the Risk Control Centre and other departments and
stores. The Risk Control Centre holds joint meetings on risk control every
month for internal sharing of supervision cases and for applying them in
daily work. In this way, we rigorously minimise the risk of fraud. The Risk
Control Centre consists of the Legal Department, the Audit Department and
internal control and monitoring positions. We have specifically set up a
Store Audit Team under the Audit Department, with a focus on regular and
special audits, and raising awareness of the potential risks of corruption
in the daily operations of our stores. In 2024, following the Group's
audit checklist and the list of mandatory audit items, the Store Audit
Team inspected whether each store implemented relevant processes in
accordance with Parkson's policies. The audits involved key anti-fraud audit
items such as procurement and non-compliant reimbursement, aiming to
urge stores to operate in an honest manner.
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To ensure that the Group's anti-fraud procedure applies to all businesses, ZAERAEEREERAEZ2EBEEATIR
we demand and enforce anti-fraud compliance for our employees and 375> FFIH 2 TEHMHERIR Y K F BN
suppliers: [EE BRI IREVIE RS ©

Employees

8T

e All employees are required to sign the Prohibition of Employment and promise not to receive or demand benefits from
suppliers in any name or manner other than those specified in the contract and not take advantage of work to offer and
accept bribes or accept gifts.

Aﬁﬁkﬁli’]ﬁﬁﬁT((f?cHﬁ%%%) » EENEUERRENAXAHRBHRE - RESRZERBLUSINIF T
BHRAIFZETHIME BB

Suppliers
g

e All suppliers are required to sign the Letter of Commitment of Integrity for Supplier to follow the principles of fairness,
impartiality, integrity and honesty, and abstain from engaging in improper transactions to secure trading opportunities or
seek illegitimate benefits.

ERFAMEBERS(RERRZEES) EXHENBRF AT RE -RR #SENRI TRENRRS
WEIHFENAEENEMUESFAEERF

e |f a supplier violates the requirements of integrity and honesty, the Group has the right to add such supplier to the
internal channel blacklist, as well as the shared inquiry systems of the Enterprise Anti-Fraud Alliance and Trust and the
Integrity Enterprise Alliance.

At ﬁéﬁﬁ&*ﬁ%ﬁéﬁi%%% WARE ~2EEERRASARNBRERRELUREEREREE  BXHE
MEREEHRL
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Moreover, the Group is committed to promoting anti-fraud awareness
for all employees and carrying out training and publicity activities via
diversified channels. The Audit Department requires 1~2 times a year for
management personnel as well as regional and store personnel at all levels
to conduct special anti-fraud presentations and training, and records
anti-fraud video training for the Board of Directors and employees at all
levels to learn. Meanwhile, stores are equipped with auditing positions to
conduct special training, and carry out their own anti-fraud campaigns in
the store. In 2024, the Group launched training sessions on the definitions,
hazards, preventive measures, supervision and inspection efforts of
collusive and conspired bidding for relevant departments, regions and
stores, thereby enhancing staff awareness on this front. Besides, the Group
regularly releases the Legal Risk Tips for typical legal risk events via our
Office Automation (OA) system. In this way, we provide references for the
operation of all departments. Meanwhile, we issued the Third Quarter Audit
Risk Tips, covering various aspects such as non-commodity procurement,
asset disposal and contract management. This helped stores strengthen
their control capability and awareness regarding anti-corruption and anti-
fraud.

Parkson believes that internal and external supervision contributes to the
transparency and fairness of internal management. To this end, we have
developed the Parkson Group Whistle-Blowing System and Procedures, in
an effort to provide an open and smooth reporting channel for consumers,
suppliers, business partners and employees. We have established a
Disciplinary Inspection Committee comprising the management of
the Group's CEOQ, the Human Resources Department, the Legal Affairs
Department and the Audit Department, and designated the Disciplinary
Inspection Committee as the main responsible body for handling reported
violations. When a report is received and sufficient evidence is present,
the Disciplinary Inspection Committee will appoint an inspection team
to carry out appropriate investigations and collect evidence within two
weeks. After the audit, the Disciplinary Inspection Committee will issue
a detailed audit report with suggestions for rectification and necessary
penalties. The report will not only guide the internal rectification, but
also be fed back to the whistle-blowers. At the same time, in order to
protect the legitimate rights and interests of whistle-blowers, we have
arranged for specialised personnel to register and file all reporting clues,
and implementing encrypted management, to ensure that the privacy
of whistle-blowers is strictly confidential. We offer appropriate financial
rewards to eligible whistle-blowers, thus encouraging more individuals
to supervise undisciplined behaviours and safeguarding a clean business
environment.
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Reporting e-mail

BRI

e Anti-Fraud@ 139.com
® Personal email address of the Chairman of the Group Audit Committee: akfu28 @gmail.com
EEBEZZE T EE AL akfu28@gmail.com

Reporting hotline
RIREs

‘

* Phone No.: +86 21-3258 0566
[EE 255 ©+86 21-3258 0566

® Mobile phone No.: +86 137 9535 5237 or +86 137 9520 2119
B ENESE S +86 137 9535 52378+86 137 9520 2119

Postal address

ERE AL

e The Risk Control Centre of Parkson Retail Group Limited, 6th Floor, Metro Plaza, No. 555 Loushanguan Road, Changning
District, Shanghai, China, 200051
FEEETREEGEMBEKSSSSEREEREZIEARHMEERGRABRIEFR L » Z4F - 200051

During 2024, there were no concluded legal cases regarding corruption, — T _PUERN» FMRBEHASER K E
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering brought against the Group or EBIiRH T EELEN S5 BB #Z=  HEE
its employees. W E TR AE o

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B R E*&EB AR AH
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Group strictly abides by the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China and other laws and regulations. We have established a process
for confirming ownership and approving the use of trademarks. This
process includes comprehensive management of trademark registration
and renewal, similar trademark monitoring, disagreements and dispute
cases, store trademark authorisation and legal use of corresponding
brand trademarks by suppliers. By doing so, we protect our brands and
trademarks in a legitimate and effective manner. In 2024, the Group
applied for the registration of 7 trademarks in total.

As for the store trademark authorisation, each new store upon
establishment is required to sign the Trademark Licence Agreement and
issue a trademark authorisation before using the Group's trademarks. This
process ensures the store's legality and compliance in using trademarks. If
a store plans to set up online platform accounts, it must also obtain the
Group's additional trademark authorisation and provide relevant platforms
with the authorised qualification.

In safeguarding the intellectual property rights of others, Parkson has
developed mechanisms to verify trademarks of business tenants. We
require business tenants to provide evidential materials, including a copy
of the trademark registration certificate, authorisation documents and
the identity/subject matter proof of the authorised person. We also verify
the authenticity and validity of the trademark registration certificate,
the relevance and consistency of the certificate with the business
tenants' business, and the completeness and validity of the trademark
authorisation procedures and documents via the website of the China
National Intellectual Property Administration and other channels. Through
these efforts, we ensure that business tenants use trademarks in a lawful
manner and avoid infringing on the intellectual property rights of others.
Parkson has developed specifications for photos and articles used in the
WeChat official account to regulate the use of copyrighted materials by our
stores when publishing online information. We require all departments and
stores to review the legality of all materials used before content creation.
If the material is provided by a partner, we will require the partner to
provide documents proving that it has the right to use and has the right
to authorise a third party to use the material, and sign a written Letter
of Commitment to ensure that the material used does not infringe the
copyright of others.

At the same time, the Group strictly complies with the Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China. We also strictly examine our advertisements
to ensure that they do not contain false or misleading content and
comply with applicable laws and regulations. By doing so, we regulate our
marketing activities.
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Reinforcing Information Security

Protecting customers' privacy is not only a statutory duty for a company,
but also a basic requirement for us to win the trust from consumers and
maintain a responsible brand image. We strictly comply with the following
relevant laws and regulations in our daily operations:

1) Cybersecurity Law of the People’s Republic of China
2) Data Security Law of the People's Republic of China

3) Personal Information Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China

The Group has formulated the Consumers’ Privacy Protection Policy and
the Parkson User Privacy Policy to protect consumers' privacy by regulating
the management process of getting and using their information. In the
Parkson User Privacy Policy, we explicitly inform consumers of the Group's
purpose, way, category and scope of collecting, using and handling
personal information, and have established detailed terms for third-party
information sharing, protection of minors, and other matters. In order
to prevent unnecessary collection of information, we collect user data
only to the extent necessary for maintaining basic functions, providing
services and products to users, and pushing information. In the course
of our operations, we take measures to encrypt sensitive information
such as consumer names and contact details. At the same time, we sign
confidentiality agreements with our partner suppliers and actively advocate
and urge our employees to use more confidential email and system
passwords, with the aim of avoiding the misuse or leakage of consumer
information.
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Following the fundamental principle of “prevention first", the Group has
formulated the Parkson Information Security Management Measures
and the Parkson Group Business Continuity and Emergency Response
Plan, which clearly stipulate the security management in terms of the
dimensions of information, equipment and network, as well as the
procedures for emergency response. We have established an Emergency
Recovery Group and formulated a detailed response plan with clear division
of responsibilities to safequard the Group's information security and
business continuity. At the same time, the Group carries out various drills
on a regular basis, including database switchover for disaster recovery
at data centres and database off-site backup and recovery, so as to test
and enhance the stability and reliability of the system, to ensure that
business can be quickly resumed in the event of emergencies, to safequard
the integrity and availability of data, and to minimise the impact on
business operations. We also arrange on-duty staff during holidays and
store festivals to ensure stable operations. In parallel, we also conduct
regular information security audits to assess the security and compliance
of the system, to comprehensively build a safe and reliable consumer
environment, and to create an assured and worry-free service experience
for consumers.

PRIORITY TO SERVICE AND QUALITY

Excellent quality and pleasant shopping experience are our core
competitiveness in the retail market. The Group always adheres to the
bottom line of protecting the legitimate rights and interests of consumers,
and collects feedback from customers through multiple channels to
continuously improve our services and products. In 2024, capitalising
on new hotspots and trends in consumption, the Group introduced
emerging brands and innovated mall layouts to provide consumers with
extraordinary shopping experience. At the same time, we paid great
attention to the quality management of our products and worked together
with our suppliers to promote the construction of a sustainable supply
chain, so as to provide consumers with high-quality and reliable products.
In the daily operations, the Group strictly complies with the following laws:

1) Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China

2) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

EERRE2RESE AEERF AL S
TINEXGH FIET(EREEREE
EE?JJ%%MD((E%E%%%%%@E'I&%DF’? X BR
i@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ_ R MBS
ENZE2EE LX)E’ZJ‘E,U\EEIEM& AP
BURmWmEIFE GIEFEENHITH
BEEAWHNEREE MRELSER
MES R MEBEEN B AEH
TE AR R BUE PO BUR E K E )R BUR
BEEEBNMERRSZEER Uik
MEARFNRBEMEM T M BRTER
BEMHELERENDNERMERT  REH
BRBENAT AL EREERDHEE
BEENEZE -HMATEHARA - EEDR
BIRHHET  REEERTE - ML HFIE
EHRRERZE2ES FHAMNEZE
MEGRE 2EBEZEIERNHER
15 HHBETEROEENMRFRER-

RBEL mERK
SHYREERRNBYRER BRMAT
EEEMHENRZOBRF N TEHRRE
STRIEHBEGEARONES TEB%
TREEZWEBRERE FEEEHMA
WEIRFSERE R e — ST MHE > KEBIE
HEMARMMFES  SIAHEmE I
B EEmE  RINBHEERHEBN
Y 2k - B> S EREE R
BEEE UHRAHEEEETFENH
BERR JHEERHEE IENE
meEHEEET AEEBEBRETUT
RERER
1) (FEARHANEEREGEE)
2) (PEARHMBIEEER S RE
&)



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Innovative Consumer Experience

The Group gains in-depth insights into consumer preference and market
dynamics, and takes innovative measures to create a diversified and vibrant
mall environment. In 2024, in addition to the introduction of promising
emerging brands and national brands with rich cultural heritage, Parkson
also cooperated with popular IP (Intellectual Property) to carry out a
series of marketing activities, such as offline spot tick-off and flash mob
stores. This accurately matched the social and consumer demands of the
younger generation, and allowed consumers to enjoy innovative consumer
experience and quality products. Besides, the Group continuously optimised
its mall spaces to make the shopping environment more attractive and
comfortable. We created themed blocks with local flavours for some of our
stores and integrated diversified marketing and interactive methods, which
attracted consumers of different ages and provided local residents and
tourists with novel offline shopping experience.

Case Zf :

ACG activities at
Hefei Parkson
SIEEERE_R
ToHHED

TSR mE
E%/,\?%—F/E@UO

ACG Celebration ®
DNA Awakening

RIT RS BRI Eh
DNASE B New GOODSLOVE Product Release
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In recent years, cooperation with animation games and other ACG IP to organise promotional
campaigns has become a hot trend in offline consumption. To provide consumers with novel
shopping experience, Hefei Parkson launched various activities in 2024, such as the "ACG
Celebration”, the "New GOODSLOVE Product Release”,
Festival” The offline activities attracted a large number of ACG customers.
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and the "Chinese-Chic Animation
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Chinese-Chic Ammat\on Festival
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Case ZE4I : N
In September 2024, the "Erbin Story” 10,000-metre themed block in Harbin Centre Street

Parkson, Heilongjiang Province, was grandly opened. With a vintage industry style, the block
was a subtle blend of urban elements (snow, ice, stations, etc.) with modern design ingenuity.
The block showed the unique city elements of Harbin in an artistic manner, and provided
the citizens and tourists with a popular slow lifestyle city themed destination, which was
PEEE R RAE integrated with catering, entertainment, culture and creation and other diversified leisure
BEITEAR scenarios.

HWEITEHE

“Erbin Story"
themed block by
Harbin Centre
Street Parkson
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4 Case Zf :
Focusing on the theme of "Wangou 100 Young", Parkson cooperated with Capybara, a popular

IP, to release the vertical comics of Capybara online and organise themed flash mobs in
multiple offline stores at certain consumption periods, such as the National Day, the Double
11, and the Membership Month of December, to enhance consumers' attention and favour to FREHIPEE
Parkson in an all-round way.
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Cooperation with
IP Capybara

Parkson X
Online vertical
comics of
Capybara Capybara
themed offline BEXFEE
flash mobs hNEFAR
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At the same time, the Group is committed to building a digital business
complex by continuously optimising the diversified and integrated online
service matrix of WeChat mini program "Parkson Member Club" (hereinafter
referred to as "member mini program”), Parkson online mall, e-commerce
platforms and takeaway services, in an effort to create thoughtful,
seamless and convenient new online shopping experience for consumers.
In 2024, the Group further upgraded the self-developed member mini
program to provide Parkson members with more benefits through six major
functions, namely channel discount code, membership benefits, activity
notification, subscription message, privilege card and activity release. In
addition, the member mini program could be linked to Parkson online malls,
providing in-store pick-up and express delivery services. Since March 2024,
Parkson has been cooperating with takeaway platforms to make the "online
orders are completed within 30 minutes" delivery service available for the
membership system, which meets consumers' immediate needs and holiday
gift-giving needs and provides a more convenient consumer experience.
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Provision of Quality Services

The Group is always mindful of consumer needs and focuses on creating
a safe and comfortable shopping mall environment. We have formulated
and strictly abided by the Shopping Mall Facilities Maintenance and Safe
Operation Management Policy to carry out routine standard inspection. In
particular, we take regular inspections on firefighting equipment, security
system and hardware facilities to ensure that every corner is lighted up,
lifts are working smoothly, air-conditioning and ventilation systems are
functioning properly, washrooms are supplied with clean and warm water,
and the malls are kept at a comfortable temperature and circulated with
fresh air, etc. In response to holidays or shopping festivals with a surge in
traffic, we will take key inspections and make plans in advance to eliminate
potential safety hazards, and to guard the safety and comfort of consumers
in an all-round and full-cycle manner.

In 2024, the Group performed on-site inspections at stores with respect
to engineering, security/fire safety and cleaning. By conducting detailed
assessment on stores in terms of operating environment hygiene, energy
conservation and other aspects, we endeavoured to provide consumers
with a comfortable and secure shopping environment. Upon completion of
the assessment, we will issue a detailed assessment report for the assessed
stores. The stores will be required to provide feedback on the progress
of rectification and follow-up plans based on the issues indicated in the
report. Subsequently, we will continuously follow up on and supervise
the rectification of the stores on a half-yearly basis. During the reporting
period, Parkson completed on-site inspections for 35 stores.

In addition, Parkson strives to provide consumers with more professional
and attentive services by improving professional competence and quality
of its employees and other shopping mall service personnel. In this
regard, in addition to the daily product and service skills training for our
staff, we also provide targeted knowledge training for service staff and
floor managers related to cosmetics and technology products. By doing
so, we continue to improve consumer satisfaction by enhancing the
professionalism and service quality of our staff.
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To address consumer opinions and complaints, the Group has formulated
institutional policies such as the Customer Service Complaint Handling
Procedure and created a graded processing for different types of issues,
such as product quality issues and stockouts. Moreover, we authorise our
employees a reasonable amount of discretion to ensure that consumer
complaints are handled in a timely and efficient manner. For products sold
online, we have established a flexible return and exchange policy titled
Delivery, Return and Exchange Policies of Parkson Online Platform. The
policy requires stores and suppliers to respond to return requests within 24
hours and to provide a 7-day unconditional return and exchange service.
In addition, we communicate with consumers on a one-to-one basis and
provide corresponding solutions and compensation proposals to tackle with
specific consumer complaints.

In 2024, we received a total of three online complaints, with a resolution
rate of 100%, and 2,884 offline complaints, with a resolution rate of
99.79%.

In order to ensure timely access to consumers, the Group has established
a WeChat customer service team on top of its regular channels, such as
telephone call response and online customer service through apps, and
opened official accounts on various social media platforms, with the aim
of providing timely and professional answers and guidance to consumers
when they raise their needs.

Stringent Control of Product Quality

We understand that strict control of product quality is not only the key
to enhance customer satisfaction and maintain brand image, but also one
of the important means to enhance market competitiveness and promote
sustainable development. Parkson has established a strict inspection
process for all types of products sold, aiming to guarantee the quality and
safety of the products sold.
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The Group has formulated the Product Quality Acceptance Standards, and
the Standard Operation Instructions for Store Management Department,
and established strict and clear inspection and acceptance standards for
various products such as food, personal care products and household
goods. We have carried out inspection on shelf life, temperature,
carton cleaning and label for all food products and developed different
inspection processes, requirements and standards for each product
category. For fruits, vegetables, and meat products, we have set different
sampling rates depending on the quantity of goods, and check animal
quarantine certificates for poultry and livestock products to confirm the
completeness of the information, including validity and expiry date. For
other food products, we have stipulated that their labels must display
essential information, such as product type and content. For personal
care and household products, the Group focuses on checking labelling,
implementation standards and quality inspection certificates to ensure that
the products comply with relevant national quality standards and safety
regulations. Similarly, we conduct targeted inspections for other types of
products, including apparel, gold and silver jewellery, and imported goods.

In order to deal with substandard products, the Group has formulated the
Instructions for the Treatment of Substandard Products, which clarifies
the responsibilities and workflow for our relevant staff. We have set up
quality assurance personnel and quality and safety management specialists
in our stores. Among them, quality assurance personnel are responsible
for the judgement of substandard products, making decisions on their
removal from shelves, and issuing notifications. Meanwhile, store quality
and safety management specialists are responsible for providing feedback
on substandard products and follow-ups. In case of substandard products
found in stores during the receiving and sales stages, the quality and
safety management specialist is responsible for notifying the stores where
they are located to remove the substandard products from the shelves
and requesting the suppliers to rectify the situation. Once information
about substandard products is known through government sampling,
media exposure or internal store inspections, Parkson will quickly verify its
authenticity and the scope of its impact. If the information is verified to
be true, we will process return and exchange for the affected consumers
and immediately remove the relevant products from the shelves. At
the same time, depending on the severity of the situation, Parkson will
impose punitive measures on the relevant suppliers or even terminate the
cooperation relationship.

As of 31 December 2024, there were no products recalled by Parkson due to
safety and health reasons caused by the Group.
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Responsible Supply Chain

Parkson is committed to building a responsible supply chain that ensures
transparency, sustainability and compliance. In this regard, the Group has
formulated the Supplier Management Policy, the Purchaser and Supplier
Management System and other policies, establishing a whole-process
supplier management system covering supplier on-boarding, procurement,
transportation, inspection and follow-up.

During the on-boarding process, suppliers are required to sign the
Assurance of Responsibility for Product Quality and the Fidelity Letter.
Suppliers are obliged to provide Parkson with all relevant certification
documents related to quality and marketing, ensuring that all products
supplied fully comply with applicable laws and regulations, do not infringe
upon the legitimate rights and interests of any third party, and are free
from counterfeiting or substandard quality issues. Additionally, the Group
conducts rigorous inspections of all suppliers' business licenses, trademark
registration certificates, and other relevant certification documents.
For special categories such as food, health food, pharmaceuticals and
tobacco, we only select suppliers with the corresponding business permits.
Suppliers are responsible for quality control throughout commodity
circulation and are required to cooperate with the quality inspection work
of Parkson stores and local industrial and commercial departments, as
well as quality supervision departments. Meanwhile, the Group carries
out comprehensive assessment of supplier quality evaluation, production
technology, environmental management, occupational health and other
aspects. We give priority to suppliers who have passed the ISO 9001
Quality Management System Certification and 1SO 14001 Environmental
Management System Certification.

In the daily management of suppliers, we carry out the annual performance
assessment of suppliers from multiple dimensions such as supply quality,
delivery timeliness, after-sales service and communication ability. Based on
the assessment results, the Group will take corresponding measures such
as motivation, assistance for improvement, optimisation, and elimination of
suppliers to support the ongoing enhancement of our supplier system.

Besides, to maintain the normal social and economic order and oppose
unfair competition in business practice, we require suppliers and business
tenants to clearly mark prices in their daily operations. They are prohibited
from engaging in deceptive consumer practices such as artificially inflating
the original prices before offering discounts or special prices during
promotions. Parkson is committed to vigorously defending the legitimate
rights and interests of consumers and ensuring that they enjoy a fair,
transparent, and honest transaction process.
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The Group continuously strengthens ESG risk management within the
supply chain to promote the sustainable development of the industry
ecology. The Group has established the Environmental and Social Risk
Management System for Suppliers and Business Tenants to manage
environmental and social risks confronted by Parkson through the
assessment of suppliers and business tenants. By this means, we provide
safe goods and high-quality services to consumers.

As of 31 December 2024, there were 25,483 suppliers cooperating with
Parkson in China, and 298 suppliers cooperating with Parkson in Laos.

GUARDING AND EMBRACING A GREEN ENVIRONMENT

Climate change has emerged as a universal concern and a global challenge.
The Group is committed to minimising the impact of its operations on the
environment while pursuing corporate development and economic benefits.
We aim to reduce emissions, minimise waste, and improve the efficiency
of water and energy use, continue to strengthen the management of
greenhouse gas emissions, and promote the recycling of recovered
resources within the Group, joining hands with all parties to safequard the
global home.

In daily operations, the Group strictly complies with the following
environmental management related laws and regulations:

1) Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China
2) Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation

3) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution

4) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution

5) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste
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Responding to Climate Change

As climate anomalies become more frequent and severe, the impact of
extreme weather events on the global economy and business activities is
increasingly evident. The Group has proactively identified and managed the
risks and opportunities associated with climate change and has integrated
climate considerations into its enterprise risk assessment and management.
As the Group's stores are located throughout mainland China and Laos,
we pay particular attention to early warning and response to extreme
weather events in the local areas of each operation. For possible extreme
weather conditions in various regions, we promptly notify our stores of the
requirement to take precautions and respond to them in advance.

The Group has developed a detailed emergency response plan to address
extreme weather conditions, including typhoons, floods, and severe
temperature fluctuations. The Group has formulated the Flood Prevention
Plan, which specifies the duties of principal person in charge of the
emergency response procedures, the workflow and the specific job
requirements. Also, to enhance the emergency management capabilities of
stores, we have set up dedicated command groups in each store to oversee
flood and typhoon prevention efforts, aiming to minimise potential risks
to personnel safety and property damage. Furthermore, our stores conduct
regular emergency drills to guarantee a quick and efficient response to
extreme weather scenarios, thereby strengthening our climate resilience.

Implementing Green Operation

Parkson has always incorporated the concept of green operation into all
aspects of mall management, actively practicing the concept of sustainable
development and committing itself to minimising the impact on the
environment while realising business value. Parkson's Shopping Mall
Facilities Maintenance and Safe Operation Management Policy clearly
regulates the maintenance and judgement of electrical equipment such as
lifts and air-conditioners, as well as water supply and drainage facilities
during the operation of shopping malls, so as to ensure the normal
and safe operation of facilities and equipment and at the same time to
reduce the unnecessary consumption of energy and water resources.
In addition, the Group has also established the Parkson Retail Group
Engineering and Property Management Policy to guide the management
of store environment and further strengthen the implementation of green
operations, laying a solid foundation for an environmentally friendly and
efficient business environment.
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The Group regularly collects and monitors the daily energy consumption
data of our stores. If any abnormal value is detected, we will communicate
with the store in a timely manner to understand the situation, and follow
up on the improvement. In 2024, the Group carried out store inspections,
with a special energy-saving assessment included. For issues identified
during the inspection, Parkson proposed targeted energy-saving measures
for each store and follows up on the implementation and improvement
of these measures. Wuxi Sanyang Parkson replaced cooling towers
and cooling pumps and optimised usage parameters to reduce energy
consumption of related equipment. In addition, we also pay attention
to the use of water and other resources and have implemented various
measures to reduce unnecessary waste of resources.

Meanwhile, in 2024, we conducted special centralised training for the
person in charge of engineering and property of each store nationwide.
The training covered guidelines for managing and controlling large-scale
renovation projects, maintenance of equipment and facilities, as well as
other related topics on energy conservation and environmental protection.
Such training aims to enhance the awareness and capabilities of our stores
in environmental management.

Enhancing energy efficiency

R RE IR

FEBTEHREREERPIEN B SR
ERBER - WEEEAHEES  HMT
REHEPIEBBTRBR WRENS-
—EME - AEBREFMELE B
HAPmABELE ZEIE - B KIRBERET
LZHRBE ARCABPISREHENKE
ETSEE TR WIREZR BN Z - EH =
BRERT SAENSAR LELT®
B28 > UREHERRAENERERE I
5 AR KB RA R EME RAY
A uReZTtRERLERNIUER
o

B BN S _MEHAE2EMET
BYMEESAFZBEEREI HIREE
BARENEIREERRS - RERMAEE
REUREMEE R REEBEARNS
RAZFMEREEENEHELES -

® Regulating the use of energy-intensive equipment such as air conditioners: We have made a clear switch-on and

switch-off schedule for stores to follow, and strictly control the opening and closing of doors at various entrances and
exits. This measure has effectively reduced unnecessary energy consumption and significantly improved energy efficiency.

MEBEAESFEAERBHER | G ERERFBMBEPAREREFISHIT  UERREESHADFIH
FIEM AR T IR BRRERIRKL BT EREA N m

® Promoting the use of energy-saving lighting fixtures: By the end of 2024, the Group had 26 stores with 100% LED
light coverage and 17 stores with 90% LED light coverage among 43 stores.

WITEHISEBENER . 8 Z 2 _UEXR TAEEM4KFIET » EF26K PI/ELEDE B = =X Z £/100%
172X P9 JELEDYE 8 2= = 22 §9000 ©

® Employing a low-carbon data centre: We work with data centre service providers with advanced, low-carbon cooling
systems and intelligent energy management strategies for continuous optimisation of energy efficiency.

FABKBEEPO  RFAERNBETORBHEFARERKNSANAENEENEREERE  JUE
REERM AR ERIEE-
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Practising water resource management

BT KERER

e Management of water facilities: We installed and replaced water-saving sanitary ware and adjusted the water control
devices in restrooms to minimise water usage.

RAKRMER  HAFAEBREKERR  WREREBIEKRE B KERER-

e Regular checks and repairs: The store maintenance team checks and repairs water valves, pipelines and other related
facilities reqularly to avoid unnecessary waste such as unexpected running, overflowing, dripping, and leaking of water.

EHMIERE | SPIENEE/ NMVETERE KR  EBREEREETRERMEE  HIER 8 B RBFK
BERRERR#EE-

® Promotion of water-saving awareness: We posted water conservation signs in the office's public area to raise
employees’ awareness of water saving and to integrate the promotion of water conservation into the daily operations.

BIkBHREE AAEMAEQARBERMEWAKEH  fA B THNRKEH  BEKEETFRA
HEZE EME’J%E/F&NN

Resource recycling

HiREIF A

e Utilisation of idle resources: We coordinate the recycling of idle fixed assets among stores within the Group. In 2024, we
allocated 14 sets of idle office desks and chairs from Kunming Brilliant Supermarket to Kunming Nanya Supermarket, thus
enhancing resource utilisation.

MEBERMNA  AAGATEEPIEEHNEREEEETRIRAAR - —S " HF > HfiR EBRRBETHRE
ENUWERRSRREEERBRED A BRNFBME-

Due to our ongoing improvements in energy and water management, our SR ITETEMER L KEREE I
Beijing Fuxingmen Parkson Plaza (North Tower) has successively obtained fIRVIEREEFITHERAE (I61E) BBk
the LEED Gold Certification and the Certificate of Two-Star Green Building  fSLEEDS 4R B E B — B R4 B B RITH:H
Label. Be
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Case Z4l :

LEED Gold
Certification
granted to Beijing
Fuxingmen
Parkson Plaza
(North Tower)

IEREEMFHE
KE (J6i8) %
LEEDE 4R :EE

\

After energy-saving renovations, Beijing Fuxingmen Parkson Plaza (North Tower) has achieved
an approximately 69 % reduction in air-conditioning energy consumption during the cooling
season from April to September each year, compared to that before the renovations. The
project was recognised with LEED Gold Certification in 2023 and was unanimously assessed
by the local Municipal Commission of Housing and Urban-Rural Development and various
professional assessment experts in 2024, and was recognised with the Certificate of Two-Star
Green Building Label.

KIBEpERNE REEMERAE (018 SF48 298N AR S =R
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PARKSON PLAZA
BEAE

B Ching

LEED Gold Certification granted to Parkson Plaza
(North Tower)

BERAE (Jbi%) LD RFE

Certificate of Two-Star Green
Building Label granted to
Parkson Plaza (North Tower)
BB AE (bi8) 2R 4%
BRERHEBS
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2024 KPIs on the Aspect: Use of Resources

Type of resources

IRIE T A&

2024

BIRER —E_ME

Vb 4=}

—HFEEREREERRENIER

Energy consumption in total (in MWh)' BEJRHFEARE K EES) ' 300,322 295,435 285,085
-Direct energy consumption in total ~—EIZFERHIELS

(in MWh)' KRB ! 16,235 20,322 25,482
-Indirect energy consumption in total —FRIEEERHELE

(in MWh)' KRB | 284,087 275113 259,603
Intensity of energy consumption RERHEERE

(in MWh per square meter) CKEEE/FHK) 0.187 0.182 0.170
Water consumption in total (in tonne)? 483E7k & (M) 2 1,874,592 1,838,302 1,619,894
Intensity of water consumption MFERBE

in total (in tonne per square meter) (Mg /I 75 3K) 1.167 1.131 0.963
Packaging materials used for finished &Y Y 52 Bt FA €3 25 A7 1L 48 A

products in total (in tonne)? (mg) 3 15 27 26

Notes:

The energy sources consumed by the Group mainly include electricity,
natural gas, and heating energy during winter. Total energy consumption is
accounted according to electricity consumption, natural gas consumption,
heating energy consumption, and the default value of parameters related
to fossil fuel as listed in Annex 1 of the Guidelines on Accounting Methods
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Public Building Operators
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission. The total
energy consumption of the Group includes the total direct energy

AEEFANTEEREEE - XAR
MEFTWHEEER EREELERE
BEE - RXAAERE - BRERAER
ERERMNELZETEMPI(ARE

REEPERERBIRIZE HAER
EEE ) WREARMNERS28GE A
E o AEEERHELERIEEEE
FUHFERE N e RHERE Hf

consumption and the total indirect energy consumption, wherein the total HEERIEEEGEXRAR  BEE
direct energy consumption includes natural gas, and the indirect energy TR E G FEE JHFEMME

consumption includes electricity consumption and heating energy;

production-oriented enterprise, the packaging material used for finished
products per unit produced is not applicable to the Group.

2. The Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use, and the water 2. AEENETEKFERBEFTHK KR
is sourced from municipal water supply system, which can meet the water HHEBHEAK AU E BB EE AKX
demand of daily operation; B

3. The Group's stores use paper and plastic packages. As the Group is nota 3. REBMEFERBRENER G5 RE

B dEEER T FIL > KM A
BEMENESEEBRUGETEREE
o
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Practising Compliant Emissions

The Group actively complies with the laws and regulations regarding
emissions in operating locations by formulating and implementing the
Parkson Group Environmental Protection Policy, so as to strictly regulate
the emissions generated during our operations. Our emissions mainly
include greenhouse gases, office and domestic wastewater, and non-
hazardous wastes. On the basis of compliant emissions, we aim to reduce
the emissions generated and continuously carry out emission management.

In terms of wastewater discharge, our office and domestic wastewater
have met the discharge requirements specified in the /ndustry Standard of
Urban Construction of the People's Republic of China. Wastewater Quality
Standards for Discharge to Municipal Sewers (C/ 343-2010). Moreover,
the wastewater is discharged into the municipal sewage system for
unified treatment. In terms of waste disposal, pursuant to the regulations
of the local governments, non-hazardous wastes produced in our daily
operations are categorised and subjected to collection and integrated
treatment by respective property management companies. Furthermore,
in terms of construction waste generated during store renovations and
operations, we have included separate clauses in our bidding and tender
documents, explicitly requiring the construction units to dispose of the
construction waste in accordance with the regulations of the sanitation
departments. This ensures that the waste is disposed of on a daily basis.
To reduce waste generation, the recyclable cardboard boxes generated
during our operations are uniformly collected by cleaning companies or the
administrative departments of our stores for further resource recycling.
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2024 KPIs on the Aspect: Emissions

RIR B R E QRS

“E_NEHIRYE R REIER

Type of emissions ** BEm i gae
Waste water in total (in tonne) EEk4E8 & (W) 1,697,447 1,658,113 1,459,827
Non-hazardous waste emissions mEBEEYHIREE (W)

in total (in tonne) ! 8,958 12,090 11,709
Intensity of non-hazardous waste BEEEYERE M,/ F5K)

(in tonne per square meter) 0.006 0.007 0.007
Greenhouse gas emissions in total BERBHRES

(in tC02¢) (M| EIRESE) 2 143,932 140,370 134,458
-Direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas Bz (EE) REREIKE

emissions (in tCO2e) (Umﬁ_ﬂ'f ERE2) 3,246 4,063 5,095
-Indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas ~ — 3% (BIE2) REREHINE

emissions (in tCO2e) (M| IERES) 140,686 136,307 129,363
Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions &= R EEHENZ E

(in tCO2¢ per square meter) ME—SIEREE, FH K 0.090 0.079 0.080

Notes:

Non-hazardous wastes include engineering waste, domestic waste, grease
in grease traps, food waste, and recyclable waste (wastepaper, scrap iron
and plastic waste, etc.);

Based on the nature of the Group's business operation, the greenhouse
gas emissions of the Group include direct emissions resulting from natural
gas combustion and indirect emissions resulting from energy consumed
through consumption of heating energy and purchased electricity,
so greenhouse gases include only carbon dioxide (C02). Greenhouse
gas emissions are presented as COze (carbon dioxide equivalent). The
greenhouse gas emissions of purchased electricity in Shanghai region were
calculated based on the electricity emission factor announced by Shanghai
Ecological Environment Bureau in 2023 and the greenhouse gas emissions
of purchased electricity in Laos were calculated based on the electricity
emission factor published by International Energy Agency in 2023, while
other greenhouse gas emissions were calculated according to the Average
CO: Emission Factors for Regional Power Grid in 2022 issued by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People's Republic of China;

BEEEREYERE IR EENR
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3. The greenhouse gas emissions in 2022 and 2023 were recalculated 3. 20235 DA K22022FE 1978 = R BS BE B
according to the Average CO: Emission Factors for Regional Power Grid in REFEARENEERIREI ZEHH
2022 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People's (002F &I BN A bmIERE
Republic of China; FYETEIR;

4, According to the management's assessment results, the Group does not 4. KREEBETH AEBTEFEER T
generate a large amount of hazardous waste during its business operation, EXEREEEEEY AILMIBEEE
therefore KPI A1.3 hazardous waste does not apply; MHNEARESIEETERAEER ;

5. Except for the content disclosed above, our business operation does not 5. PR b EEEN RMETESEPR RS
cause any other significant impact on the environment or consume other ERHEMBEAIREEENASEREM
natural resources during our course of operation. HRAREIR

ADVANCING WITH EMPLOYEES TOWARDS A BETTER FUTURE EFET HEIKREK

Dedication, integrity & honesty, team
spirit, customer orientation, and mutual

The Group's philosophy on human resources respect
20 A EEHE - BBIGH
TEBANERES BEEEm- -HEEE

Parkson has always adhered to the philosophy of “people-oriented” We BRBARFUABEINER BR
fully protect employees' legitimate rights and interests as well as their KB EFEEZREEREEING A nm
occupational health, in strict compliance with laws and regulations, MEBERERE RHEEFE L 18
aiming at fostering a team atmosphere and working environment ESENEXFEHETEIRE - BIF
characterised by equality, diversity and mutual respect. Meanwhile, we HMBETITEEEHRE N MEF]

have established a competitive remuneration and benefits system for BR IUFETSHNATEEES
our employees and continuously improved talent cultivation mechanism BE—(UBIHMETERIERBA = K
to enable every employee to showcase their abilities and achieve MEHK-

personal fulfilment in Parkson.
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Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group strictly adheres to the following labour laws and regulations in
the daily operations:

1) Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China

2) Labour Contract Law of the People's Republic of China

3) Law of the People's Republic of China on Work Safety

4) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors
5) Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

6) Law of the People's Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases

7) Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour

The Group has a comprehensive and detailed regulations on employee
recruitment, onboarding, promotion and other employment processes. We
have formulated and enforced the following policies and management
measures to fully inform our employees of their basic rights and
responsibilities, including details of remuneration, performance appraisal,
employee benefits, employee training, promotion and reassignment:

1) Compilation of Standardised System for Human Resources
2) Administrative Measures for Onboarding and Dismission
3) Leave Management

4) Administrative Measures for Staff Attendance

5) Measures of Employee Discipline Violations

6) Staff Manual

B B REARE

RIEES T

FEETHBREEPRK/ETUTSE I
RBERIER
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4 (PEARHANMBEIREFAFREZE)
5) (PEARHEMBEDHED

6) (PEARHEMBEBERDLE)

7). (RUEEREIRE)
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RERERE

The Group lays emphasis on the protection of human rights and labour
rights. When confirming employment relations, we enter labour contracts
with employees in accordance with laws, in which the responsibilities and
liabilities are stipulated. At the same time, the Group prohibits all forms of
child labour and forced labour. During the recruitment process, candidates
shall provide identity information and the authenticity shall be verified
to avoid hiring candidates under the age of 16. In case of detecting and
verifying child labour, we will immediately terminate the labour contract
and return the employee to his/her original place of residence in his/her
parents' or other legal guardians’ custody. In addition, the Group classifies
working hours according to the nature of the position, and implements the
standard working hours system, the irreqular working hours system and
the comprehensive working hours system to avoid forced labour against
employees’ will. Overtime work of employees due to increased workload
or operational needs is subject to prior written approval from responsible
persons, and working hours shall not exceed the statutory limit of working
hours. In 2024, the Group had no violations involving child labour or forced
labour.

During 2024, the turnover rate of the Group's employees was 21.6%.

Turnover rate by gender
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Turnover rate by age group
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Turnover rate by region
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Overseas
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Northwest China
7adt

Central China

South China
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East China
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North China
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Northeast China 14.9%
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Creating an Inclusive Workplace

Parkson is devoted to creating a diverse, equal and inclusive working
environment. The Group prohibits, both during the recruitment process
and in the workplace, any form of discrimination against candidates and
employees on the grounds of gender, age, marital status, religion, race,
nationality, disability, etc. The harassment and discrimination behaviours
are specified in the Measures of Employee Discipline Violations.

Besides, Parkson has developed an open and accessible complaint channel
for employees to file complaints and express opinions on inappropriate
behaviours such as harassment and discrimination in workplace. Upon
receiving complaints, the Human Resource Department will initiate an
investigation and verification process in accordance with the principles
of timeliness, objectivity, and comprehensiveness. External legal counsel
or investigation teams will be engaged to assist in the investigation if
necessary. Upon completion of the investigation, the Human Resource
Department will report to management in a timely manner, and will
promptly impose corresponding disciplinary punishments to relevant
employees according to the severity of the case and the rules and
regulations. The punishments include compensation and apology, transfer,
demotion, warning and termination of the labour contract.

Simultaneously, we emphasise the career development of female employees
and support their professional growth, encouraging them to fully utilise
their potential in their respective positions and expand their career
boundaries.

51.3%

400% 500% 60%
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Case 24| : N
Qingdao Parkson attaches great significance to the cultivation and development of female

talent and takes active measures to promote the proportion of female managers in the
decision-making level. By the end of 2024, over 50% of the key leadership positions in Qingdao
Parkson were taken by female leaders. Female leaders are injecting powerful momentum

Shoulders carrying
responsibilities,
women

72

undertaking their
commitment

ERIEFE-™

demonstrating the unique value of women in the workplace.

RS

MERSTNESEE.

into the business development with their excellent leadership and keen insights, fully

FEEERSEERAMATNEREER BRREA LM EEETRARE TG
LE-BETTNFER SEARMRAESHAUT K MES(LEEBiIE50% 1t
BEFUSENEENNEERNRAR ) BEFERIABKRE I TORRT L

In order to assist female employees in enhancing greater self-awareness, Yichun Parkson
launched a women-themed activity titled “The Undefined 'She™ during the reporting period.
This initiative was designed to encourage female employees to confidently showcase their
authentic and diverse selves in the workplace and realise their personal growth.

AN EETRABHEN EEARNBERANRRE I RERL M1 i
THEERE ZRMETARSERRFAEE - ZNEH BRARMER
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As of the end of 2024, the Group had 3,536 employees, of which 58.7%

were female.

Total workforce by gender

BRI E D4R E T EEH

41.3%

@ Female @ Vale

BT BEMET

Total workforce by region
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Total workforce by age group

REWRE DARBIE TG

1.8% 18.8%

69.4%

@ Under 30 years old @ 30-50 years old @ Over 50 years old
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Total workforce by employment type
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1.6%

@ Full-time @ Part-time
2 i3
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The Group strives to provide competitive compensation and benefits to
all employees. Qur base salary standards are set based on the specific
responsibilities of each position. Employees are also provided with daily
benefits such as marriage and maternity grants, condolence allowances
for funerals, birthday gifts or premiums, and physical examinations.
We also organise diversified employee activities to support our staff in
balancing family and career, so as to enhance their sense of belonging and
satisfaction at Parkson.

Case ZEfH :

“Sheng Xue Tang"
Programme by
Nanning Parkson
=12
RS8EHE

employees.
MEBRERMIXEZFEREAEHD
R mEERAEREE I HE BB
TFRRMIGPASZREEZHE-

To address the issue of children from dual-
their family members during summer vacation, Nanning Parkson launched the “Sheng Xue
Tang" Programme, offering a place and a rich arrangement of activities for the children of

FEBRNNAEBETIRHAEBRS| S
mﬁwﬁﬁﬂ FHPIREBESEAUARER
B REMEHNERFERE-RMES
ETRMHEERESES REMBE
THERNEE IRREREELER
A UHEZTNEILES XFHEIF
BREAEFE DUEBRETETEENEE
R MR

~

employee families lacking the company of
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Accompanying Employee's Development

The construction of talent ladder is crucial to enterprise's development.
The Group continues to optimise the talent cultivation and promotion
mechanism and provide clear and flexible promotion paths as well as
sufficient and diversified training resources to help employees make
progress and grow together with Parkson.

We have designed a development path for employee's promotion by
level, including the employee level, the supervisor/team leader level, the
director level, the manager level, the deputy general manager level and the
general manager level. Meanwhile, we encourage employees' horizontal
development by allowing them to apply for job transfers among different
businesses and functions according to their individual will. Employees
will be promoted or transferred after passing the comprehensive skills
assessment and performance indicator assessment for the position at the
corresponding level.

To better motivate employees' working enthusiasm and creativity, the
Group continues to improve the performance evaluation mechanism.
In 2024, we further refined the process management of employee
performance appraisal by adding quarterly performance reviews and
requiring managers to pay more attention to employees' working status.
If managers detect any abnormalities in the work of their employees,
timely communication and feedback should be provided to them, and
measures should be taken to assist them in improving their performance
and achieving their performance targets. At the group level, the Human
Resources department would review the performance management of
each department from an organisational perspective to identify any
vulnerabilities in a timely manner, report them to the senior management
of the Group and promote the implementation of improvement approach.

RIE L RERRS
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In 2024, the Group updated the monthly incentive scheme for store
employees to further incentivise employees by optimising the major
assessment indicators. The Group encouraged each store to carry out
the selection of outstanding employees and offered cross-store learning
opportunities for key cultivation targets and distinguished employees.
By this means, we would help our talents to explore their potential and
facilitate their rapid growth.

The Group places a strong emphasis on delivering a various range of
internal and external training courses for staff at all levels, in order to
navigate the complex and evolving market and competitive landscape
together with our employees. At the same time, we have established an
internal instructor mechanism, whereby managers above the middle level
and business technicians can participate in the design, development and
delivery of internal training courses, including not only regular courses on
corporate culture, rules and regulations, fire safety, etc., but also courses on
professional and management knowledge and skills. As of the end of 2024,
there were approximately 220 instructors within the Group.

Case 2 :

Strategic
management
training for senior
executives of
Parkson Group in
China
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In July 2024, 52 senior executives from the Group's headquarters and regions attended a two-
day strategic training entitled "Astuteness & Resourcefulness - Strategic Thinking Formula”
in Shanghai. In the face of increasingly fierce competition in the market, the programme was
designed to help senior executives improve their strategic thinking and planning capabilities to
meet the challenges, accelerate transformation and create more opportunities.

TEINFETA - AEEETREE SR
«#m B BHESERN)BEEEN BHAR
= B RE B AR B RS AR B BE

BEABRATELBERS T BHMK
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Unlike the previous classroom training pattern, this programme integrated
learning with practice, enabling participants practising their learning
of methodology and tools in real cases. Through this programme, the
senior executives of each region generated preliminary ideas on strategic
transformation under market competition, and would apply what they have
learned to refine their analysis and planning to further form a complete
strategy for each region, thereby laying the foundation for the realisation
of the Group's strategic objectives.

Furthermore, Parkson stores have actively established extensive
collaborations with the local training schools, professional training
organisations and government departments to comprehensively meet the
diverse training demands of local stores in terms of compliance with laws
and requlations, safety assurance, knowledge and skill enhancement, and
team cooperation development.

Case Zf :

Introduction of
external resources
by Parkson

stores to carry
out diversified
training activities

BREZEMIES]
ASMNBEIR B
R’ % iEallEE)

of goods on online platforms.

B EBRREIIEE

e To build its own live-streaming sales team, Liupanshui Parkson introduced the Leve/ 4
Internet Marketing Operator Vocational Training from the Innovative Technology Vocational
Training School for professional training of live-streaming sales skills.

FNER VKB BE 5 | HE Al R A e B 2R 1 5 22 A B (0 A B B A SR B AR ZR 1 51 ) 0 LAT
SESHRHERBRSEN RARERHENERREIIRK-

® In collaboration with the local Human Resources and Social Security Bureau, Yueyang
Parkson organised relevant training courses to improve employees' skills in live-streaming

EEERAEMANERAERERSE UIRAEIR L FaEESERAE

RIE L RERRS
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e Kunming Parkson procured online professional training courses on operation, operational
growth logic and case analysis. Meanwhile, external law firm resources were introduced to
carry out the HR professionalism competence enhancement programme, so as to enable HR
personnel master the associated requirements in the process of enterprise transformation.

ERRBRRBR LEXERNIRE ABREEE B REBEARG DM
EE > SIASNBRMEGZRER HRANDBREZNEATRE  UEBIAS
BRMABZECEZESHHEFAER-
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In 2024, the proportion of the Group's employees trained was 76.13% and _ZE _F > ZEBE TN ZIILLF A
the total training hours for the year were 30,091 hours. 76.13% > 2 F 4B 535 51 BF B 7R30,091/ N\ B o
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Percentage of employees trained
by gender

58 2RI RN E TEEF)

60.4%

@ Vale @ Female
BHET ZMET

Average training hours completed per employee

by gender (hours/person)
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39.6%

Percentage of employees trained
by employee category
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@ Scnior management @ Middle management @ Basic level
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Average training hours completed per employee
by employee category (hours/person)
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Moreover, the Group encourages employees to acquire external
professional qualifications or receive continuing education, and support
them to persistently enhance their personal capabilities by organising
them to participate in training and examinations to obtain certificates,
reimbursing them for exam expenses and setting up rewards. For instance,
Qingdao Parkson reimbursed employees who obtained professional
qualifications for the relevant expenses. Yueyang Parkson and Nanning
Parkson have set up the /ncentive Measures for Acquisition of Title, Skill
and Academic Degree, which refer to corresponding incentive amounts for
the acquisition of different titles, skill levels and academic qualifications.

Safeguarding Employee's Health

The Group has formulated a sound occupational health and safety
management system. Through sustained perfection of fire safety
management, prevention and control of occupational hazards as well
as enhanced training on safety awareness, we have cast a safety line of
defence and effectively protect employees' health and safety.

The management policies related to work safety formulated and
implemented by the Group include:

1) Work Safety Training Policy
2) Production Safety Inspection Policy

3) Safety Management Policy of Place of Business, Equipment, and
Facilities

4) Personal Protective Equipment Provision and Management Policy

5) Accident Reporting and Handling Policy
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M AEEEE T EEINEIEEXER
HEURREEHE BEEBETS
MBINZEAESES RFZABEA R
ERERSETI WHETIFEREASE
Hefil EEARNETENEEERK
BENBRATURE , EHER BMER
BRERU(BANRE IR RE -BESH
BERWIE) BB BME  KHES
o U AREE REFFEETEE-

THEETH#E
AEBERI-—ETENBEREZEE
EER RMABEBRETSIHENZE2E
B -BECEMEURZEETHBCE
FT BERrEhg YETEEIN
BEREAZE-

AERE G E
EaE:

B Ay %2 A E AR B IR

1) (Z2EEBIFE)

2) (ERZzREHE)
3 (EEXESFA RENRENZE2ERE
HIED)

4 (FHhERARRBNEERE)

5) (Z2EESFHERENEESE)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT

79



80

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIF T RERRS

The Group is highly concerned about fire safety and continues to refine
the related management mechanism. Parkson has formulated the
Mandatory Provisions of Fire Safety Requirements for Engineering and
Property Management and required all stores to strictly comply with it.
At the same time, we have stipulated that the general manager of each
store is the first person responsible for fire safety, and stores are required
to set up professional fire safety management teams and voluntary fire
brigades to ensure fire safety. We also conduct monthly store-wide safety
inspection, and commission a professional third party to carry out testing
of the Group's fire safety system to ensure that the safety measures for
water, electricity and gas are in place, the fire alarm system is functioning
properly, and the fire exits are unobstructed, thus consolidating the
foundation for fire protection. In 2024, the Group further strengthened the
fire safety management standards by requiring each store to establish and
update the Fire Safety Key Point Record on a quarterly basis and to submit
the inspection record to the Group's Engineering and Property Department
at the end of each quarter for review. In addition, we had also included gas
leakage alarms and automatic shut-offs in our store inspection in 2024 to
effectively prevent potential fire hazards.

Employees engaged in hazardous duties and operators of special key areas
are required to obtain relevant certificates before work, including the
operation license for ascent operation, high voltage electrician certificate,
and fire safety certificate. Meanwhile, stores are equipped with labour
protective equipment, such as safety ropes, electrician's shoes, gloves, etc.,
to provide employees with adequate occupational safety protection.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%
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Adhering to the philosophy of “safety first, prevention foremost’, we
continue to strengthen employees' safety awareness by a variety of
training courses and drills. According to the Group's safety education
and training programme, each new employee must complete three levels
of safety training at company level, department level and crew level,
which includes the Group's safety production-related policies, basic
firefighting knowledge, the working environment and risk factors, the
use and maintenance of safety equipment and facilities, and safety and
occupational hygiene matters related to the position. In addition, we
improve employees’ response speed and ability to handle emergency
safety incidents through a number of regular activities such as safety
training for all employees, fire and emergency drills, health knowledge
lectures, field inspection together with property owners, and periodic safety
inspection. For newly-added equipment and facilities, we will organise
targeted skills training and assessment. We encourage employees to obtain
fire management qualification certificates and bear the corresponding
examination fees. Meanwhile, we also encourage employees to proactively
report any potential accidents or other unsafe factors they discover to deal
with safety hazards as early as possible.

In 2024, the Group recorded a total of 315 lost days due to work injury.
Over the past three years, there have been no fatalities resulting from
work-related accidents.

RIE L RERRS
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Fire evacuation drill at Qingdao Lion Mall

B BEERESH L REUR R

Fire safety training at Harbin Taipinggiao Parkson
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ENGAGING IN CHARITY AND PUBLIC WELFARE ACTIVITIES KB Am BITEE

The Group contributes to the society and always supports the charitable ZANEBONRHEE  BAFRFAZZOIE
and environmental initiatives with love and care. In accordance with HEEMHIBFREX - EEREFSTETHN(EE
the Parkson Group Charity and Public Welfare Activities Management SEBRZEZH AT EBEIEGIE)  FHFIBEMR
Policy established by the Group, we actively organise and participate #A&FM2EBELEB - HERKE 1B
in various community and public welfare activities, including cultural IBRZE -HHEB LT EBHEANRE
communication, community service, environmental protection, knowledge @R A EB c — T _MF > KK
dissemination and social assistance. In 2024, we vigorously carried out BIBRIIEEBRRHZBRERE NG EH -

and enthusiastically participated in various charitable and public welfare

activities.

Case Zfl : N
, During the Earth Day in 2024, Parkson partnered with stores nationwide to launch a
Parkson's Earth

D A “Flowers in Bloom" charity event. Consumers were encouraged to participate in a succulent
ay even

X planting activity in stores with their empty skincare containers, which helped to raise their
BRI E A environmental awareness.

TETMEMIKAMSE BREESFIEMFREASIEEBTTER T HE
BERETEEmTERIFIESESNEELS BIOHEENREEH
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4 Case Zf :
During the Earth Day event, Datong Yongtai Parkson emphasised the concept of resource

recycling. By offering gift exchanges and coupons, people were encouraged to rediscover idle
old items from forgotten corners for recycling. Together with its customers, Datong Yongtai
Parkson is committed to practising circular economy.

Datong Yongtai
Parkson's
initiative to

promote recycling
IR HEBHE > KA B BRKRERFBERAIFENBNES BRERRIRE K EE R EE

mBEFNAID ZRAMRHENEY RRERESHAZENZELR &7 SEEEEL
BEREBLE BFERPHAREBTRERIREE

Case 2 : N
Parkson cares deeply about the community and supports the assistance efforts of grassroots

party organisations. In January 2024, Nanning Parkson held a "Joining Hands for Good Deeds"
charity bazaar event. The event successfully raised funds through charity sales and donated
RMB30,000 to Zhelai Village, Zhelang Township, Multinational Autonomous County of Longlin,
MEERBME which is a target area for paired assistance by Guangxi Radio and Television. The donation was
LEREED used for the village's nighttime lighting project. The 16 charity streetlights purchased have
brought convenience and brightness to 396 villagers from 98 households in Zhelai Village.

BEERORARD YEHEEEASANES I - _E_NE—FB HEERERT
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Charity bazaar
event hosted by
Nanning Parkson
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Case ZEf : N
In May 2024, coinciding with the promotion week for the 34th National Disability Day, Harbin

Taipinggiao Parkson, in collaboration with caring individuals from all walks of life, visited
Liaoyuan School and held a "Share a Better Life with Love for People with Disabilities” donation
for People with event. Harbin Taipinggiao Parkson donated a large quantity of supplies such as sportswear,
Disabilities” folding beds, milk, and flowers to the school. At the end of the event, Parkson employees and
donation event students crafted round fans, a symbol of harmony and fulfilment, using them as a medium to
2 0B5E = spread love and kindness, joining hands with all parties to create a better life.
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“Share a Better
Life with Love
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/ Case 24l :
In November 2024, led by the Hebei Charity Joint Foundation, Zhangjiakou Parkson and the 5
Old Clothes

Zhangjiakou Charity Volunteers Federation jointly launched a "Old Clothes Recycling for a R ling f
Warm Winter" public welfare event. In just seven days, nearly 10 tonnes of old clothes were V\fcyc I\:]Vg tor"a
. . . . . rm Winter
collected. These clothes will subsequently be sent to the Hebei Charity Joint Foundation for a e
. . - . . . . . event
further processing, such as rigorous disinfection, cleaning, and careful sorting. Finally, they will o o
be distributed to vulnerable groups. EARLEX
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The Board (the "Board") of directors (the "Directors") of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group") presents this report to the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders") together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
3 August 2005, acts as an investment company. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the principal activities of the Group are the operation and
management of a network of department stores, shopping malls, outlets
and supermarkets mainly in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), and
the provision of credit services in Malaysia. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2024, which includes an analysis of the Group's performance using
financial key performance indicators are set out in the section headed
"Management Discussion and Analysis" on pages 10 to 15 of this report.
The financial risk management and fair value measurements of the Group
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may face, particulars of
important events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year, and an indication of likely future development
in the Company's business are set out in the section headed "Chairman's
Statement” on pages 4 to 8 of this report. A discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and relationships with its key stakeholders and
investors are set out in the section headed "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 41 to 84 of this report. An analysis of the
Group's performance indicators are set out in the section headed “Financial
Highlights" on page 9 of this report. The compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Group is set out in this
Directors' report. The reviews form part of this statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 116 of this report.

FIXED ASSETS

Changes on the Group's fixed assets are disclosed on note 11 of the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil). The Company declared and paid
an interim dividend of RMB0.02 (2023: RMB0.01) in cash per share.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital for the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2024
and as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

Non-executive Director
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Datuk Koong Lin Loong

Details of the profile of each member of the Board are set out in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 16 to
21 of this report.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and Yan Ming Kim, Robert shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiary corporations, which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2024, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, the Directors were not aware of any
non-compliance by the Company with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Company.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors were interested in any business apart from
the Company's business, which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision as defined in the Companies Ordinance
was in force for the benefit of the Directors. The Company has taken out
and maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential losses
or liabilities which the Directors or officers may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of their duties of their office during the year ended 31
December 2024.

EQUITY LINK AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFQ")) which will be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which any such Director or Chief
Executive is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required to be entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were set out below:

(a) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company:

EERESITHRABRKN KRB
P& 197 B9 1 28 B 3%k

A CE_NE+__A=+—H ' &cATE
ERESTEHABERARAT I E T HEHE
B (EEREBHERBEEG (1585
EE51)) BIBRID ~ FBRERR D K/ S (EHEE
GRBERME) F  HEREDSRAER
BIEEXVER B 7R 58D BB B G 2~ A B K Hb
RN ERRXE (BEREESRAE
BHANERRXEINEHEEARS T
AEWEFIHEFREENERRRE) ;
HBLASATREZTSERIPEERMSE
3EMBEFEENS M ETRXAE ; o
RIBZESTRIBES TR AN T KB
PR

(a) ﬂﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁéﬁ:@ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬂﬁ@ﬁ%
B .

Number and Approximate
Class of  Percentage of
Name of Securities Shareholding
Nature of Interest Name of Registered Owner Beneficial Owner (Note 1) (Note 2)
EFHE G HERELY
)&Vl Bt
HmtE FnRFE AL BEmEEALE (PF3E1) (P¥zE2)
Corporate interest PRG Corporation Limited PRG Corporation 1,438,300,000 54.59%
NE ("PRG Corporation”) ordinary shares
1,438,300,000
B im R
Corporate interest East Crest International Limited East Crest 9,970,000 0.38%
NEEm ("East Crest") ordinary shares
9,970,000
g & i R
NOTES: Wit
1. Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan 1. R EEERERNEEFEHE

Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, through their interests and a
series of companies in which they have a substantial interest,
are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-
third of the voting power at general meetings of Parkson Holdings
Berhad ("PHB"). Since PHB is entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of 100% of the voting power at general meeting of PRG
Corporation through East Crest, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed
to be interested in both the 1,438,300,000 Shares held by PRG
Corporation and the 9,970,000 Shares held by East Crest in the
Company.

2. Based on the issued and paid-up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2024.
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i AL IRIBE S MG RG]
HMH R A FPRG CorporationFf ¥
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(b)

Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of

the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

Name of

Associated Corporation

b AR

PHB

East Crest

Puncak Pelita Sdn. Bhd.
Parkson Properties Holdings
Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Investment

Holdings Co., Ltd.

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Corporate Code Sdn. Bhd.

PRG Corporation

Smart Spectrum Limited

Nature of Interest

EmftE

Beneficial interest and
corporate interest

BERER
A

Corporate interest
REED

Corporate interest

NG5

Corporate interest

PNGIL: 5

Corporate interest

PNGIL: 5

Corporate interest

NG5

Corporate interest

NG 5

Corporate interest

NG 5

Corporate interest

NG 5

Name of
Registered Owner

BEAANGE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse,
Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha
alias Chan Chow Har
directly, and through
a series of controlled
corporations

R EBERERA
EEENERNER
B REB-RIIRE
=

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

DIRECTORS REPORT
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b) HMEEEERNAERRBBER (E

B

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BnEAANLH

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse,
Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha
alias Chan Chow Har
directly, and through
a series of controlled
corporations

REEEERERA
EEENERNE
B RBB—RHRE
#E

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

Number and

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
iyl

626,917,128
ordinary shares
626,917,128
R EER

1,600,000,000
ordinary shares
1,600,000,000

R E B

2 ordinary shares
R BB

2 ordinary shares
R BB

2 ordinary shares
WEER

1 ordinary share
1REER

2 ordinary shares
R BB

1 ordinary share
1REER

1 ordinary share
1REER

ERBERPERG) REAPHLEF

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

54.56%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Approximate
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
Fickad {5 RS
AR HE @ 8 EztE BEnHEAALE KR BAE
Serbadagang Holdings Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 2 ordinary shares 100%
Sdn. Bhd. G35 IREBR
Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 100 ordinary shares 100%
G35 1008 & 2 i
Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Beneficial interest and ~ Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and  Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and 458,433,300 68.03%
corporate interest through East Crest through East Crest ordinary shares
BaakAg#n AREEERKEBLt ANEEERKE B 458,433,300
Crest Crest R iE
Parkson Properties Hanoi Corporate interest Parkson Properties Holdings  Parkson Properties Holdings 1 ordinary share 100%
Co., Ltd. AR kR Co, Ltd. Co., Ltd. 1REBR
Parkson TSN Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment Parkson Vietnam Investment 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co, Ltd. UNGIL Holdings Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. R B
Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
G35 Limited Limited IREBR
Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
G35 Limited Limited IREBR
Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Prime Yield Holdings 2,000,000 100%
NEER Limited Limited ordinary shares
2,000,000
REER
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Name of

Associated Corporation

bR

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

PT. Tozy Sentosa
(Put into bankruptcy on
17 May 2021)

PT. Tozy Sentosa
(RZZBZ—F51A
+LHESKE)

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Nature of Interest

EmftE

Corporate interest

ABER

Corporate interest

AR kR

Corporate interest

L E

Corporate interest

L E

DIRECTORS REPORT
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Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RS
BAE

Number and

Class of Securities
Fikzd (=
KR

Name of
Beneficial Owner

Name of
Registered Owner

BaEAANDE

2 ordinary shares 100%
(S6D)
WREER Fn)

Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Parkson Retail Asia Limited

1 ordinary share
(MYR)
1REER
(MEH)

45,000 100%
Series A (in aggregate)
common shares 100%
45,000 (B3t

AR BB

Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd. Centro Retail Pte. Ltd. 5,000
Series A

common shares

5,000

RARTIEER

30,355,850 100%
Series B
preference shares
30,355,850
RBRIIBER

Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Parkson Retail Asia Limited

82,000,002 100%
ordinary shares

82,000,002

R iER

Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Parkson Retail Asia Limited

1 ordinary share 100%
(S6D)
REBR ()

Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Parkson Retail Asia Limited

1 ordinary share
(MYR)
1REER
(MEH)
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Approximate
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
Fickad {5 RS
AR HE @ 8 EztE BEnHEAALE KR BAE
Parkson Yangon Company Corporate interest Parkson Retail Asia Limited  Parkson Retail Asia Limited 1,900,000 100%
Limited UNGIL ordinary shares (in aggregate)
1,900,000 100%
REBR (B3t
Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. ~ Parkson Myanmar Co,, Pte. 100,000
Ltd. Ltd. ordinary shares
100,000
REBR
Parkson HBT Properties Corporate interest Parkson TSN Holdings Co.,  Parkson TSN Holdings Co., 2,100,000 100%
Co., Ltd. NEER Ltd. Ltd. capital (USD)
2 7%2,100,000
(%)
Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. 2 ordinary shares 100%
G35 WEER
Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. 2 ordinary shares 100%
G35 WEER
True Excel Investments Corporate interest Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. 1 ordinary share 100%
Limited G35 REBR
Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.  Corporate interest Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. 7,000,000 100%
UNGIL ordinary shares
7,000,000
REBR
Ombrello Resources Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd.  Prestasi Serimas 457,000 100%
(Dissolved on 10 February ‘A% Sdn. Bhd. ordinary shares
2025) 457,000
MZ2ZRFEZA+H REBR
sEiH)
Parkson SGN Co., Ltd. Corporate interest Parkson Corporation Sdn.  Parkson Corporation Sdn. 4,500,000 100%
NSIL: 5 Bhd. Bhd. capital (USD)
274,500,000
(%)
Parkson Cambodia Holdings ~ Corporate interest Parkson Corporation Sdn.  Parkson Corporation Sdn. 1 ordinary share 100%
Co., Ltd. NEET Bhd. Bhd. REBR
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Name of

Associated Corporation

bR

Parkson Edutainment World

Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Haiphong Co., Ltd.

Parkson Unlimited Beauty
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trends Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Private Label
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trading (Vietnam)
Company Limited

Solid Gatelink Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Nature of Interest
EEUE

Corporate interest

ABER

Corporate interest
GIE: 3

Corporate interest

AR kR

Corporate interest

AR kR

Corporate interest
G35

Corporate interest

ABED

Corporate interest

L E

Corporate interest
GIE: 3

Corporate interest

AR kR

Name of
Registered Owner

BaEAANDE

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

DIRECTORS REPORT
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn.

Bhd.

Approximate

Number and  Percentage of

Class of Securities

Fickzd =
gl

1,000,000
ordinary shares
1,000,000
R g iER

61,000,000
ordinary shares
61,000,000
R g iER

30,000,920
capital (USD)

F% 7530,000,920
(%)

29,600,000
ordinary shares
29,600,000
R g iER

17,000,000
ordinary shares
17,000,000
R iER

15,000,000
ordinary shares
15,000,000
R iE R

300,000
capital (USD)
& 7%300,000

(&)

33,400,000
ordinary shares
33,400,000
g iE R

10,340,000
capital (USD)

}% 710,340,000
&)

Shareholding
friERA
BAL

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Approximate
Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding
Fickad {5 R HE R4S
HEEE AR femitE B EEALE R BALE
Parkson Myanmar Investment Corporate interest Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. ~ Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. 2,100,000 70%
Company Pte. Ltd. NEER Ltd. Ltd. ordinary shares
2,100,000
REER
Festival City Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.  Idaman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd. 500,000 100%
NEER ordinary shares
500,000
REER
Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd. ~ Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd. 300,000 100%
NEER ordinary shares
300,000
REER
True Excel Investments Corporate interest True Excel Investments True Excel Investments 1,000 100%
(Cambodia) Co,, Ltd. NEER Limited Limited ordinary shares
1,000
REER
Parkson (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. ~ Corporate interest Parkson Cambodia Holdings  Parkson Cambodia Holdings 1,000 100%
NEER Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. ordinary shares
1,000
REER
Parkson Vietnam Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd. ~ Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd. 100,000 100%
Management Services Co, ‘A B capital (USD)
Ltd. 2 7%100,000
(%)
Myanmar Parkson Company  Corporate interest Parkson Myanmar Parkson Myanmar 300,000 100%
Limited NGIL: o Investment Company Pte.  Investment Company Pte. ordinary shares
Ltd. Ltd. 300,000
REER
Dimensi Andaman Sdn. Bhd. ~ Corporate interest Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. ~ Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd. 54,019,999 100%
NEER ordinary shares
54,019,999
REER
NOTE: B 5E -
Based on the relevant information of the respective companies as at 31 MRZE2ZM&E+"“A=+—HBHEA
December 2024. SIEAE R AR L
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(©)  Short positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of () FAHHTEEEHRNALTBE LR (E
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO): ERBSRBERA) RAF K
=i

Approximate
Percentage of

Name of Name of Name of Number and  Shareholding
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities (Note)
R4
BAE
AR HEE 8 e EHEAEALE EREAALE A RER (Fh3E)
PHB Corporate interest Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 40,000,142 3.48%
NE)ET together with his spouse, together with his ordinary shares
Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias  spouse, Puan Sri Chan 40,000,142
Chan Chow Har directly, Chau Ha alias Chan REBER
and through a series of Chow Har directly, and
controlled corporations through a series of

RHEBERERHER controlled corporations
BRERNEER RE AREEERERH

B—RHZEEE FefB A E 2Rk E
BB REB—377
ZEEE
NOTE: P E :
Based on the total number of issued shares of PHB as at 31 December 2024. PHBR —_E-_MWE+_-_A=+—HH

BETRMBBAEE

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B R E*&EB AR AH 95



96

DIRECTORS REPORT
EFEWREE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save from the above disclosure, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2024 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiary corporations or fellow subsidiary corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT TEREMNIRMRAEAMRKRGOIER
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES B

As at 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the W _Z _NE+_H=+—H BEEEF
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, 41U TF&ZR AL (LR ATESHRSIT
had interests and short positions in the Company's shares which fallstobe B AE) RAEAASRMD T HEAEERZ LKA
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Y ZBiR #3535 & BB E I8 G EXVEP E2 KR E3
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: DEEARE] MR PIIEEE !

Percentage of
Shareholding

(direct or

Name of Shareholder Long/Short Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)

BRESL

’ (B

fRR%ME/ 4 e/ XE EmitE RIPHAE )

PHB Long Corporate interest 1,448,270,000 54.97%
e NElET (Note 1)
(1)

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Long Interest of spouse 1,448,270,000 54.97%
Chan Chow Har 50 ey (Note 2)
BEERUE (FizE2)

PRG Corporation Long Beneficial interest 1,438,300,000 54.59%
He Ban (Note 1)
(FyzE1)

Chan Kin Long Corporate interest 955,975,517 36.28%
3 e UNGIL i (Note 3)
(Ff¥z£3)

Argyle Street Management Long Corporate interest 955,975,517 36.28%
Holdings Limited 50 NEER (Note 3)
(E=)

Argyle Street Management Limited Long Investment manager 955,975,517 36.28%
e REke (Note 3)
(Ff¥z£3)

ASM Connaught House Long Corporate interest 940,584,517 35.70%
General Partner Il Limited 5} NElEGE (Note 3)
(Ff¥z£3)

ASM Connaught House Fund I LP Long Corporate interest 940,584,517 35.70%
wa NEER (Note 3)
(Fiz23)
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Percentage of
Shareholding

(direct or

Name of Shareholder Long/Short Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)

KRB

‘ (B

BREHE/ 4 e/ %8 REmitE Rin&E %)

Bishan Street Limited ("Bishan") Long Beneficial interest and security interest 933,845,517 35.44%
e EnniERgEs (Note 3)
(B

Wang Hung Roger Long Beneficial interest and trustee 429,935,500 16.32%
£ 78 ERERTHA (Note 4
(MiE4)

Wang Hsu Vivine H Long Interest of spouse and beneficiary of a trust 429,935,500 16.32%
ITHEE = R MEERAA (Note 5)
(P zEs)

GEICO Holdings Limited Long Corporate interest 421,646,346 16.00%
wa NEER (Note 6)
(B

Golden Eagle International Retail Long Beneficial interest 421,646,346 16.00%
Group Limited B EnEn (Note 6)
(Fize)

Wang Dorothy S L Long Bgr]eficiary of a trust 421,646,346 16.00%

5} EREREA
Wang Janice S Y Long Bgr]eficiary of a trust 421,646,346 16.00%
5} EREREA
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NOTES:

PRG Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which is in turn
wholly-owned by PHB. By virtue of the SFO, PHB is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by PRG Corporation in the Company.

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har is the wife of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and is deemed to be interested in 1,448,270,000 Shares which
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock Exchange's
website, Mr. Chan Kin is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
several corporations which he directly or indirectly controls. Out of these
955,975,517 Shares, 9,645,517 Shares are interests in cash-settled unlisted
derivatives.

Bishan and ASM Connaught House Fund LP beneficially owned 9,645,517
and 11,565,500 Shares respectively. Bishan also held 924,200,000 securities
interest on the Shares among the 933,845,517 Shares it is interested in.

Bishan was held indirectly by Argyle Street Management Limited as the
Investment Manager through ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP, ASM
Connaught House Fund LP and several other controlled corporations. ASM
Connaught House General Partner Il Limited and ASM Connaught House
General Partner Limited were two wholly controlled corporations of Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Mr. Chan Kin has 100% control over
Argyle Street Management Limited through his 50.43% control over Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kin, Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited and Argyle Street Management Limited
were deemed to be interested in an aggregate holding of 955975517
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

The capacities of Wang Hung Roger in holding the 429,935,500 Shares
(Long position) were as to 8,289,154 Shares (Long position) as beneficial
owner and 421,646,346 Shares (Long position) as trustee.

Wang Hsu Vivine H is the wife of Wang Hung Roger and is deemed to be
interested in 429,935,500 Shares held by Wang Hung Roger.

Golden Eagle International Retail Group Limited is wholly-owned by GEICO
Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, GEICO Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Limited in the Company.
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BishanFHArgyle Street Management Limited
(EAKREKIE) FBASM Connaught
House Fund Il LP~ ASM Connaught House
Fund LPRBIREMBZELEB#ETHE
ASM Connaught House General Partner Il
Limited52ASM Connaught House General
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Street Management Holding Limited¥H&
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As at 31 December 2024, as far as the Directors are aware, each of the WK_E_NE+_F=+—H"> TFE%FE
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, X' U TFEMUA L (LIEEATEEHE

was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value TTBZAE)EET;F%???#@jK%@ﬁZD/\
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at (AT BRIN FERIEERI PR A (BEFT #EF] AT

general meeting of a member of the Group other than the Company:

Substantial Shareholder

FERR

Wuxi Supply and Marketing Group Co., Ltd.
("Wuxi Supply and Marketing") '

Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise Co., Ltd.
("Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise”) 2
EMNBBEEBRAR (EMNEMBTEE))?

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Co., Ltd.
("Shanghai Nine Sea Industry")

EBNEBEXERAR (LEBABEX)

E-Land Fashion Hong Kong Limited
("E-Land Hong Kong")
SREFBAERAR ((KSEEFE])

E-Land Hong Kong
SRERHE

Koh Wee Lit

Bernice Cheong Nyuk Siew
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EEMBERTRRRAG LRE) EE10%
L B

Percentage of

Equity Interest

Member of the Group Held
HERE

TEBRE AR Aot

Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. 40%
("Wuxi Parkson")

B =—ERESERAE
(ME#HBEE)

Guizhou Shengi Parkson Retail Development 40%
Co., Ltd. ("Guizhou Parkson")
EMNETEREEERFRAT
(TENE )

Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties 71%
Management Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Lion
Property")?

LEBABERMYEEEBRAE
(TEBERmzE)) 3

Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. 51%
("Parkson Newcore")

BRMTEREEE (E8) BRAE
(TEEARPIRD)

Nanchang Parkson Newcore Retail Ltd. 51%
["Nanchang Newcore")

(r@%%ﬂ%ﬂ)
Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 40.55%
Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 16.67%



NOTES:

Wuxi Supply and Marketing owns 40% of the equity interest of Wuxi
Parkson.

(i) Guizhou Shengi Enterprise, owns 40% of the equity interest of
Guizhou Parkson.

(if) Zhang Pei, Zhang Zhi Jun and Zhang Ya, own 30%, 40% and 30%
of the equity interest in Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise, respectively,
representing a 12%, 16% and 12% indirect equity interest in
Guizhou Parkson.

Shanghai Lion Property is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established
under the laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and
Exonbury Limited (“Exonbury"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
According to public record, Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and Exonbury owns
54.79% and 45.21% equity interest in Shanghai Lion Property respectively.
Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the Group are entitled to 71% and 29% of
the voting rights in the board of Shanghai Lion Property respectively under
a mutual agreement between both parties. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry
and the Group are entitled to 65% and 35% of the distributable profits of
Shanghai Lion Property respectively. On 6 November 2024, Exonbury and
Shanghai Nine Sea entered into a capital reduction agreement, pursuant
to which the parties agreed that with effect from 30 November 2024,
Exonbury exited its investment by withdrawing all its capital paid to
Shanghai Lion Property.

The capital reduction process of Shanghai Lion Property is still ongoing.

Parkson Newcore owns 100% of the equity interest in Nanchang Newcore.
E-Land Hong Kong owns 51% of the equity interest in Parkson Newcore,
and thus E-Land Hong Kong is indirectly interested in 51% of the equity
interest in Nanchang Newcore.
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Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2024, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was otherwise
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the financial year 2024 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2024.

No contract of significance was entered into between any member of
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries corporations or contract of significance for the provision of
services to any member of the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisted as at the end of the financial year 2024 or during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OR CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report,
there was no discloseable non-exempted connected transaction under the
Listing Rules.

None of the "Related Party Transactions" as disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. To
the extent of the above "Related Party Transactions” constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition was entered into between Lion Diversified
Holdings Berhad ("LDHB") and the Company on 10 November 2005
(supplemented and amended on 18 September 2007), under which LDHB
has undertaken not to engage, other than through the existing managed
stores, in any business of the retail trade in merchandise in department
stores, supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, specialty
merchandise stores, supercentres and category killers in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme undertaken
by LDHB, LDHB had agreed to consolidate most of its retail business
(including most of its existing managed stores in the PRC) into PHB. In
light thereof, PHB has entered into an identical deed of non-competition
with the Company on 18 September 2007 with respect to those managed
stores acquired from LDHB. In conjunction therewith, LDHB has granted an
indemnity in favour of the Company which will be invoked if PHB fails to
fulfill its obligation under the aforesaid deed of non-competition dated 18
September 2007.

The principal businesses of LDHB are manufacturing and selling computer
and related products, developing property, investment holding and others.
The principal business of PHB is operation of department stores and PHB
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Both PHB and LDHB are members of The Lion
Group which is ultimately controlled by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
hence, LDHB is a connected person of the Company. Save for Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem who has material interest in the aforesaid transaction,
none of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid transaction
and need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof. Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem is deemed interested in the aforesaid transaction and has been
abstained from voting in any of the resolutions in relation to the aforesaid
transaction.
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TRADEMARK LICENCE AGREEMENT

A trademark licence agreement (the "Licence Agreement”) was entered into
between Shanghai Lion Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) and Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. on 1 June 2020, pursuant
to which Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. granted to Shanghai Lion Investment
an exclusive licence to use certain trademarks, including the “Parkson” and
“Xtra" trademarks at the licence fee of RMB30,000 per store per annum,
valid until 2035.

Parkson Services Pte. Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which
in turn is wholly-owned by PHB (and hence an associate of PHB) and its
principal activity is intellectual property holding. None of the directors has
a material interest in the Licence Agreement and needs to be abstained
from voting in respect thereof.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i1) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 6 December 2021, the Company as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement (the "Facility Agreement”) in respect of a syndication term loan
facility with an aggregate amount of up to HK$2,700,000,000 (the "Loan
Facility") with a syndicate of banks, as lenders (the “Lenders") with the term
of 36 months commencing from the first drawdown date. Pursuant to the
Facility Agreement, Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (together with his wife, Puan
Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, who is deemed to be interested in
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem's interests in the Company) shall remain to be the
largest ultimate beneficial owner of the Company. In the event that Tan
Sri Cheng Heng Jem (together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har) ceases to be the largest ultimate beneficial owner of the
Company, the facility available will be cancelled and the Company shall be
obliged to pay all outstanding amounts immediately.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of reserve available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB30.8 million (2023: approximately RMB272.8 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands although there
are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
employees. The remuneration payable to employees includes salaries and
allowance/bonuses.

The Group has also made contributions to staff-related plans or funds in
accordance with the local regulations of the PRC: pension plans, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance.

The Group has been advised by its legal advisers on PRC law that the above
arrangements are in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers
and suppliers accounted for more than 5% of its turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2024. None of the directors or shareholders who
owned 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2024 or any of their respective associates held any interest
in any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report" under this annual report.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the Company's announcement of 7 January 2025 pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(2) and 13.51(2)(1) of the Listing Rules and related post-
enquiries from the Stock Exchange, it has come to the Company's attention
that as a result of the Company's misunderstanding of the timing of
disclosure obligations arising from the voluntary dissolution of a PRC
company in which the Company's director held directorship, the Company
had delayed in compliance with Rule 13.51 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has took remedial action and clarified the timing of its
disclosure obligations with internal departments, ensuring that any internal
notifications regarding similar situations in the future will be made in a
timely manner, and has further taken steps to ensure that the Company
will consult professional advice and prepare documentation in advance so
that publications are made as soon as practicable where required. Such
remedial actions had been implemented with immediate effect.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by
Messrs Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (“GTHK"). At the forthcoming
annual general meeting, GTHK will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the
forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint GTHK as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Parkson Retail Group Limited
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Executive Director & Chairman
20 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BINZHENRTE

° GrantThornton
#[E

To the shareholders of Parkson Retail Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group")
set out on pages 116 to 264, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

MBEEZER

WA ZHENREE (B)

FEEZEE
HRELEFEERBEESHNERIE &
AEAHGEMBRERNBEZERASEEN
FHE-ZSFEREEESTERELRAER
BRERENESHHNERNERTE
TRE EEIFeHREFFREHERY
ER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENERNMAREZER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment ("PPE") and right-of-use assets
WE G ERZRE (% BERRE) R EHEEE R E

The Group operates department stores mainly in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"). Having considered the loss-making
performance of certain stores and impairment indicators for
other non-financial assets, management performed impairment
testing with respective to the assets with a net carrying amount of
RMB2,067,444,000 as at 31 December 2024, of which impairment
amounting to RMB80,646,000 was provided in the current year.
EEETENPFEARENRA (THHE)) KEEEIEF
BIETHENBEERERAMIFTHMEERNRETR
EEEREEETREAA R _MF+_A=+—
B REFES AR 2,067,444,00070 > EFARFEHRR
B A\ K 180,646,0007T °

In performing impairment testing with respective to the loss-
making performance stores, management assumptions have to
be used in the underlying cash flow forecasts. The assumptions
include expectations for gross margin, growth rates and discount
rates, as well as the overall market and economic conditions in the
PRC.

AR EABBPISETRENSE  E12E A TERERE
HEREFEER ZSHRIREBEHEN X BRI KLI
WL PR AR IS EEHER T TER -

In performing impairment testing with respective to the
construction in progress under PPE with impairment indicators,
management engaged an independent qualified professional valuer
(the "Valuer") to measure the recoverable amount of relevant non-
current asset based on the fair value less costs to disposal to which
asset belong.

THBARERRME -BREARREBETNTNTELIRETH
BARAR EEERFELSEEREELEN (MLERM)
RIFEEFMBNANBEREENATERRAIFRBEE
Bl

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the Group's policies and procedures to
identify triggering events for potential impairment
of assets related to the underperforming stores and
management's assessment on impairment indicators.
EENEXREFAEERRE SEEAUMH
HolEBRAEBRENENETEERESH
ZBRERF > REEEBEFRFTERT
fiie
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

WIZHENRES (B)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

MEEZER

FRESEE (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESNERNAEREZER

Impairment of property, plant and equipment ("PPE") and right-of-use assets (continued)

YE BERXE ((YFE BERRE) UREHESEHRE (&)

In view of the significance of the amount, the level of judgement
exercised by management and use of estimates, we consider this as
a key audit matter.

EREENERE -BEEMMHENEE RGSHERA
EERILRA—BRAREREE

The Company's disclosure for impairment of PPE and right-of-
use assets are included in notes 3, 11 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRNEME -BMERSEBEUREAES ERENKESN
HRAEMFIRMEEI 11K130

In respect of the impairment assessments related
to the underperforming stores, we have engaged
our internal independent expert to assess the
reasonableness of assumptions made by management,
evaluated the reasonableness of methodologies,
growth rates and discount rates used by the Group,
and compared the key assumptions used in the
impairment assessment to the historical data of the
Group and the external data in the similar industry. We
have also tested management sensitivity analysis of
the key assumptions to ascertain that selected adverse
changes to key assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of cash-generating units to materially
exceed the recoverable amount. We also evaluated the
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
about the key assumptions used in the determination
of the recoverable amount of the related cash-
generating units in accordance with |AS 36.
MAEREERNEFIENRENEMS  EEE
ZEANBUERTEHEEEMMERINSIE
Mo Wsth ESEBEFANGE BERERITIR
KRG IEM > WA 728 (8 5T & 2 PR 152 A RO A 58
fReefl SEEELHBRMBLITERNIN R
BETLHER - EETAREEENARRKRRF
) BY SRR 0 47 > LUKRE TE BE SR MR 5% BY BF 0 1~ A
BEAGENRETELBUZREEANRELBS
Al [ElE R - SN BEFRIBEIR & 5t 285636
R e BRENEMECHABRSES
BB (i ] Y [o] < RE B P AR RA SR R R RO 2 28 o

In respect of the impairment assessment related to the
construction in progress under PPE with impairment
indicators, we have obtained and inspected the
valuation report prepared by the Valuer. We have
evaluated the independence, competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the Valuer. We have obtained an
understanding from the Valuer about the valuation
methodologies, significant unobservable inputs and
critical judgements and estimates on key inputs and
data used in the valuation. We have also assessed the
reasonableness and appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the Valuer.

MBEMBRETRYE - BERKBETHE
BIRENBETEMS ESENEIRER
HEMARRANGERS & FENGEEMR
BN B ENRERM - BEZEREER
BRENGRMLER L - EXTERE AME
Fe 33 1t {8 F1 P A3 RO BT 522 B A\ S50 e BB RO R 62
H B Fe (i 5t RV IR AR - B F 75 B ST & LB TP A
HEHEZEEBEREE .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

MEEZER

Impairment of goodwill

BE R E

WA ZHENREE (B)

FRELEE (B

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESNERNAERIEZEER

The Group is required to perform an impairment assessment
of goodwill at least annually. Management performed annual
impairment testing with respective to the goodwill with a net
carrying amount of RMB1,536,408,000 as at 31 December 2024,
of which impairment amounting to RMB100,275,000 was provided
in the current year. Management's assessment process is complex
and highly judgemental and is based on assumptions, in particular
those relating to gross margin, growth rates and discount rates,
as well as the overall market and economic conditions. Given the
significance of the amount, the sensitivity of the assumptions and
the level of judgement involved, we consider this as a key audit
matter.

EEESFELRET —RBEAET G -EEEMN
T NE+ZRB=+—RHKEFEMS AKRT1,536408,000
THEBETFERERNR  ERAFESRBERBA
R #5100,275,0007C - EXEE R EBEEERM  FBIFHK
EHEHERSENRRIFL LEZARENXR - BRXK
FIRENBRZUARBETSREBER T - ERNTENEKR
M oRENHERERE I RNFEGRRREE > EZFRILRERS—
TR ELE A

The Company's disclosures for impairment of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

EATBHERENRESRNIGESMBREMEIR14°

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
assessing the reasonableness of assumptions made
by management, evaluating the appropriateness of
valuation methodologies, growth rates and discount
rate used by the Group, and comparing the key
assumptions used in the impairment assessment to the
historical data of the Group and the external data in
the similar industry. We have also involved our internal
valuation expert in evaluating the appropriateness of
valuation methodologies and discount rate used by the
Group. We have also tested management sensitivity
analysis of the key assumptions to ascertain that
selected adverse changes to key assumptions would
not cause the carrying amount of cash-generating
units to materially exceed the recoverable amount.
We also evaluated the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements about the key assumptions used
in the determination of the recoverable amount of the
related cash-generating units in accordance with IAS
36.
EENEREFBEEETRRESFTHEEE
FrfER=NEEE . SEEMMANGEER A
BEXRFRR BT RENTERAEAN
FRExRE SEEELHBEMEMUITERN
IMABETLER -EFTREFABGEEER
H SEEFANGERERITRENEE
EOTE -EFT AR EEERARRRED
BY B RN IE 70 A > LUKE TE R BB (R s Y 26 0 1 A1) &
EFrREERRETEL BN ZREEREBEBA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

WIZHENRES (B)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2024 annual report of the
Company, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (CONTINUED)
BB ENREE (R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safequards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

20 February 2025

Ng Ka Kong
Practising Certificate No.: P06919
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
“7r (=] EI:E 13,%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2024 2023
—EME

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
= AR¥TT AEET T

REVENUES g 4 3,237,153 3,645,382
Other operating revenues HAna& Sl a5 4 489,499 532,108
Total operating revenues S AR R 3,726,652 4,177,490
OPERATING EXPENSES RER%
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories REEMKEFEEEH (1,562,074) (1,835,698
Staff costs BIA (479,358) (485,837)
Depreciation and amortisation =08 £ (498,474) (558,491)
Rental expenses AL (80,383) (90,132)
Other operating expenses HM& =Y (861,493) (701,851)
Total operating expenses B 48R (3,481,782) (3,672,009)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS REFH 244,870 505,481
Finance income RREUA 6 38,590 55,367
Finance costs RMENE 6 (445,897) (498,117)
Share of profits of: FE(L )

- A joint venture —5EbE - 11,149

- Associates A= U/N=| 16 14,508 12,767
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX WAl (B548) /F8 5 (147,929) 86,647
Income tax expense FrgMmmx 8 (26,596) (16,145)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE BB A (174,525) 70,502
Attributable to: NTIEE RS .

- Owners of the Company i UNCIIZI=PN (174,759) 66,413

- Non-controlling interests —JEER S 234 4,089

(174,525) 70,502

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AT L EBIERZEEA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY EEER (BB /BF 10

Basic and diluted BEAKEE (RMB0.066) RMB0.025
(AR#o0.0667T) AR0.0257T

16 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEER@mE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2024 2023
ZEZmE T =F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT ARETFIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRE (E18) R (174,525) 70,502
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES) HfthZ2EIK A~ (Bi%)
Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that may £ LA 18 BRI Pl BEE ) 48
be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EELDNEMEE
periods: WA L) :
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~ — A& /BN ETFEEF
operations EFXf2ERER 1,290 (31,513)
Other comprehensive expenses that will notbe  EMUBHIBBE ARG ED
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent FEREmNEMEE
periods: Az :
- Exchange differences on translation of the —MBARARBEFEEZ
Company EREE (3,409) (12,997)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR THE FEREZEHEMEEAX
YEAR, NET OF TAX (2,119) (44,510)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME  FEZ2H (%) KA
FOR THE YEAR “aER (176,644) 25,992
Attributable to: UFIEE M -
- Owners of the Company —KABBE A (176,878) 21,903
- Non-controlling interests —FEER S 234 4,089
(176,644) 25,992

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR E MR R

As at 31 December 2024 A -Z_UFE+—"HF=+—H

18

2024 2023
—E_NEF —EF-=
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERZE 1 2,653,648 2,807,192
Investment properties KEYE 12 527,292 548,468
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 13(a) 2,697,334 2,081,520
Goodwill EES 14 1,536,408 1,636,683
Investments in associates REE A NKRE 16 52,472 51,715
Trade receivables FEW B 7 38 20 677,133 391,917
Time deposits EHIFR 23 26,202 27,202
Other assets HMEE 17 55,369 233,520
Deferred tax assets R IEE 18 274,401 263,494
8,500,259 8,041,711
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE
Inventories T8 19 378,761 421,717
Trade receivables FEUR & 5 718 20 366,390 289,215
Prepayments and other receivables FE{T R I8 K H fth FE UK
I8 21 530,244 566,432
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZA AEEtERE
BEFAERZ
THEE 22 66,685 57,540
Restricted cash ZREIIRE 23 63,999 100,191
Time deposits EHTFR 23 9,175 16,563
Cash and bank balances B KM IRITAEBR 23 1,466,508 1,583,414
2,881,762 3,035,072
CURRENT LIABILITIES mREaE
Trade payables FEfT & ZFIE 24 586,181 702,563
Other payables and accruals H{th S TR I8 I FE 51
IHH 25 605,256 677,887
Contract liabilities BHERA 26 604,308 615,709
Interest-bearing bank loans TEIRITEM 27 220,075 161,350
Lease liabilities HEAERE 13(b) 501,555 656,677
Tax payable FE 18 21,509 27,619
2,538,884 2,841,805
Net current assets TREEESLE 342,878 193,267
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HWEERTEAR 8,843,137 8,234,978

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
rEMBI T (8)

As at 31 December 2024 A -Z_ME+_H=+—H

2024 2023
—E”-MF 2=

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5 ARET T ARET T

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITEM 27 2,590,421 2,330,564
Lease liabilities HEa’E 13(b) 2,988,839 2,360,886
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEG 18 176,783 226,381
5,756,043 4,917,831
Net assets BEEFE 3,087,094 3,317,147
EQUITY D
Issued capital BEEITREK 28 55,477 55,477
Reserves =#E 29 2,959,897 3,189,465
3,015,374 3,244,942
Non-controlling interests JEHERG MRS 71,720 72,205
Total equity Mt 3,087,094 3,317,147
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Juliana Cheng San San
Director Director
BT R EER % Hf 5
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n\7|_ E!-#ﬁ@]%

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

PRC Asset Non-
Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling
capital funds* reserve” reserve’ earnings* Total interest Total
BERE  HELRE ERGE BEEMRE RERA! B FEREG EH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ABETR ARBTn ARBTR ARETn ARRTR ARETR  ARRTR
(note 28) (note 29(a)) (note 29(b))
(Biske)  (RHfE29(a) (KtzEa9(b))
At 1 January 2024 R-E-mE-F-A 55477 282,756 (552,256) B4 3201583 3244942 72205 3317047
(Loss)Profit for the year £E (BB /1B - - - - (174,759) (174,759) 234 (174,525)
Other comprehensive expense for the year: EEHMAERY
- Exchange differences related to foreign operations -REENERREEZ ERER - - (2119) - - (219) - (2.119)
Total comprehensive (expense)fincome for the year FERE ER) /WALE - - (2m9) - (174,759) (176,878) 234 (176,644)
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds ERERENRS - 181 - - (181) - - -
Interim dividend distribution during the year ERTHREDK - - = = (52690) (52690) = (52630)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERFEERRRRE - - - - - - (n9) (19)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-ME+-A=+-A 55477 282,937 (554,375) 251,412 2,979,923 3,015,374 71,720 3,087,094
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
n\7r\ *é £ T A @J %% (n\E)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

/\E
PRC Asset Non-

Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital funds* reserve” reserve* eamings* Total interests equity
BRfTkE  REARE B BEBMHE RERA B FEREG L 3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®ETT  ARBTR ARETT ARETz ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

(note 28) (note 29(a)) (note 29(b))

(Mzk2s)  (W3E29(a) (HisE29(0)
At 1 January 2023 55477 292,574 (507,746) 251,412 3,288,957 3,380,674 68,895 3,449,569

Adjustment from adoption of

amendments to IAS 12 - - - - (131,290) (131,290 - (131,290)
At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZEZ=F-F—H EE5) 55477 292,574 (507,746) 251412 3,157,667 3,249,384 68,895 3,318,279
Profit for the year FENE - - - - 66,413 66,413 4,089 70,502
Other comprehensive expense for the year: ERAMZERS:

- Exchange differences related to foreign operations ~BEENERREL VERER - - (44,510) - - (44510) - (44,510)
Total comprehensive (expense)fincome for the year EE2E (B%) /WAEE - - (44,510) - 66,413 21,903 4,089 25,992
Deregistration of  Subsidiary HHEL-RAREAT - (10,902) - - 10902 - - -
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds BERTHELNES - 1084 - - (1,084) - - -
Interim dividend distribution during the year ERPHREDK - - - - (26,345) (26,345) - (26,345)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BEERRERE - - - = = = (179) (179)
At 31 December 2023 KZE-Z%+ZA=t+-H 55477 282,756 (552,256) 251412 3,207,553 3,244,942 72205 3317,147

* As at 31 December 2024, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated ~— * A\ TECNE+_"_A=+—H %E#
reserves of RMB2,959,897,000 (2023: RMB3,189,465,000) in the HIREBAENGSHBIRARANGE S
consolidated statement of financial position. # AR #52,959,897,0007C (ZE - =4F: A

FR 1#3,189,465,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2024 2023
“EUF —ET=fF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TFT ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES & EZEFELMIRS
ME
(Loss)/profit before tax el (B58) /FIHE (147,929) 86,647
Adjustments for: MU TBIBEEHRE .
Share of profits of a joint venture and BEEEbERBE
associates, net NEIF 2R (14,508) (23,916)
Finance income RRE U A (38,590) (55,367)
Finance costs TN 445,897 498,117
Depreciation and amortisation HTEE Kot i 498,474 558,491
Losses on disposal of property, plant and HEME- -BEXK
equipment and investment properties, net REREEYEN
i85 2,166 2,796
Reversal of impairment of inventories, net FERERERFEE - (148)
Impairment of trade receivables FEW B 5 IR E 29,201 20,279
Impairment of prepayments and other TA RRIB R H A FE U
receivables RIBERE 19,924 1,289
Impairment of property, plant and equipment M2~ B ek
BB 49,400 5,308
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 31,246 23957
Impairment of goodwill EEREAE 100,275 16,277
Subleases gains recognised in other income REMUT AT
BHEWD - (18,274)
Loss on subleases modification EBIHEEFRIE 8,486 4,799
Gains on lease modification and termination HESE MR IEWE (25,104) (47,777)
Foreign exchange gain P& = Wz 47,018 629
1,005,956 1,073,107
Decrease in other assets HEm&EER D = 1,250
Decrease in inventories FERD 42,956 79,233
Increase in trade receivables FE U & 5 FRIE 1 A0 (351,435) (240,827)
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments and other FETTRIE M H A FE UKL
receivables JIERD S (E0) 124,624 (12,629)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables B S 7HIE GRl)
&0 (116,382) 222,138
Decrease in other payables and accruals H A& TRIB K & 5T
HERD (52,341) (19,513)
Decrease in contract liabilities =E =L (11,401) (5,604)
Cash generated from operations RETHEENIRS 641,977 1,097,155
Income tax paid ERPTEH (76,180) (81,747)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEENRE
TMERER 565,797 1,015,408
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
reRERER (8

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

2024 2023
ZEImE ZTT=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BB ZBHELEMIRES
e
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified as held HEDEATEHES
for sale ENEMIE - 133,333
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and ~ BEE¥) % = &%
investment properties R EYE (99,402) (85,093)
Dividends received BUE R 13,728 28,350
Interest received 2UWFIE 21,233 24,658
(Increase)/Decrease in financial assets at fair value @A BETEHEHSE
through profit or loss st ABmzEME
& (gm) R (9,145) 50,775
Decrease/(Increase) in time deposits with original  EEARFER B ZHEHEBHE
maturity of more than three months when —EBAMEEER
acquired B (1) 8,388 (9,186)
Income tax paid on investing activities MEEEFENMZ
P8R (15,820) (2,288)
Proceeds from subleases R EENIE 101,980 94,177
Net cash flows from investing activities KETHEENIRS
TMEHRE 20,962 234,726
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEEZBELEMIRS
e
Proceeds from bank loans SRITERFTIERIE 2,888,476 69,728
Repayment of bank loans BEEIBITEXN (2,.657,780) (135,762)
Interest paid [SENEES) (184,266) (195,568)
Payment of lease liabilities GEN-§=KEENEA (731,604) (736,886)
Dividend paid BENKRE (52,690) (26,345)
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders DIRT IR AR R (719) (779)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEHMMANIRS
MERER (738,583) (1,025,612)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
|\7|_ | EEE/)IL%% ( \\E)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

2024 2023
—E-MF 2=

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
M 5E AR¥TT ARETFIT

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH RERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GR) /e hn3%E (151,824) 224,522
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~E{INBEERIBEEE
BY) 1,683,605 1,464,096
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PEREH) v 5 &5 (1,274) (5,013)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF HXxMNREEREE

YEAR EY 1,530,507 1,683,605
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREEEYEG
CASH EQUIVALENTS VAR
Cash and bank balances V& KBTS R 23 1,290,009 1,200,071
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity EEARFERAEHHTE
of less than three months when acquired =@ B R ILIR E A
X 23 176,499 383,343
Restricted cash ZIRHIIRE 23 63,999 100,191
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 1,530,507 1,683,605
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-MF+_-_A=+—HItFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Parkson Retail Group Limited (the "Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 August 2005.
The Company has established a principal place of business in Hong
Kong in Room 1010, 10th Floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group") are the
operation and management of a network of department stores,
shopping malls, outlets and supermarkets mainly in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"), and the provision of credit services in
Malaysia.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Parkson Holdings Berhad (“PHB"), which is incorporated
in Malaysia and listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Information about principal subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued/registered
share capital/

Name and business paid-up capital
BT/
L AR,
AR%TE HE R HRRE
Changzhou Lion Food and Beverage Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB25,000,000
(notes ii, ix) HE AR #25,000,0007C
BINBEERERAE (ki ix)
Guizhou Tongren Parkson Retail Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB 10,000,000
(notes i, viil) e A 10,000,007
EMACERBERRAT (HaHvii)
Jiangxi Parkson Shopping Centre Management The PRC RMB30,000,000
Co,, Ltd. [note i HE A #30,0000007T
IEERBENROERBRAT (HzH)
Suzhou Parkson Changfa Commercial Management  The PRC RMB50,000,000
Co,, Ltd. (note i) HE A #50,0000007T
BNERREBLERERAR (ki)
Wuzhou Fashion Parkson Business Management The PRC RMB30,000,000
Co,, Ltd. (note i) FE A #300000007T

ENEHEREEERBRAT (i)

AERERER
EREmEEERRAE (IKA28))
N_EERENB=ZHIHRSHE
HMRLABERRAB cARBANE
BNTESEEMBATBEFTS T
$Ti8395E BB K/E10181010% ©

EN/NSIPEE S 3= B2 /NI /NS D
HWBAR (REE) NEEXES
RESBEREARHEME (THE)
KEREEREE BYHO - B
RETRBHAS LR ERA R
RHEERS-

EERR AL RERER AT
#sParkson Holdings Berhad (TPHB ) °
—XNERBIEMEAILIHNAE
TR ERARESF B LMo

EMEEMBAT0ER
B EER-B-=F+=8
=+—B AT ETEMEADN
BB :

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FATEIERET S

Direct Indirect Principal activities

BE Mk TEEE

N/A N/A Food and beverage
(2023: -) (2023: 100) management services
~ER AER  ENEERE
(CBZ=F:) (ZEZZE:1100)
N/A N/A Operation of department
(2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
TER TER KEEER
(CBZ=F:) (CBEZZF1100)
= 100 Operation of shopping
(2023: -) (2023: 100) malls and property
(CEZ=F:) (ZBIZF 100 management
REBRMBESRR
MEEE
- 100 Operation of shopping malls
(2023: -) (2023:100)  EEBMES
(CBZ=F:) (ZEZZE:1100)
- 100 Operation of shopping malls
(2023: -) (203:100)  EEBMES
(CBZ=F:) (ZBZ=&:100)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT

125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. PEREREH (@)
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued) ERAFXEMBATNER (B

N_E_NER_ZT_=F+1
=+—HB AR ETENBLATHN
§¥I|\§QD—F (nﬁ)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued/registered attributable to the Company

FAFEERERDL

126

AR

registration share capital/
and business paid-up capltal
B&f1/
kA,
BRR

Direct

B

Indirect

Gk

Principal activities

TELH

Jiaxing Lion Retail Management Co, Ltd. (note iii) ~ The PRC US$51,072,813 - 100 Provision of consultancy
ERASMBEERERAR (i) FE 51,072,813% 70 (2023: -) (2023: 100) and management
(CEZ=ZfF:) (ZBZZF:100) services
AR BERE
Shanghai Jingshi Retail Management The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co, Ltd. (note i) HE A E#10000,00070 (2023: -) (2023:100)  MEER
TEEREEERERAR (ki) CBZ=F:) (CZ2Z=F:1100)
Qingdao Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. (note i) HE A #20,0000007T (2023:-) (2023: 100) stores
EEERBEBRAT (M) (CEZ=fF:) (ZBIZF:00) KEEEE
Shanghai Lion Parkson Management The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Consultant Co., Ltd. (note iii) i A #10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) and management
LRREEERAERAR (i) (CTZ=F:) (ZBZZF:00) services
AR EERE
Shanghai Shihong Supermarket Co., Ltd. (notes iii, ) - The PRC RMB10,000,000 NJA NJ/A~ Operation of gourmet
HEREETERAR (Ekiix) FE AE#10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) supermarkets
TER TER RERESH
(CBZ=F:) (ZEZ=&:100)
Shanghai Delight Food € Beverage Management The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Co., Ltd. (note iii) e A #1,0000007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) operation
LEBIREREEERAF (ki) (CBZ=F:) (Z2Z=H:100) KEBH%
Hunan Changsha Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. (note iii) i AR #10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
HERVEHEREEERERAT (CEZ=F:) (ZBZ=F:00) KLERES
(B i)
Shanghai Parkson Food & Beverage Management ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Co., Ltd. (notes i, ) e AR #1,000,00075 (2023: -) (2023: 100) management services
LRERENEEERAF (i) (CBZ=F:) (Z2Z=F:00) BHEERH
Qingdao Parkson Beer City Property Management ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co,, Ltd. (note i) HE A 10,000,007 (2023: -) (2023:100)  WIEEE
EERERBENNEERERAT (i) (CBZ=F:) (CEZ=£1100)
Uupanshui Parkson Retail Co, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
ENABKERBEERERAD (W) +E A #15,0000007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CBZ=%:) (CBI=H:w0) KLEBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 Eiz;t_ = _@E‘f'_ﬁ =t+—HIEEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. REIREERER (@)

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued) ERTERBRATINER (&
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 RN _E_NER_E_=ZF+_4
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued) —t+t—B AR FENBLRAIN

§¥I|\§QD—F (nﬁ)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued/registered attributable to the Company
registration share capital/ FATAEERET AL
and business paid-up capltal Direct Indirect Principal activities
B&17/
fARE
GRS RS e BEkE Hi% iz TEXH
Jinan Lion Consultant Management The PRC US$5,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Co,, Ltd. (note i) i 5,000,000 7T (2023: -) (2023: 100) and management
EERESHERARAR (ki) CBZ=F:) (_T_ZE 100) services
RUSHREERS
Tianjin Parkson Shopping Mall Co,, Ltd. (note iii) The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
REERBEERBRAF (i) HE R #500,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores and property
(Z2Z=F:) (CEZ=F:1100) management
REBEERNEE
Shanxi Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
UAEERXERERAD () FE A #50,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores and shopping

(CBZ=%:) (CBI=F:100) malls
CEEEERENES

Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co,, Ltd. (note ii) The PRC RMB233,340,000 - 9591 Operation of department
EEE—BRERAE (ki) HE A #233,3400007T (2023: -) (2023: 95.91) stores
(CBZ=ZF:) (CBZ=E:9%9) KEHEE

Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note iii) ~ The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
ERERENESERAT (ki) FE A #40,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CZ-=F:) (CBZZF00) KEREE
Panzhihua Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note iii) FE R #20,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
BRIEERBELEBRAA (i) (CZ-=ZF:) (CZZZE00) KEREE
Qingdao Lion Plaza Retail Management Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Property management
(note il HE B #500,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023:100  YEEE
EEEHESHEERERAR (i) (CBZ=%:) (_T_ZE 100)
Qingdao Parkson Shopping Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note i)~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
EEERBMESRBRAT (ki) FE A #30,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores and shopping
(CEZ=ZF:) (ZBZZF 00 malls
REREERENES
Shanghai Shijie Fashions Co,, Ltd. (note iii) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of apparel
LERGREERAT (Mﬁm) FE AE#10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023:100)  SHEMRE
(CBz=£.) (_f‘:ﬁ 100)
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB28,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) FE A E #28,000,0007T (2023: ) (2023: 100) stores and shopping
BERBEEBEBRAF (H:hH) (CBZ=%:) (CBI=F:100) malls
REREERENES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBI RN (8

128

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

g CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)

kR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B&17/
AR/
HRBRE

1. RERREREH (&
ERXEMBATNER (&)
RIBZMERZEBEZ=ZF+_"A1
=t+—H ARBDEEMBERTH

SHBEOT (@

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct Indirect

B Gl

Principal activities

TELH

Shaoxing Shishang Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. (note i) HE AE#20,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
RARHEEBEEEBRAR (i) (CBZ=E:) (CEZ=F:00) KEEES
Shantou Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
LETEREEBRAT () HE AR 38,000,000 (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CZ-=F:) (CBZZF00) KEREE
Zigong Parkson Retail Co,, Ltd. (note iii) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
EEARBAEERAE (i) R AR #10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CB-=#:) (CBIzZ£:@:00) KLEEEE
Changshu Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note il FE AE#15000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
RABRAEEEARAR (i) (CBI=F:) (CBI=Fw0) KETERL
Guizhou Zunyi Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB 12,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) HE A 12,500,000 (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
BNBREEBEERBRAR (i) (CBZ=fF:) (CBZ=fF:00) KEELEE
Lanzhou Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
AN HEREERRAE (fah) HE AR 200000007 (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CBZ=#:) (CBIzZ£:@:00) KLEEEE
Anshan Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BUERHEERERAD () FE AE#10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CB-Z=fF:) (CBI=ZF:100) KEEEE
Zhangjiakou Parkson Shopping Mall Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note il HE A 30,000,000 (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
RxOBRBENERERAR (k) (CBZ=fF:) (CBZ=fF:@:00) KEELEE
Sichuan Shishang Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. (note i) iy AR #30,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores and outlets
I EREEERERAR () (CZ-ZF:) (CBZZF00) LEREERBERS
Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
AIREREEERERARD () FE AR #8000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
(CB-Z=fF:) (ZBI=ZF:100) KEEEE
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note ii) HE A #10,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores

BURERRBYPOERAF ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. PEREREH (@)
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued) ERAFXEMBATNER (B

N _E_NER_ZET_=F+21
=+—B AR ETENBLATHN
§¥I|\§QD—F (nﬁ)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation/ Issued/registered attributable to the Company
registration share capital/ FATAEERET AL
and business paid-up capltal Direct Indirect
B&f1/
afRE/
GRS st R AR 2 BRRA Ei% M

Principal activities

TELH

Guizhou Shenai Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB17,000,000 - 60 Operation of department
(note i) HE AE#17,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 60) stores

BNBZERBEEEEARAR () (CBZ=F:) (CBI=Fe0) RKEDER

Parkson Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC 1JS$30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding

SHEEREBRAT (W) HE 30,000,000% 7% (2023: -) (2023:100)  BEZR

(CBEZ=Z%:) (ZEZZZ:100)

Parkson Retail Development Co,, Ltd. The PRC 1US$16,680,000 - 100 Operation of department
("Beijing Parkson’) (note i) HE 16,680,000 75 (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores

BRBEXEEERAR (LRER) (M) (CEZ=F:) (ZTZ=H:100) KEGES

Kunming Yun Shun He Retail Development Co,, Ltd. ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) HE AE#30,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores

ERZIENEmEZRERA () (CEZ=F:) (CBEZ=F:100) KEEEE
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. (note i) The PRC
IAEBRPLHEEERAR () FE

RMB8,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
A 18,500,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores

(CBEZ=F:) (CEZ=f£:00) KLEFEE
Anshan Lung Shing Property Services Co,, Ltd. The PRC US$1,050,000 - 100 Property management
(note ) FE 1,050,000 75 (2023: ) (2023:100)  MEEE

BEEMERBARAT (Wah) CEIzZF:) (CEZZ£100)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT

Shanghai Xinzhuang Parkson Retail Development ~ The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. [note i) HE AE#20,000,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores
TEETERBEEERBRAT (&) (CBZ=F:) (CBZ=F100) KEEEE

Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment Consultant The PRC US$500,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Co, Ltd. (note i) HE 500,000E 7T (2023: ) (2023: 100) and management
LERERERAERAR (5H) (C2Z=F:) (ZEZ=F:100) services

RUAAREERY

Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note xii) ~ The PRC 1US$12,000,000 = 100 Operation of department

TENBERERERAR (i) HE 12,000000% 7 (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores

(CBEZ=fF:) (CBIZF:00) KEEEE

Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development Co,, Ltd.  The PRC RMB16,800,000 - 100 Operation of department
(note i) HE A #16,800,0007T (2023: -) (2023: 100) stores

HRIBEEBERRAR (fzh) (CBZ=%:) (CBI=fH:w0) KEBERE

Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note ii) The PRC RMBB80,000,000 - 60 Operation of department

BAE-RERERERAR (H:h) HE AR #80,0000007T (2023: -) (2023: 60) stores

(CBI=F:) (CBI=F.e0) LEBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MBI RMIE (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

VA=PAN
N 3

g CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)

ACIER

Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. (note i)
AU EERERERAD (&)

Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. (note i)
EFBRERERERAT ()

Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. (note i)
RRERERESERAR ()

Yichun Parkson Shopping Centre Co,, Ltd. (notes i)

HEERRBEYTOARAT (W)

Qingdao Parkson Lion Commercial Management
Co,, Ltd. (notes i, iv)

EERRNEBXERAMAR (ki v)

Nanchang Parkson Shopping Centre Co,, Ltd.
(notes iii, v)

HERRBYROERAR (Haiv)

Wenzhou Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd.
(notes i, vi)

BMEREEERARAT (F5Hiv)
Hanmen Holdings Limited

BEERRRAT

Victory Hope Limited
HHERAE

Great Dignity Development Limited
AEERBRAT

Sea Coral Limited

ERERAT

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE R

Place of

incorporation/
registration
and business

MRS

The PRC
e

The PRC
R

The PRC
hE

The PRC
e

The PRC
R

The PRC
hE

The PRC
e

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
&4

Hong Kong
&A

Hong Kong
i

e

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B&17/
HE/
BRRE

RMB32,500,000
AR 132,500,00075

RMB35,000,000
A B 135,000,00075

RMB30,000,000
A B 130,000,00075

RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,00075

1S$3,000,000
3,000,000 75

RMB20,000,000
A B 120,000,00075

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

HK$1
87T

HK$1
BT

HK$2
2B

HK$1
87T

1. RARKREERER (&
ERAETEMBARNER (@)
R_EBE_NFERK
=t+—H XRBETEMNBREN
HEBWT (@

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct

(2023: -)
(CBZ=%..)
(2023: ]
(CTZ=%:)
(2023: ]
(ZBZ=F )
(2023 J
(CBZ=%..)
(2023: ]
(CTZ=%:)
(2023: ]
(CBZ=F:)
(2023 J
(CBZ=%..)
(2023: ]
(CTZ=%:)
(2023: ]
(ZBZ=F 1)
(2023: J
(CBZ=F:)
(2023: ]
(CB-=F:)

Indirect

B

100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZEZ=#:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZEZ=#:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZEZ=#:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)
100

(2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:100)

—_BE=H5+"A1

Principal activities

TEEH

Operation of department
stores
REBaE

Operation of department
stores
S

Operation of department
stores
REBaE

Operation of shopping
malls

REBNES

Property management

NEEE

Operation of shopping malls

Operation of department
stores
REBaE

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
RELR

Investment holding

RAER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

REIREERER (B
ERAETEMBARNER (8
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 RE_NFEAE_=F+_1
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H ' xABEFTENRBATIN
HEWT (@

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct Indirect

AR
R AR E e

paid-up capital
BEf1/
afRE/
BRRA

BH#

Gk

Principal activities

TELH

Wide Field International Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - 100 Investment holding
BEERERAT &8 W (2023:4) (2023:100) REER
(CBZ=F:) (CBIZF:!100)
Parkson Food & Beverage Ventures Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 91 Investment holding
&% 1587 (2023:-) (023:91)  REZR
(CBZ=F:) (CEZ=f£:9)
Exonbury Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEENBRAT ¥ WA (2023: ) (2023:100)  HEER
(CEZ=F) (CEBZ=£100)
Step Summit Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
EHBRAE &8 187 (2023:4) (2023:100)  REER
(CBZ=F:) (CBIZF:100)
Hong Kong Fen Chai Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Provision of consultancy
BAEXRERRAT &8 1587 (2023:-) (2023: 100) services
(CEZ=fF:-) (CBIZE00) REEERE
Shunhe International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
IERBER R EBRAT ¥ 10,00087¢ (2023: ) (2023: 100) services
(CBZ=F:) (CEZ=£:00) REHERS
Creation (Hong Kong) Investment & Development ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Limited &8 10,0007 7T (2023:4) (2023: 100) services
BB (B8 REEBRERAT (CBI=F:) (CBI=Fw0)  REEHRE
Capital Park (HK) Investment & Development Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
7 (BH) RELRBRAT o %7 (2023: ) (2023:100) REER
(CBZ=F:) (ZBZ=&:100)
Malverest (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
%& (&8 BRAT ¥ 1% (2023: -) (2023:100) REER
(CBZ=F:) (CEBZ=£100)
Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
&8 1587 (2023:4) (2023:100)  HEER
(CBZ=F:) (CBIZF:100)
Releomont (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
FIRE (&8 BRAT o %7 (2023: ) (2023:100) REER
(CBZ=F:) (ZBZ=&:100)

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

g CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued/registered
share capital/

1. RERREREH (&
EREIEMBARNER (&)

RIENERE

—_BE=H5+"A1

=t+—H ARBDEEMBERTH

FHBEOT @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
FAREMERER S

Direct Indirect

paid-up capital

R
B e

NGB B
Leonemas (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1
flrim (B8 BRAS & 187
Huge Return Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS1
HHLEREBRAT ) 18T
Parkson Lao Sole Co., Ltd. Laos LAK20,000,000,000
ERERAEERAT £} 1£20,000,000,0007T
Parkson Business Commerce Sole Co., Ltd. Laos [AK20,000,000,000
BREEBEERRAT Zi ££20,000,000,0007T
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. (“Parkson Credit") Malaysia RM37,000,000
BRAED & 537,0000007T

Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100
BRAS ME R 1007T

Parkson Retail Laos Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1
ERFD HEFIT

Pinnacle Yields Sdn. Bhd. (*Pinnacle Yields") (note vii) - Malaysia RM1
(Bt vii) BRAED HEHIT

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE R

B EiE

- 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(CEZ=F:) (CBEZ=£:100)
= 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(CBZ=F:) (CEZZF:1100)
- 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(CEZ=F:) (CBZZF:100)
- 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(CB-=F:) (CEZZF:0)
= 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(ZBZ=F:) (ZTEZ=F:100)
- 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(Z2Z=F:) (CZEZ=F:100)
- 100

(2023: -) (2023: 100)
(CB-=F:) (CEZZF:0)
= 100

(2023: NJA) (2023: NJA)
(ZBZ=F: (CB-=fF:
TEH) TEH)

Principal activities

TELH

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REER

Wholesale and retail trade

BENDE

Operation of department
stores
REBaE

Provision of money lending
and credit services

REBEREERS

Dormant

Investment holding

REZR

A special purpose vehicle
establish to acquire
a pool of eligible
receivables from its
immediate holding
company and to
securitised an Asset-
backed Medium Term
Notes

FI 2 BHEN AT
DitHERERAT
MSREREU
B REES R
HEBEEHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

REIREERER (B
ERAETEMBARNER (8
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 RE_NFEAE_=F+_1
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H ' xABEFTENRBATIN

AER

Parkson Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore $$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Mg 10,000,000%7 AR 7T (2023: ) (2023:100)  REEZR
(CBZzZF:) (ZEZ=£:10)
Rosenblum Investments Pte Ltd. Singapore S$2 - 100 Investment holding
K W TT (2023:-) (2023:100)  BREZR
(CBZ=%:) (CBI=F:100)
Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd. Singapore $$100 - 100 Investment holding
g 10087 N3 7T (2023: -) (2023:100) REER
(CBZ=F:) (CEZ=£:100)
Parkson Venture Pte Ltd. Singapore $$14,800,000 - 100 Investment holding
Mg 14,800,003 14 7T (2023: ) (2023:100)  REEZR
(CBZ=F:) (CEZZ&E1100)
Leonemas International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
HEBRUEHE BET (2023: -) (2023:100) REELR
(CBZ=F:) (ZEZ=&:100)
Lion Food & Beverage Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands RMB4,000,000 - 91 Investment holding
BERYHES A #4,0000007C (2023: -) (2023:91) REZR
(CBZ=F:) (ZBZ=fF:9)
Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$0.5 100 - Investment holding
BEBERRAT EBEYHEE 05T (2023: 100) (203:-)  REER
(CEZ=£10) (C3z=F)
Global Heights Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
FEREBRAT HEBRUEHE B (2023: -) (2023:100) REELR
(CBZ=F:) (ZEZ=&:100)
Asia Advancement International Limited British Virgin Islands 1S$50,000 - 100 Domestic and cross-border
BEERERAT EBEYHE 50,000E 7T (2023:-) (2023: 100) trading
(CBI=F:) (CBI=ZF w0 FIRBERS
Creation International Investment & Development  British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited EBEYHEE 50,000E 7T (2023: ) (2023:100) REER
HERRAEERERAD (CBZ=F:) (CEZZFE100)
Golden Village Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
EREEERAT HEBRUEHE 500007 (2023: -) (2023:100) REELR
(CBZ=F:) (ZEZ=&£:100)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

SR ERIL
MRS

Issued/registered
share capital/
paid-up capital
B&#17/
BV
BRR

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT

SHBEOT @

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

FRAFEERERDL

Direct

Indirect

ik

Principal activities

TEEH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

g CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1

Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

REIREEER (B
ERAETEMBARNER (@)
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 R_E_NFEAZE_=F+_1
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued) =t+—H ' xXABEFTENRBATN
HEWT (@

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Percentage of equity
Issued/registered attributable to the Company
share capital/ FAFAEERET AL
paid-up capital Direct
BEf1/
s,/
BRR Gl

Indirect Principal activities

SR ERIL
AR A2

RS TEEH

Lung Shing International Investments & British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited EBEUEE 50,000% 7T (2023: -) (2023:100)  HEER
BEEREEZRERAT (CBZ=F:) (CEZZFE100)
Capital Park Development Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
HBRUHEE ETT (2023:-) (2023:100) REZR
(CE-=F:) (CBEZZF00)
Malverest Trading International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
EREUEE BET (2023: ) (2023:100) HERR
(CTZ=F:) (CBZ=F100)
Oroleon International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2 - 100 Investment holding
RERTEHE 2ETT (2023: -) (2023:100) REER
(CEZ=F:) (CBIZF!00)
Duo Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HBRUHEE ES (2023:-) (2023:100) REZR
(CE-=F:) (CBEZZF00)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

EREINEEBAHREIEFEERE
REBXENBRAEBEEFE
EWMONETATNMBAT EF
B IRHEMNE AR NFER
TERNENBR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about principal subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows: (continued)

Notes:

(i) registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law

(ii) registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under

PRC law
(iif) registered as a limited liability company under PRC law
(iv) incorporated on 13 January 2023
(v) incorporated on 4 May 2023
(vi) incorporated on 8 June 2023

(vii) incorporated on 15 May 2024

(viii)  deregistered on 15 January 2024

(ix) deregistered on 24 June 2024

(x) deregistered on 7 November 2024

(xi) deregistered on 8 January 2025

(xii) changed from registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint

venture enterprise under PRC law to registered as a wholly-
foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law on 27 November 2024.

REREBEY (&8
FRXERBEARNER (8
KRB _NERTE_=F+_"H
=+—H ARV EEMBERTH
SHEOT @

PYEE -

(i) EREPEERELSAINEEEA
s

(ii) EREBETEERELATIHEE

e

(il EBREFEEEELABREE
NS

(iv) R_EZ=F—RB+=HEMk

hva
v) == = = DLt = == A A
(vi) RIZEZ=%F/,"B/N\HFMmMiL

Vi MRIZE_MNERB+EHFMA
7

(viii) A ZEMNE—A+HHFH
(i) P ZETMNESRA U H
x  RIZZmE+—BtHEH
x) RIZT-RFE—F/\BHH
xi) WRIE-_mE+—B-++tHEH
ERBREEZEBRATIEE

RETLXSBRORBREER
BRI EEERE

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B 2 EEGR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These annual consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB"), which collective term includes all applicable individual
IFRS accounting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
Interpretations ("IFRS Accounting Standards") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules").

The material accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended IFRS Accounting Standards and the impacts on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in
note 2.2.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for financial instruments which are
stated at fair value. Non-current assets and assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale are stated the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management's best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

2.1

RAMEE (B)

meRE
REMBREREEBEERATRENE
ARBESFE+T-_A=+—HMNH
B«

MEBARS —KEAEATDERNMH
REFINER -ExEEARESH
RENSNEEMESNAE RIS
BEROHURAEHREHNRITRE
HEDUZERIRETRZES B
EREmE REEMNETRE
EESRENRMEREHHNREARE
7)o

MERABNYHFREEARRTHY
BREAEZKRFEMEAR > TEA -
NEFHRER -MWEBRDHNEE
AAEENSEFEEREAAS
HEE BEXREZERERRERD
#ylbe

FFIERBERIETIFAATERNHE
BEFIGNB AR 2 Em MAEH
wEMIERZEED A ABELE
ERSMERR > MA] e E R A ERE
RAMNOEHMAEEEREZZSTR
mABRGHNEE -RMEBBEEFSH
S AEENEERNBEATN
M EERENRAABEHRS
PRAGHI B A BRI BRI E EFERILE
PIstEERIHERED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from the
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses
control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including
goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of
the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company's statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following amended IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB,
which are relevant to the Group's operations and effective for the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2024:

Amendments to IFRS 16  Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and

related amendments
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Except for the impact mentioned below, the adoption of the
amended IFRS Accounting Standards had no material impact on the
Group's performance and financial positions for the current and
prior periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” ("2020 Amendments") and related
amendments and Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants"

The amendments clarified the classification of debt and other
liabilities as current or non-current, depending on whether an
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting period and this
right has to be existed at the end of the reporting period. Any
expectations about events after the reporting period do not impact
the assessment of the classification of the liabilities make at the
end of the reporting period as to the classification of the liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” ("2020 Amendments") and related
amendments and Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants” (continued)

Only covenants of a loan arrangement, which an entity must
comply with on or before the reporting date (even if the covenant
is only assessed after the reporting date) affect the classification
of that liability as current or non-current. Those covenants to
be complied with after the reporting date do not affect such
classification at the reporting date.

The amendments also define "settlements” of a liability, which
includes transfer of entity's own equity instrument. However, if
the holder's conversion option in a convertible bond is classified as
equity in accordance with IAS 32, the transfer of equity instruments
by exercising the conversion option does not constitute settlement
of liability and would be disregarded when determining whether the
liability is current or non-current. If the holder's conversion option
is classified as liability, such option must be considered for the
determination of current/non-current classification of a convertible
bond.

Besides, the amendments required an entity to provide additional
disclosure when a liability is classified as non-current and the
entity's right to defer settlement is contingent on compliance with
future covenants within twelve months.
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2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2
(continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current” ("2020 Amendments"”) and related
amendments and Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current
Liabilities with Covenants” (continued)

The amendments should be applied retrospectively.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as at 1 January 2024,
the application of amendments will not result in reclassification of
the Group's liabilities.

In addition, the adoption of the amendments would also resulted in
a change in the Group's accounting policy for the classification of
borrowings as follows:

“Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless as at the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.”
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended IFRS Accounting Standards
have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been
adopted early by the Group.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements®
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to IFRS 9
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability’

Amendments to IFRS
Accounting Standards

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards - Volume 112

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

c Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

4 Effective date not yet determined

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended IFRS Accounting Standards that
are expected to have impact on the Group's accounting policies
is provided below. Other new and amended IFRS Accounting
Standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2.3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements” and related amendments to International
Interpretation 5

IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements” It
carries forward many of the existing requirements in IAS 1, with
limited changes, and some IAS 1 requirements will be moved to
IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors” and IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures"

IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition and measurement of
financial statements items but the presentation of them. It
introduces three major new requirements, including:

° reporting newly defined subtotals (namely "operating
profits” and "profits before financing and income tax"),
and classifying items into five newly defined categories
(namely "operating”, "investing”, "financing”, "income tax"
and "discontinued operation”), depending on the reporting
entity's main business activities, in the statement of profit
or loss;

° Disclosure of management-defined performance measures
("MPMs") in a single note to the financial statements; and

° enhanced guidance of aggregation and disaggregation of
information in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

IFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements” and related amendments to International
Interpretation 5 (continued)

Besides, narrow-scope amendments have been made to |IAS 7
"Statement of Cash Flows", which includes:

o using "operating profit or loss" as the starting point for
indirect method for the presentation of operating cash
flows purposes; and

° the option for classifying interest and dividend cash flows
as operating activities is eliminated.

In addition, there are consequential amendments to several other
standards.

IFRS 18, and the amendments to the other IFRS Accounting
Standards, are effective for annual period beginning on or after
1 January 2027 and must be applied retrospectively with specific
transition provisions. The directors of the Group are still in the
process of assessing the impact of IFRS 18, particularly with respect
to the structure of the Group's consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of cash flows and the additional
disclosures required for MPMs. The Group is also assessing the
impact of how information is grouped in the consolidated financial
statements, including the items currently labelled as “other"
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint venture are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and a joint venture is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or a joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint a venture, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associate or joint venture is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date
when it ceases to have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture. If the retained interest in that
former associate or joint venture is a financial asset, the retained
interest is measured at fair value, which is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with IFRS
9. The difference between (i) the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the associate
or joint venture; and (i) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued, is recognised in the
profit or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its wealth management products at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement
(other than quoted prices included within Level 1) is
observable, either directly or indirectly, and not using
significant unobservable inputs

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill) and the
Company's interests in subsidiaries, the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person

(M) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ifi) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(M) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

24 BEAREHBEREBE (@)

(continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 35-45 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Equipment and fixtures 5-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvements,
buildings and storage facilities under construction or renovation
works in progress which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed
funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
expected useful life. The estimated useful lives for this purpose are
32 to 42 years.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The principal
estimated useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Computer software 5 years
Licence 10-14 years
Franchise agreement 10 years
Trademark 10 years
Customer relationship 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To apply this
definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

° the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to
the Group;

° the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

° the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct 'how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee,
the Group elected not to separate non-lease components and will
instead account for the lease and non-lease components as a single
lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

ERGSHTHRME (8

HE (@

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Property

42-45 years
2-20 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Leasehold land

Leasehold land represents land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Land use rights are carried
at cost and are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the rights ranging
from 42 to 45 years. When the leasehold land cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire leasehold land are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate ("IBR") at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.q., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS
16 "Leases” In such cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient set out in paragraph 46A of IFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

24 BEAREHBEREME (@)

HE (@

FEEFSEABEAN (BE)

b HEEREE
REtEEE M RARER
HERRESNRERL SR
B AEBEEERE B HAE
REEEEMA R (MEEE
AR -MNHABAAZE
HEEENERAS S EMN
[z BRF) 2 B9 18 0 K wh B 1F
BYFE & (I RRAE 0 R © LE5b
mEE AR LS
EfmEet (PIansgatt=x
BEHERRKBEEMMELE
1) R EERE ERERE
R LR E  HE & EMER
EHERKENTE

HREKEAEBHEEARD
HEZP AEEREEEXN
HMENAR FEREREH
FRAKETNITIRERKE
RN BEENRETIIR
MmEHtEEESE H—
9N 15 L 2 EICOVID-19%Z 15 HY
EREREMELEBETEERE
R EENFE 165 FAE ]
FABERFTE RGN EEAES
BE-EZEBR T KEE
FMAEBEERTHERSENS 16
REAAR TN EREES
o THERAENES OB
HIFHEEH) o

© EHEHERBREESEMES

AEBHEEE BIE/RA
HERRESt 2 BB iE 1218
BETEEBEEERZNA
B)ERaiEamlie-
RHERBEEEEEMEE
WEENMRRERRUER
AR AR

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B2 EBEAEAT

159



160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct
costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The finance income on the net investment
in the lease is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the
lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as
a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Reqgular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

This category includes wealth management products which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables (other than loans receivables), the Group
applies a simplified approach using the provision matrix in
calculating ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at the end of each reporting period. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

General approach

For loans receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are classified, at
initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are recognised
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless as at the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of merchandise is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
restricted cash and short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third
party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless
the restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the
definition of cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is recognised
at the amount of consideration of shares issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies the
requirements in IAS 12 to the lease liabilities and the related assets
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to the
lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary difference
can be utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liability relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
"other operating revenues" in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets, or disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and
liabilities, that are highly probable to be recovered principally
through sale rather than through continuing use, are classified as
held for sale. Immediately before classification as held for sales,
the assets, or components of a disposal group, are remeasured
in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Thereafter
generally the assets, or disposal group, are measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocated to goodwill,
and then to remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis,
except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets,
deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property
or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance
with the Group's accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not
recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment once classified
as held for sale are not amortised or depreciated. In addition, equity
accounting of equity-accounted investees ceases once classified as
held for sale.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one vyear,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to a
customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is
an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer. The
Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for
the provision of the specified good or service by another party. In
this case, the Group does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises
revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Sale of goods

(b)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with rights of return. The rights of return give rise to

variable consideration.

Provision of concessionaire sale services

Revenue from the provision of concessionaire sale services
is recognised upon the commission rate of the gross
concessionaire sales which was recognised upon the
delivery of goods.

Provision of consultancy and management services

(d)

Revenue from the provision of consultancy and
management services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.

Revenue from loyalty point programme

Revenue from loyalty point programme is recognised when
the obligation in respect of the award is fulfilled.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Promotion income and minimum guaranteed sales commissions
are recognised according to the underlying contract terms with
concessionaires and as these services have been provided in
accordance therewith.

Credit card handling fees, administration fees and service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Electricity and water fees are recognised when the cost are actual
incurred.

Display space leasing fees and equipment leasing income are
recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Provision for loyalty point programme are recognised as a reduction
in revenues upon granting of bonus points to customers in
accordance with the announced bonus points scheme. The Group
estimates future redemption of bonus points based on its historical
experiences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and requlations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e,, assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is different
from the functional currency of the Company - the United States
dollar ("US$"). The Group's consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB because management considers that a
substantial majority of the group companies are in the PRC and the
Group primarily generates and expends cash in RMB. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

2.4

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

When a fair value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss, is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, a joint
venture and associates are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of the entities
in the Group are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
makers (the "CODM"). The CODM, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors that make strategic
decisions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Identifying performance obligations in sale of goods and
commissions from concessionaire sales

The Group recognises revenue when a performance obligation is
satisfied when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customer on sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire
sales. For contracts with customers, the Group determined that the
performance obligations for loyalty point programme are capable
of being distinct. The Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or services
underlying each performance obligation is determined at contract
inception. It represents the price at which the Group would sell a
promised good or service to a customer.

Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into sublease contracts for its department
store business and lease contracts to earn rentals. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the investment properties and right-of-
use assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the investment
properties and right-of-use assets, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases or finance leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal and/or termination options

The Group has several lease contracts that include renewal and/
or termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term for
the lease of a property which has a short non-cancellable period of
three years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax provisions

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation
and practices.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with the expected
future market, economic conditions and tax planning strategies.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses as at 31 December 2024 was RMB74,310,000 (2023:
RMB63,965,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses as at 31
December 2024 was RMB1,449,629,000 (2023: RMB1,173,380,000).
Further details are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite
lives are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit based on assumptions, in particular those relating
to gross margin and growth rates, as well as the overall market and
economic conditions in the PRC and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Further
details, including a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, are set
out in notes 11 and 13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
based on assumptions, in particular those relating to gross margin
and growth rates, as well as the overall market and economic
conditions in the PRC and Malaysia and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2024
was RMB1,536,408,000 (2023: RMB1,636,683,000). Further details
of the impairment testing of goodwill are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for ECL on trade receivables (other than loan receivables),
loan receivables and other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables (other than loan receivables),
loan receivables and other receivables (continued)

For other receivables, the Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is an
objective evidence of impairment, the Group considers factors such
as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables
and other receivables is disclosed in notes 20, 21 and 35.4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Leases - Estimating the IBR

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an IBR to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group "would have to pay", which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary's
stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes a provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end
of each reporting period and makes a provision against obsolete
and slow-moving items. Management reassesses the estimation
by the end of each reporting period. The carrying amount of
inventories as at 31 December 2024 was RMB378,761,000
(2023: RMB421,717,000), net of provision of RMB167,000 (2023:
RMB167,000). Further details are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including
the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. The judgements include considerations of inputs such as
the expected yield rate which is subject to liquidity risk, credit risk
and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. The carrying
amount of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
at 31 December 2024 was RMB66,685,000 (2023: RMB57,540,000).
Further details are set out in notes 22 and 35.6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, and right-of-use assets
to be 2 to 45 vyears, after taking into account their estimated
residual values, as set out in the principal accounting policies
above. Depreciation and amortisation of items of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) are calculated on the
straight-line basis over their expected useful lives. The net carrying
amounts of items of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2024 were
RMB2,653,648,000 (2023: RMB2,807,192,000), RMB527,292,000
(2023: RMB548,468,000) and RMB2,697,334,000 (2023:
RMB2,081,520,000) respectively. Further details are set out in
notes 11, 12 and 13(a) to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4, WE -HMKEWERIIHBE
SEGMENT INFORMATION ¥l

Revenues =

An analysis of revenues is as follows: WM FIRAT -

2024 2023
—E-E

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT  ARBTR

Revenue from contracts with HEHEESHBIN 75
customers (a)
Sale of goods from direct sales B iHE 1,798,059 2,130,142
Commissions from NHEEEE RS
concessionaire sales (b) 638,339 757,599
Consultancy and management BHEMRBIERBE
service fees 7.869 13,457
2,444,267 2,901,198
Revenue from other sources B 5 7N
Gross rental income HEBEWA 633,180 640,771
Credit services EER% 159,706 103,413
792,886 744,184
3,237,153 3,645,382
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

4, REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenues (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Revenue from contracts with customers - disaggregated

revenue information

W s EEE R m k2 HBE
¥ (&)

Weat (&)

P

() RBEFREHNNKZE-HIWE

Commissions Consultancy
Sales of from and
goods from concessionaire management
direct sales sales services fees Total
HErEiE B R
BEHER HERE EERBEE wmat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT N ARETT ARETT
2024 —ETMmE
China South region FEREE 934,965 311,540 267 1,246,772
China North region FRE L ED 398,237 238,258 - 636,495
China East region FEIERE 433,729 87,381 7,602 528,712
Overseas isPUN 31,128 1,160 - 32,288
Revenue from contracts with EZE PR &SLMNK G
customers 1,798,059 638,339 7,869 2,444,267
2023 TEBI=HE
China South region HE & 1,107,274 367,974 495 1,475,743
China North region AL 3626 464,336 271,653 5 735,989
China East region e BR & 529,297 17,317 12,962 659,576
Overseas =Sl 29,235 655 5 29,890
Revenue from contracts with REZE B ARG
customers 2,130,142 757,599 13,457 2,901,198
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenues (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales are analysed as
follows:

U as ~ EASE Wm R 2 8 E
# (&)

Wam (1)

B3 ¢ (480

(b) HHFEEHEERAZINNOT :

2024 2023
—EIMNE —E"=

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARMEF 75

Gross revenue from concessionaire sales 45 3R IBIH E 42N = 4,756,267 5,661,107
Commissions from concessionaire sales 45 FFEEIHE RS 638,339 757,599

(c) Performance obligations
Sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire sales
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations were RMB604,308,000
(2023: RMB615,709,000) as at 31 December 2024, which
are all expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration subject to constraint.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2024 with an amount of RMB615,709,000 (2023:
RMB621,313,000) were included in contract liabilities as at 1
January 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

4.  REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND 4. WE -HMKSWEkoIBE
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) ® @&
Other operating revenues Hha& &S s

2024 2023
—E-ME —=E=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTRE ARBTT

Credit card handling fees EREFEE 21,942 26,122
Promotion income R U A 49,662 47,802
Electricity and water fees BEMKE 133,338 124,804
Administration fees TEE&EB 158,685 147,353
Display space and equipment leasing income [E#H 15 K 5% A E WA 57,496 60,991
Service fees RFBER 21,349 24,248
Government grants (note) BT ED (FIsE) 5,577 14,834
Other income arising from the recognition of FESIEH B E FEELEMN
net investments in subleases Hh A 505 18,274
Other income arising from lease modification FAEE X R 4R IEE LM
and termination H A 25,104 47,777
Other income HMA 15,841 19,903
489,499 532,108
Note: MYk -
Various local government grants have been granted to reward the Group for REFEM A RFTETZEME > L
its contributions to the local economy. There were no unfulfilled conditions EEHEMKSHEN T - 2L B TE B
or contingencies attaching to these government grants. WM R BIRGR A RHIAEIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

REVENUES, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group has one major operating
segment, which is "Retail”. The Group operates department stores,
shopping malls, outlets and supermarkets mainly in the PRC.
Revenues arising from this segment include sales of goods in direct
sales, commissions from concessionaire sales, consultancy and
management service fees and rental income from tenants.

Besides, the Group provides consumer financing business which
is carried out by Parkson Credit in Malaysia, and its revenue and
results are disclosed under "Others” in the table below:

W s EEEE R m k2 HBE
¥ (48)

SEER

HEEFR ~EBEHREE —EE
BEEDNT NITE - AEEXTE
RAPBREEFEE By O B
RETRBH - RBILDER W E
EEEHER RFFrEEEEMAS
AR EERBERERESN
Ao

IEobh s A& B R FHParkson Credith?
EXRATHENHESMER  H
N R AN T RIEM B N IFE

Retail Others Total
ZE€ Hith #a st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTr ARBTT ARETR®
2024 —TME
Segment revenue 7B
Operating revenues S 3,566,946 159,706 3,726,652
Segment results DERELE (209,726) 74,068 (135,658)
Reconciliation: R
Corporate expenses rEME (12,271)
Loss before tax AR R (147,929)
2023 2=
Segment revenue 7B UR =
Operating revenues KE W 4,074,077 103,413 4,177,490
Segment results D EREELE 75,610 22,745 98,355
Reconciliation: HAR -
Corporate expenses PERE (11,708)
Profit before tax LRI BES 86,647

Revenue from external customers are mostly generated in the PRC
and almost all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Since revenue from external customers and non-current
assets excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets of
overseas companies outside the PRC are not material to the Group's
consolidated revenue and non-current assets excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets, management believes there is
no need to disclose geographical information.

REIBERFHNEDmEEZRE T
MAEEBARFEDETEEEER
EHARTPE - BRKBEIIBER
B m R IERBE E (FEETEIR
INBINABINE R T B AEIER IR
EE)HAERRARERIERBE
EaEemIARREREBESR
EMstAER EEERRBA
REMIEE K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

5. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 5. fia0 (A518) F)H
The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBEMRA (BB18) /FE L4840
(crediting): Bk (Bt A) THIBEBERN

2024 2023
“EMFE 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Staff costs excluding directors' and chief BTHA FEIEEEREE
executive's remuneration: HITEMS) !
- Wages, salaries and bonuses —TE -#hERIEA 354,629 360,603
- Pension scheme contributions * —iB R st 2 42,321 45,949
- Social welfare and other costs —HEEA R EM A 71,676 68,593
468,626 475,145
Directors' and chief executive's remuneration ESLBEERNITEMS 10,732 10,692
Total staff costs EFFEITRA 479,358 485,837
Rental expenses in respect of leased properties: FHEY)ZENHAERY :
- Lease payments not included in the — Rt AHEABTEW
measurement of lease liabilities HEER= 80,383 90,132
Gross rental income in respect of investment & EY)EAIFA S EUWA
properties (207,451) (243,988)
Lease income in respect of sublease of KEHEBE M =EHEERN
properties under operating leases: HEWA :
- Minimum lease payments ** —REEE (291,768) (284,133)
- Contingent lease payments *** — o SAFE (133,961) (112,650)
Total gross rental income SRS 4B A (633,180) (640,771)
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5.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(crediting): (continued)

Cost of inventories recognised as expenses,

including:

- Reversal of impairment of inventories, net

Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of prepayments and other

receivables

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of right-of-use assets
Impairment of goodwill

Losses on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties, net

Foreign exchange differences, net
Auditor's remuneration

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

5. A (B1R) FHE (@)
A EENRAT (§538) /T4
Bk GtA) THIEBRER : (@)

2024 2023
“EMFE 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

RSN EERE

B85 1,562,074 1,835,698

—EFEREERFEE - (148)
I8 R i 498,474 558,491
FE U B 5 FIE R E 29,201 20,279
FANRIBREMEWFIE

A 19,924 1,289
Y BENRRERE 49,400 5,308
FREEERE 31,246 23,957
HERE 100,275 16,277
HEWE - BERREUR

KREYENEIR$E 2,166 2,796
[EREEFE 47,018 629
ZHEMBN & 3,520 3,166

Direct operating expenses arising from rental- BREVIG BV ERSEEM

earning investment properties

BEEEEMT 21,176 24,600

*%

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its existing level of contributions
to the retirement benefit schemes in future years.

: ATETMER-EZF+
A=+—R ' x&ELEABHN
B R WA R AR R R F E R R
H 3R B B9 IR IR 48 M 51 8 LR K

:'z o
Minimum lease payments of the Group include pre-determined - FERROCHESEEEEESR
rental payments and minimum guaranteed rental payments for REBEEERETETHNAEEN
lease agreements without contingent rental payments. RIEFE o
Contingent lease payments are calculated based on a percentage of o FAHEHRBEEGZNOTE
the relevant financial performance of the tenants pursuant to the RRAFEBRM B E RS EREN
rental agreements. HEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

6.  FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) 6. RABEUWA  (FEZs)

2024 2023
“EMFE 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Finance income BE WA
Bank interest income IRITH B WA 20,776 30,612
Gain on redemption of financial assets at ~ BBEIIRA AEEE
fair value through profit or loss BHEFFABGEZ
TRBEEWRD - 1,204

Change of fair value of financial assets at AR BEFTEEHEE)
fair value through profit or loss (note 22) st ABHZ EMEEZ

NABEES (HsF22) 1,422 829

Finance income on the net investments in A SR B FHEAIFRE WA
subleases (note 13(g)) (FFz%13(g)) 16,392 22,722
38,590 55,367

Finance costs =N

Interest on lease liabilities (note 13(0)) HEaFEH B (MsE13(0)) (269,934) (297,625)

Interest on interest-bearing bank loans and st EIRTTERKREMMERZ
other borrowings R (175,963) (200,492)
(445,897) (498,117)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES" EMOLUMENTS

Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EF BRERITERSRITH
AEM =

RBELTRA -FEBRTHEMNE
WBIMERLRE EBEEFENmER)
ROE B RENESTRERATE
FEMTOT :

2024 2023

—BomE T =
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AEEFIT
Fees wWE 1,314 1,296
Other emoluments Hhil 9,418 9,396
10,732 10,692

(a)  Independent non-executive directors

The fees and other emoluments paid to independent non-
executive directors during the year were as follows:

() BIUERITES
FRABUFNITEESN
MRk EMMENT

Other
Fees emoluments Total

e  Httils a5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®TR AR®TR

2024 —E_ME

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow ZBHEE 219 8 227

Yau Ming Kim, Robert ekl 219 8 227

Datuk Koong Lin Loong EEICHE 219 8 227
657 24 681

2023 —BI=HF

Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EBPDE 216 8 224

Yau Ming Kim, Robert kgl 216 8 224

Datuk Koong Lin Loong ZEILSRE 216 8 224
648 24 672

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: nil).

BE_Z_NF+__H=+

—BILEEETEAMENST
BUERTEZNMNE CF
Z=EF B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

7.  DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE -BEVTERSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEBE (@)

(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) BITES -FRTEERE
chief executive EHITE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total

A= BfE
g REME BItETEAL st AF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBTRT ARETT ARETR ARBFTT ARBTR

2024 ZEImE
Executive directors: RITEE:
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem R EEER 219 3,009 - - 3,228
Juliana Cheng San San & 219 2,398 634 - 3,251
438 5,407 634 - 6,479
Non-executive director: FERITES:
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung FEHEAESEL 219 8 - = 227
Chief executive: BEHTE:
Zhou Jia 5k - 2372 875 98 3,345
657 1,787 1,509 98 10,051
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4= A
w37

R F5 kR My ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the
chief executive (continued)

EF BRERITERSRITH
AEME (&)

(b)

HITES - FATEFKE
F#ITE (@

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other Discretionary scheme
benefits bonuses contributions Total
E A BHRE
RE MR WIETEAL sTE M a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ABETT  ARETR  ARETR
2023 “RTCE
Executive directors: HITEE !
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem A EEELR 216 3,008 5 5 3224
Juliana Cheng San San BRI 216 2,398 460 5 3074
432 5,406 460 - 6,298
Non-executive director: FRITEE .
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung ZEHENESEL 216 8 5 5 224
Chief executive: BEHTE:
Zhou Jia BE - 2,320 1,085 93 3,498
648 7,734 1,545 93 10,020

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: nil).

There was no arrangement under which any directors or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

BHE_FE-_N&E+"/BA=+
—HIEFE > AERW EAE
MEESZNMESEARSIHE
MAXEEFRMAETEEE
HNERBNIEABERMBE CF
T=HFEE) o

BE_Z_NE+-_RA=+
—HILEFERERENES
HERFRTERRXREL
A R A < 0 (F AR R %2 Bk
(CEZ=F18)-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. B -BREVWTERSHRITH
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) AEE (8)
()  Five highest paid employees () IZBEEHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included FAALRSHNES®IE
two (2023: two) executive directors and one (2023: one) ME(CEZ=F ML) H1T
chief executive officer, details of whose remuneration are EER—% (CEZI=F—
set out above. Details of the remuneration for the year of L) EERTE HiNSHEE
the remaining two (2023: two) highest paid employees who N EX - FREEGMS (Z
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company BET=F MK R HNE
are as follows: B (RERIIEERRBESE I
FEEFEHITE) MEFBN
T

2024 2023
—E-MF 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT

Salaries and other emoluments e REMBIE 3,396 3,372
Discretionary bonuses B IETEAL 789 1,089
Pension scheme contributions BIAREETEHER 160 152

4,345 4613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

whk 3
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR Us
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

TERSHRITH

ﬁ%ﬁ_lé]_#ﬁ {EE (1\5)

(c) Five highest paid employees (continued)

The number of non-director and non-

chief executive

highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,368,000
to RMB 1,824,000 (2023:
RMB1,352,000 to RMB1,802,000))

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,824,001
to RMB2,281,000 (2023:
RMB1,802,001 to RMB2,253,000))

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,281,001
to RMB2,737,000 (2023:
RMB2,253,001 to RMB2,703,000))

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
(equivalent to RMB2,737,001
to RMB3,193,000 (2023:
RMB2,703,001 to RMB3,154,000))

1,500,00078 7T & 2,000,00078 7T
(FBE M AR 11,368,000 7T
F AR 181,824,000 (Z =
=% AE®1,352,0007T
= AR #1,802,0007T) )

2,000,0017 75 22,500,000 75
(BN AE1E1,824,0017T
F AR #2,281,0007T (Z=
= AK®1,802,0017T
ZF= AR 12,253,0007T) )

2,500,001 7 71 & 3,000,00078 75
(FBHER AR #52,281,0017T
Z AR #2,737,0007T (Z &
Z=F: ANR®22530017T
= AR #2,703,0007T) )

3,000,00178 75 23,500,000 7T
(FBER AR #2,737,0017T
ZF AR #3,193,00070 (Z =&
—=F: AE#2,703,0017T
ZE AR %53,154,0007T) )

M= F U THER RS #
MES (ALIFEE > TIFERE
HITE) AR :

Number of employees

EBEAZ

2024
—E2mF

2023

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no key

management personnel (as defined in IAS
Disclosures) other than the directors and
paid employees as disclosed above.

24 Related Party
the five highest

EERR BREXFIKENSE
EhBIBEREHMEEN &
EEUTETEEEAS (EX
BB & 5t 2 R 55 2457 B B
TR ER) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

200

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on the
assessable profits arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Under the relevant PRC income tax regulations, except for a certain
preferential treatment available to certain PRC subsidiaries and the
joint venture of the Group, the PRC companies of the Group are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2023: 25%) on

FRSMAX=
AEBEAMHENE AT EHAZFRE
REENRBFEERBFFEENE
BERNRIE HEREERM
FTiS#i o

REREHBERRBELEENR
AlRER  AEBBATHERS
R R B X B SR ERIFT SR o

RIEHEPEEREAR BRAE
EETHENBARMRGEREH
EEETEERFEBN AEEHNT
Bl A B A EF & BRI BRI

their respective taxable income. During the year, three (2023: three) AR50 (ZE =4 :25%0) BXK
PRC entities of the Group obtained approval from the relevant PRC BN EFREBR EN AEB =X
tax authorities and were entitled to a preferential corporate income (CEBE-=ZF  Zx) HEEREEE

tax rate of 15%.

Malaysia profits tax has been provided at the rate of 24% (2023:
24%) on its taxable income.

No provision for Hong Kong, Singapore and Laos profits has been
made for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong, Singapore
and Laos for these years.

An analysis of income tax expense is as follows:

ERMEREEREAL EIREBELE
Fr 1873 1500474 o

BRADNERDIZEBRREA
M240% (ZBZ =4 : 24%) BE
2o

AR AERRBEE S _NEKRT
E_=—F+_RA=+—RHLEEY
EREBEB MK REBNESR
MAE W BERZEEFENSTE
N R E BB R B ST 5 o

PRSMABIDITNT -

2024 2023
Sl 10 - ==

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT

Current income tax KHAFA1ER 87,101 89,367
Deferred tax (note 18) IR IE (fIE18) (60,505) (73,222)
26,596 16,145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra M BERERMEE (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions)
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to
the effective tax rates, are as follows:

FriSKAX (&)
ERAERBREREBDMH B ATE
ERERR (REEEE) BEER
X EMNRA (BB FIEZER
MIERZ HRBRREXAEHRE
XV ER > URBAREK BUEE
ME) BMERMERAHRMT :

British

Hong Cayman Virgin

Kong Singapore Islands Malaysia Laos PRC Total

Bk it HEHE BRAEER k] HE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ABBTR W ABETR  w ABETR  w ABETR  w ABETR  w ABETR  w ABETR  w ABEER
2004 uk S 14:2
Profit]loss) efore tax RarE/ B8 n (832) (189,398) (463) 70,091 5175 (32914) (147929)
Taxat thestatutory tavrate. A RREHENHE 68 165 (141) 169 - - - - 16,822 20 1,035 200 (8.228) 250 9,556 (65)
Taxeffectof preferental e~ EERENTHHEE
rafes - - - - - - - - - - - - (6,603) 2.1 (6,603) 45
Profits and losses atrioutable B A BIEAER R
to assaciates B (116) (282) - - - - - - - - - - (3451) 105 (3567) 24
Telosses and temporary — EARBERNREFER
differences not ecognised  EHEE - - 1 (16.9) - - - - 659 09 933 180 42839 (192) 4421 (29.9)
Utiisation of tax loss DREAFRANEE
previously not recognised BiE - - - - - - - - - - (1,035) (200  (®1512) 1261 (42547) 288
Expenses not deductible ol BEEREN
for tax 53 I 7 - - - - - - - - - - (369) 12180 (82)
Effect of withholding taxon ~ AEETEIHBAT
the distiutable profts ARNENEIR
of the Group's PRC %
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - 15374 (46.7) 15374 (104)
Adjustments in respectof  FLBEEHEDERE
current tax of previous fEHiEE
periods - - - - - - - - (1,356) (19) - - (13) 22 (2,069) 14
Taxchrge for the year KERRE = = = = = = = - 16128 30 933 180 958 (80) 265%  (180)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 8.

Singapore

Fﬁ‘/[%:ﬁ Fﬂa i (n\a)

m It S
(Loss)foroft before tax il (5% /HE (803) 919 (170646) (560) 35170 175 mos 86847
Taxatthe statutory taxrate. RARREHENRE (132) 164 (156) 170 8441 240 550 00 55513 50 64216 741
Taxeffect of preferential e~ BERENHHEHE

s (11500 62 (s (133
Profts and losses attibutable  —KAEREREE

to.ajoint venture and NARERARER

associates 36) 45 (5929) (27) (591) (69)
Tax losses and temporary HARANRESER

differences not recognised  EEHER - - 15 (170) (1,754) (50) - - (7264 (33) (8862) 102)
Tax losses previously LARIMECREN

recognised, now reversed REEE 1367 08 1367 16
Utisation of tax loss BREAFEDN

previously not recognised HEHE (550) (00 (32946) (148 (33496) (387)
Expenses not deductible el BEENREN

for tax 35 168 (209) 12730 57 1289 149
Effectof withholding taxon ~ AEMFENBLE)

the distributable profts piwilhat i)

of the Group's PRC %4

absidares 1046 05 M 12
Adjustments in respectof  FLBEHEEERE

curtent tax of previous fEEMER

periods (1,146) (33) - - (2417) (11) (3,563) (a)
Tox charge for the year REERERY 5541 158 10604 48 16,145 186

The share of tax attributable to the joint venture and associates
amounting to nil (2023: RMB1,629,000) and RMB5,432,000 (2023:
RMB4,871,000), respectively, is included in "Share of profits of a
joint venture and associates" in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

9. DIVIDEND 9.

BEPERBE AT EMERIEDF
T (ZTEZ=F ' AE®1,629,000
7T) B AR #85,432,00070 (ZE_=
F . ARH4,871,0007T) ER4GEE

mRATELEERPERBEQATF
HIARRe

g

2024 2023
—EMFE 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT

Interim dividend paid of RMB0.02 BRI ESREEK
(2023: RMBO0.01) per ordinary share Ri&0.027t (ZTEZ=F:
AR #0.017T) 52,690 26,345

The board of directors has resolved not to declare any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil). The Company
declared and paid an interim dividend of RMB0.02 (2023: RMB0.01)
in cash per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

10.  (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 10.
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue

during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are
based on:

AR EBREDFTE ARG
sk (B8 &'BH

SREX (BB  BAIREERN
ARBEBEREDTE ARG (6
B FEURERNBETEERM
EFHEHEE -

RB&EE_T_MNER_FT_=
+ZRB=+—HBLFE - AERAL
mERTEEBEERER-

SREAKRES B8R BB
BRE TAIER ¢

2024 2023
—E-FE ==
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

(Loss)/Earnings (&548) &F
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary BARstEERERRE#E
equity holders of the Company, (BB /BN EALAREE
used in the basic and diluted RERFTE AEWN (BB
(loss)/earnings per share calculation AIRES (174,759) 66,413

Shares Bz

Weighted average number of ordinary shares AT ESRERKEE
in issue during the year used in the basic (B8 BIHNERE
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share BITEBRINETIEH
calculation

2,634,532 2,634,532
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ErE M IRRMTEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

M =
1. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M. PE-BERZE
Land and Leasehold Equipment and Construction
buildings improvements Motor vehicles fixtures in progress Total
T RIEF RENZRE "E REREE ERIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ) 7T AREFT 7 ARETT
At 1 January 2023 RIZZ=%-F-H
Cost A 238721 1,565,284 17532 362,794 742,309 5,075,140
Accumulated depreciation and R TERF(E
impairment (531222) (1,344477) (14,655) (278.470) (376) (2,169,200)
Net book amount REFE 1,855,999 220807 2877 84,324 741,933 2905940

Year ended 31 December 2023 HE_E-=&

+ZA=+-ALEE

Opening net book amount BREHE 1,855,999 220807 2877 84324 741,933 2905940
Additions HE - 54596 7 6161 17,389 78153
Transfers af = 17,733 = 189 (17,922) s
Transfer from investment BRRENE

properties - 368 - 2,657 - 3,025
Disposals HE - (443) ®3) (3753) e (4239)
Depreciation & (62,168) (92,445) (591) (15,175) 8 (170,379)
Impairment HE - (267) (18) (611) (2,008) (5,308)
Closing net book amount HRREFE 1,793,831 197,945 2232 73792 739,392 2,807,192

At 31 December 2023 and ~ HZBZZ

1 January 2024 +ZA=+-Ak
—Z-mE-A-A
Cost (2N 2,387,221 1540320 16,584 346070 74,776 5031971
Accumulated depreciation and ~ BEHTERAE
impairment (593,390) (1,342,375) (14352) (272,278) (2,384) (2,224,779)
Net book amount RESE 1,793,831 197945 2232 73,792 739,392 2,807,192

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE_FB_ME

+ZB=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BRERE 1,793,831 197945 223 73792 739,392 2,807,192
Additions "B - 38,556 685 7,013 16,297 62,551
Transfers 4 - 11,827 - 2615 (14,442) -
Disposals HE - (726) (222 (1,218) S (2,166)
Depreciation & (61912) (88,025) (s31) (14,061) s (164,529)
Impairment e - (19,879) (24) (1,075) (28422) (49,400)
Closing net book amount ~ HAREREF(E 1731919 139,698 2140 67,066 71282 2653648

As at 31 December 2024 RZE-ZmE

+ZA=+-H
Cost A 2,387,221 1512394 16,242 333,650 743631 4993,138
Accumulated depreciation and ~ BEHTERFE
impairment (655,302) (1,372,69) (14,10) (266,584) (30,806) 2,339,490)
Closing net book amount BREEEE 1731919 139,698 2140 67,066 712825 2,653,648
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
All of the Group's land and buildings are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2024, in consideration that the business of
four subsidiaries (2023: one subsidiary) of the Group had been loss
making in recent years and it was not considered probable that
profits would be available in the foreseeable future, an impairment
loss of RMB20,978,000 (2023: RMB5,308,000) was recognised for
property, plant and equipment of the subsidiaries in 2024.

As at 31 December 2024, the buildings and construction in progress
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,326,166,000
(2023: RMB1,370,590,000) were pledged to secure the Group's bank
loans (note 27).

Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment (other
than construction in progress)

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 13.0% (2023: 14.0%). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 2.0% (2023: 2.0%), which was the same as the long-term
average growth rate of the industry.

11.

ME- -BERRE (&)
REEMBE I REBFHMUNF
& o

ATE_NME+_B=+—H &
BIHRERAERNKHKEAT (Z
EZF . —RXMNBRAE) KB
B BN RERRKOTREER
HWER_SE_NEMRMRBATZY
¥ BERRERIDBEFEAR
120,978,000 (ZEZ=F : AR
5,308,0007T) ©

RZE-_WE+_"_A=+—H>
IREFELN A ARYE1,326,166,0007T
(CTE - =& AE1,370,590,000
T MNEBFRERIREEM  AX
EBRITERIRMEER HeE27) ©

ME- - BERZE EEIERS
SOPEAER:
BREcELBUMNITWESEETLR
BEEAEERRESREEIET
BERERANREBERITESEIHR
ERELFEABMNE AR EL -
HEREBANERRATIRES
13.00 (ZE =4 : 14.0%) B H
EEHHFﬁquﬁﬁ/m%ﬁu}ﬁi‘§§£2 0%
(CE =45 :200) EH  SHE
ARIAFHIERERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

1.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow
projections:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market in
the PRC.

Revenue:

Gross margin: Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past few
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market

development.

The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to the key
assumption reflects past experience and
management's commitment to maintain the
operating expenses to an acceptable level.

Operating expenses:

Discount rates: Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the

relevant units.

Impairment testing of construction in progress

As at 31 December 2024, management concluded there was
indication for impairment and conducted impairment assessment
by determining the recoverable amount of the construction in
progress included in property, plant and equipment with an
aggregated carrying amounts of approximately RMB737,162,000.

In determining recoverable amounts of the construction in progress
as at 31 December 2024, the Group engages an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation.

The recoverable amount of the construction in progress has been
determined based on its fair value less costs to disposal. The Group
uses income approach to estimate the fair value less costs of
disposal by making reference to comparable rental transactions as
available in the relevant market.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%
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EFERMBEMER
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KER%: ARECHECEBERN
BEESHEBEMEA
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RIKFBYHKEE
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HERBMELUAERBRNG
ER BRI 5T o

EEIERENS

A ZE_NMFE+ZA=+—H'B
HEERAGERENR  LiHEBE
T AYE - -BERKRENERETL
e i[Ol & REE TR E T 0 BR
HAREL A AR 1737,162,0007T ©
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11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Impairment testing of construction in progress (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, based on the result of the assessment,
management determined that the recoverable amounts of the
construction in progress exceed the carrying amount. Accordingly,
impairment loss of RMB28,422,000 was recognised against
the carrying amount of the construction in progress included
in property, plant and equipment. No impairment assessment
conducted as at 31 December 2023.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of property,
plant and equipment of the respective cash-generating units,
management believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment of the relevant units to materially
exceed their recoverable amounts.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

11.

12.

ME- -BERRZE &)
EEIEREANS &)
R_E_WNE+_A=+—H"11
BIGHER EEBREEAERETLRE
Mo Wbl ESREREE AL
BIEFAME BRERKENTE
ITENEREERNBEREARKE
28,422,000 R E-_=F+_H
=t+—RTEETRE G

BRREESHBRKE
MAESREELEBUZYE K
FPRuENEREE E  BEE
BELAERNEFERRLESE
FEHIREE)  BEEMEMNUZYE
B P T 5% s 2 BRI B I B 1 EL AT X
ClE=EE

REME

2024 2023

—EFEWmE ==
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT ANEREEFIT

As at 31 December: R+_-_BA=+—H

Cost D% 683,036 683,036
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt E KIRE (155,744) (134,568)
Net carrying amount RERE 527,292 548,468

A reconciliation of the net carrying amount of investment
properties during the year is as follows:

FARENENREFENROT

2024 2023

“EUEF -
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
As at 1 January w—B—H 548,468 538,758
Additions NE - 38,470
Disposals HE = (1,135)
Depreciation e (21,176) (24,600)
Transferred to owner-occupied properties A B A% = (3,025)
As at 31 December K+—A=+—H 527,292 548,468

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B2 EEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

12.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties were revalued at approximately
RMB3,200,000,000 (2023: RMB3,200,000,000) on an open
market, existing use basis on 31 December 2024 by the Group.
The investment properties are all situated in the PRC, and either
under renovation or leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the building with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB523,711,000 (2023: RMB544,734,000) was
pledged to secure the Company's bank loans (note 27).

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

12.

BREME @)

AEBNKREYERERER RN
E_NE+ A =+—HMNARS
S - RERREEEGHAOABARK
3,200,000,0007c (CE - =F: ARHE
3,200,000,0007T) ° R E¥ =LA F
> ZEMELEETEEAREL
EHYOHBRFE=H HE— P
BREEHN GRS EHRERM 130

AZE_WME+_A=+—H" &
HFEN A AR 523,711,00078 (Z
T =8 NR¥E544,734,0007T) BY
BFEEH AXRBIRTERIR
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

LEASES 13.
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and
other equipment used in its operations. Leases of property generally
have lease terms between 2 and 20 years. Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually
of low value. There are several lease contracts that include variable
lease payments, which are further disclosed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2023 RWZEZ=F—F—H

Additions arising from new leases ~ HIHEEEEMAFE

Depreciation charged during the year FERITE T

Decrease arising from lease term BEKZEBRELENR D
modification

Decrease arising from subleases BHEELNRED

Impairment provided for the year SR BERE

HE

TEBEREBA
AEEMEEHFEERFANSY
FREMREBEEHESN -WF
HENHRBE R2E20F - HMH
BEHHEBBEERNREASUNKRS
HEHNEERBE BNHEESHE
BOE2RAEMR FHER TXE—
TIREE -

@ RAREE
AEBECEHAREENREE
MR EREHMT

Leasehold
land Property Total

HEL LUES st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AR®FTR AR®TR

341,251 2,137,485 2,478,736
- 72,755 72,755
(13,312) (346,073) (359,385)
= (69,843) (69,843)
= (16,786) (16,786)
- (23,957) (23,957)

As at 31 December 2023 and R ZEZ=F+ZB=+—H

1 January 2024 —E-ME—F—H
Additions arising from new leases ~ HIHEEELMNFE
Depreciation charged during the year SFATES H

Increase arising from lease term BERFIEELNIEM
modification
Decrease from lease termination HERIEEERRD

Decrease arising from subleases BHEELNRED
Impairment provided for the year FRREREE

327,939 1,753,581 2,081,520
- 38,354 38,354
(13,313) (299,456) (312,769)

= 969,778 969,778
- (34,858) (34,858)
- (13,445) (13,445)
- (31,246) (31,246)

As at 31 December 2024 ATETME+_"A=+—H

314,626 2,382,708 2,697,334

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B2 EEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VAT AN
s 3

AT R R IEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

13.

LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from owners with lease periods of 42 to 45
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases.

As at 31 December 2024, the leasehold land of Beijing
Parkson with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB305,646,000 (2023: RMB318,494,000) was pledged to
secure the Company's bank loans (note 27).

In consideration that the business of one (2023: two
subsidiaries) subsidiary of the Group had been loss making
in recent years and it was not considered probable that
profits would be available in the foreseeable future, an
impairment loss of RMB31,246,000 (2023: RMB23,957,000)
was recognised for right-of-use assets of this (2023:
these two subsidiaries) subsidiary during the year. As at 31
December 2024, the recoverable amounts of the related
cash-generating units were nil (2023: nil).

Impairment testing of right-of-use assets

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by the executive directors. The
pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 13.0% (2023: 14.0%). Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0% (2023:
2.0%), which was the same as the long-term average
growth rate of the industry.
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FEBERKEA (B

(a)

EHEREE (B)
BEAANEBRSHEBR42ELS
FRNHEELHEERLZM
— MM BAEREBILSE
TSR HERERERT
EIER e

RIE2E-_WNE+-_B=+—
B ItREREEFELSAA
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BB ER ARARIRT
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13.  LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

4= AN
whk 3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash

flow projections:

Revenue:

Gross margin:

Operating expenses:

Discount rates:

The bases used to determine the
future earnings are historical sales
and average expected growth rates of
the retail market in the PRC.

Gross margins are based on the
average gross margins achieved
in the past few years immediately
before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

The bases used to determine the
values assigned are the cost of
inventories purchased for resale, staff
costs, depreciation and amortisation,
rental expenses and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to
the key assumption reflects past
experience and management's
commitment to maintain the
operating expenses to an acceptable
level.

Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to
the relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of right-
of-use assets of the respective cash-generating units,
management believes that no reasonably possible change in
any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets of the relevant units to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

13. 8 @)

FEBERKEA (B
@ REAREE (#B)

AR EERABEENEER

NTFRGESREEANE

EJ

RAREERKR
MBEERBE
& S B U R R
TEEETHHH
FHBERERR

ERE: ERAEDRER
15 5 £F 12 B B8
£ Fi 12 BB T 35
EREHE B
R0 B R
BT R R
5

KERX: ARNEBEERERB
BENEERMHE
EMBANTFE
A BT A
reEk#E M
T F S R HAth A
ERXo&EFiE
EEBEENEEZR
IR PR B 1 A B
REBRBREE
FH 57 #E 55 0% P 9%
RIKFBIEEE

WREK: WREXRBRERE

JE #LE2 AR A BB {1

ERANESER R

A& 5t o

RRELEHBRE

M ERREELEBUZME
RREEENEREE E &
HEERGELREAEZERR
WHESIEFAEHIRE S B fE
ERBUZERAREEZIR
HEZBRERKREIEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. B @&
The Group as a lessee (continued) KREBEAAEAN (@)
(b)  Lease liabilities ) HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

HEEENREERFRNE
E2) LI

2024 2023
“EE —E=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AE®BTT
As at 1 January R—B—H 3,017,563 3,499,654
Additions arising from new leases HEEEENRE 38,354 72,755
Accretion of interest recognised during the € PIFESR AT BN
year (note 6) (F5E6) 269,934 297,625
Payments (NEN (731,604) (736,886)
Increase/(Decrease) arising from lease term A EIRFIERNELEMN
modification @, Oss) 948,559 (117,620)
Decrease arising from lease term FAEFRIRIEEENR D
termination (52,546) -
Exchange realignment bE 2 aR 2 134 2,035
As at 31 December R+ZRA=+—H 3,490,394 3,017,563
Analysed into: DITATF -
- Current portion —BIERER 501,555 656,677
- Non-current portion —IJEBNHAER 2,988,839 2,360,886
3,490,394 3,017,563

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

The maturity of analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 35.5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. & @)
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEEA (@
(c)  Amounts recognised in profit or loss (c)  FIRmMERIIZEE
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases REEAMEERINEEE
are as follows: mE:

2024 2023
—E-NE TR =48

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEEENHE 269,934 297,625
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENITEE B 312,769 359,385
Expense relating to short-term leases BERRIAEENMS 19,103 22,172

Variable lease payments not included in ~ WEF AREEEEN
the measurement of lease liabilities PIEEE N 61,280 67,960
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE (31,246) (23,957)
631,840 723,185

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B2 EEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 B ZE_ZT_NE+_"_F=+—

13.  LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d) Variable lease payments

HIEEE

13.

The Group leased a number of the retail stores which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the
Group's turnover or profit before tax generated from the
retail stores. There are also minimum annual base rental
arrangements for these leases. The following provides

information on the Group's variable lease payments,

HE (&
FEBERKEA (B
(@)  EHEHEEN

AEBEHEEFZTEE H
BEERAERTEENE
FEIFELERRATFER
PJEBEENRER - ZFM
ETARBEFERELAEER
Hro PR B ER

including the magnitude in relation to fixed payments: HEMRPNER  gFRE T
IR A RIREEE :
Fixed Variable
PEMUEIS payments Total
ERAREA AR mat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTn AR®BTRT AR¥®TR®
2024 —E-ME

Fixed rent EEfE 285,572 - 285,572
Variable rent with minimum payment &8 REMA I oJEHE 420,146 20,080 440,226
Variable rent only Ergfs - 41,200 41,200
705,718 61,280 766,998

2023 TEC=HF
Fixed rent EEHE 313,845 = 313,845
Variable rent with minimum payment 278 REAHRBN ] EH & 403,258 25715 428,973
Variable rent only EEIE-Jik = 42,245 42,245
717,103 67,960 785,063

(e) Total cash outflow

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

e)  HEFFHAEEE
ARG REREXRPHME
ERTMHMBEANT -

2024 2023

—E@mE —E-=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AEREFIT
Within operating activities KEEREA 22,872 100,356
Within financing activities MEEFN 731,604 736,386
754,476 837,242
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

LEASES (continued) 13. HE @
The Group as a lessor AEBEASHBEAN
The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) and right- AEBREKEHEYMERER
of-use assets in the PRC under operating lease or finance lease BEPREEEEREME (YsE12)
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to EEREESE MEFNMEBENF
15 years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to 1E15F - HERMNBEEREAXZ
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments RSB TREESRMNIRTHE R
according to the then prevailing market conditions. ETTHESAER
(f) Operating leases \n AAEHE
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year AREBNRENERNHEESIW
was RMB633,180,000 (2023: RMB640,771,000), details of A& ANE1633,180,0007T (Z
which are included in note 5 to the consolidated financial T =& ANE 640,771,000
statements. 7o) RN EMBRE
P EEs5
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the undiscounted fixed RIE_NER_E_=
lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods +_A=+—H 'FxEBRXE
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are REEBEAERLANAT
as follows: BIHREHE R RITIR
BEBEEMRAT :

2024 2023
Sl 10 - ==

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRTE ARBTT

Within one year —FR 564,224 488,599
After one year but within two years —FBERMERN 405,015 428,759
After two years but within three years MEBEBR=ZFERN 302,619 330,693
After three years but within four years —FEEROEERN 259,984 261,511
After four years but within five years MEBERAEER 244,192 245,552
After five years AFEE 912,193 1,145,124
2,688,227 2,900,238
In addition to the above, contingent lease payments are b _ESCPramsh » SRR E I
calculated based on a percentage of the relevant financial RiIEEEEERR LEAN
performance of the tenants pursuant to the relevant rental MM BEENE—B DL
agreements. 5t8o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. & @)
The Group as a lessor (continued) AEBEABEAN @)
(g)  Finance leases g HEHE
The carrying amount of net investments in the subleases HHEKEFENERENR
and the movements during the year are as follows: FEREBWNT

2024 2023
—E-NE TR =48

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

As at 1 January R—B—H 241,266 282,460
Additions arising from new leases MEEEENAE 14,246 35,060
Accretion of interest recognised FAREIRF] L0
during the year (note 6) (M 5x6) 16,392 22,722
Decrease arising from lease term MHERREREER R
modification (23,168) (4,799)
Proceeds from subleases EHEEMIE (101,981) (94,177)
As at 31 December R+ZRA=+—H 146,755 241,266
Analysed into: DU -
- Current portion (note 21) —BNEAER 7 (Mg5E21) 91,386 102,831
- Non-current portion (note 17) —3JERNERER > (F¥5E17) 55,369 138,435
146,755 241,266
Net investments in the subleases represent net investments HHNEREFHEANERE
in the leases by the Group as an intermediate lessor, among ARNHBEANBERES
which a long-term portion of RMB55,369,000 (2023: HoEEFTAEMEENE
RMB138,435,000) was included in other assets and a short- HR &R A R #855,369,0007T (—
term portion of RMB91,386,000 (2023: RMB102,831,000) T =4 . AK¥138,435,000
was included in prepayments and other receivables. 70) Rt ATEMNRIE R EM

FEMRIBNEHAE 2 AR
91,386,0007T (ZE =4 A
S #£102,831,0007T) ©

216 2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. HE @
The Group as a lessor (continued) KAEBEABEAN @)
(g)  Finance leases (continued) g HEHE (&
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the undiscounted fixed RN_E_NFEFAR_FT =

+TZTRA=+—RH'TxEBRXK
REERBEAEBRBAH

lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable finance leases with its tenants are as

follows: BiHm B E R RITIR
EEHEMRUT :

2024 2023

“EMEF —EZ=
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFT ARETIT
Within one year —FR 98,727 117,446
After one year but within two years —FREPRMFEA 46,491 87,584
After two years but within three years MEBER=ZFRA 10,139 46,636
After three years but within four years —FBEREOFERN 1,830 12,867
After four years but within five years MFEBERAEFR 1,656 6,195
After five years AEE 433 2,089
159,276 272,817
In addition to the above, contingent lease payments are Bk _ESCRRaah s SRR E R

calculated based on a percentage of the relevant financial
performance of the tenants pursuant to the relevant rental

agreements.

RFEREE R Z RER B

H A 7 75 3 4

= =

o

WE—BDL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

14. GOODWILL 14.

The major changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill for the
year ended 31 December 2024 result from the impairment losses
recognised for the underperforming cash generating units of
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. and Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza
Co., Ltd. (2023: Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd.).

The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

[

g

BE_EZ_WE+_-_A=+—HIt
FE BEROENEAEHEH
R ImERPUEEERRAS
MAZIUEERESBERAR (ZE
TEFEIAEBRPLUNBEERR
NE) RIBAENIRSEEBURE

BYRERSIEFT R

BENKREFEDHUT

2024 2023
—E@mE —E-=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETIT
At the beginning of year FH]
Gross carrying amount ERME4EE 2,254,533 2,254,533
Accumulated impairment HEtEE (617,850) (601,573)
1,636,683 1,652,960
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—EB—HNEREZFE 1,636,683 1,652,960
Impairment losses HERE (100,275) (16,277)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+-_B=+—HMEEFE 1,536,408 1,636,683
At the end of year FEXR
Gross carrying amount IRMEARE 2,254,533 2,254,533
Accumulated impairment HEtEE (718,125) (617,850)
1,536,408 1,636,683
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

GOODWILL (continued) 14. BE @&
The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the HENREEESEETNIREE
following cash-generating units: B

2024 2023
—E-mE

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B =% ARETT AR¥TT

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. IAEBERAPUMEE
BIRAF (1) 331,147 365,405
Asia Advancement International Limited B5EEIFRBRA T (i) 315,225 315,225
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. BEREEERERAE (i) 297,097 297,097
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping BIREFEBEYRL
Centre Co., Ltd. BIRAE (iv) 272,743 272,743
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial ~ FIEEfREE B R ¥
Co., Ltd. BIRAF (v) 155,066 155,066
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. PERI ZHBRES
BRAR (vi) - 66,017
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd.  #%[5 = R B B E 5
BRAF (vii) 91,478 91,478
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., &[5 B BREEY EH
Ltd. BRRE (viii) - -
Lung Shing International Investment & [REREIIRZE %R
Development Company Limited BREAT (ix) 59,003 59,003
Parkson Credit Parkson Credit (x) 14,649 14,649
1,536,408 1,636,683
Notes: Ik -
0] Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. principally engages in the operation (i IAEERFUNEERRELAEE
of one department store in Nanchang, the PRC. ERHEmEERE—xKAEE-
(ii) Asia Advancement International Limited and its subsidiaries (i) B EEERERATS REREB AT
principally engage in the operation of one department store in TERFEEBRCE —REE
Kunming, the PRC. [ o
(iii) Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages in the (iii) AREELERERARASETERSD
operation of three department stores in Beijing and Harbin, the Bt ERBMHEERE =G4S
PRC. & e
(iv) Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. principally (iv) BUXEBEBEYRLERAE
engages in the operation of one department store in Anshan, the FERFEHBLUEE—KBE
PRC. J& o
(v) Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally engages (v) HEHBEEXREEERABRTE
in the operation of three department stores in Nanning, the PRC. NP EEELEE =T 55

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED B2 EEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

14.

GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi) Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of one department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

(vii) Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of two department stores and one supermarket in
Mianyang, the PRC.

(viii)  Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of one department store in Shenyang, the PRC.

(ix) Lung Shing International Investment & Development Company
Limited and its subsidiary principally engage in property
investment and holding in Anshan, the PRC.

(x) Parkson Credit principally engages in the provision of money
lending and credit services in Malaysia.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by the executive directors. Apart from Parkson Credit, for
which the pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 24.5% (2023: 24.5%), the pre-tax discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13.0% (2023: 14.0%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0%
(2023: 2.0%), which was the same as the long-term average growth
rate of the industry.

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow
projections:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market
and credit services in the PRC and Malaysia,
respectively.

Revenue:

Gross margin: Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past few
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market

development.
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

GOODWILL (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

(continued)

Operating expenses: The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation and other operating
expenses. The value assigned to the key
assumption reflects past experience and
management's commitment to maintain the
operating expenses to an acceptable level.

Discount rates: Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the

relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of the respective
cash-generating units, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause
the carrying amounts, including goodwill, of the relevant units to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.

As the carrying value of cash generating unit of Jiangxi Parkson
Retail Co., Ltd. and Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. have
been reduced to its recoverable amount of RMB331,147,000 and nil
respectively (2023: Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. has been reduced
to its recoverable amount of RMB365,405,000) as at 31 December
2024, the related goodwill impairment loss of RMB34,258,000
and RMB66,017,000 respectively (2023: RMB16,277,000) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the value
in use of the cash generating units above, the Group's management
is not currently aware of any other probable changes that would
necessitate changes in its key estimates and could cause the cash
generating units' carrying amounts to exceed their recoverable
amounts.

HE (B
AR EERABEENEERR @

KeER%: ARECECEBEYN
EESHEBEMEBE A
WEEME 8T M
T reEE R EIH U E
thiEEMX - AFIRTE
BENEZRR XM
BELERREERK
BRI

IR EE ©
PIRE IREXRKMREEREM
HERENE NG
TE RS AL 5t o
R EENBRE

MRS REELEEUNEREE
FEHGEEERGELAEFEER
RUESEEHREE RER
WEMUREDE (BEEHE EBRE
BI YR [e] 5 58 o

HRR 2 _WE+"/A=+—
B ImERTUMEERRAT
REZISERESBERATNIR
SELBEUMNERESRLOEHET
U [el &880 Bl & A R #331,147,0007T
REB(CEZI=F IS EPLN
BEAERATERLVEAHWEE
%8 A\ R 18365,405,0007T) * AR
ZRBEEED B A AR 34,258,000
TR AR®66,017,0007T (ZE =
£ AR#16,277,0007T) BN E18
MRS o

RYERELAREELTBMUER
BERRIENEEBRERIN > A&EH
EEEBMIE MBI ERENE
HIESMsUoEENReELE
UREESBE A URE R ER
Hi eI sEE#) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

15.  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15.

The movements of other intangible assets are as follows:

HihwEmREE
H?ﬂ#@ﬂ;:ﬁéﬁ’ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ? :

222

Computer Franchise Customer
software Licence* agreement™ Trademark™ relationship™* Total
E e R REREEhEe [l BRmMGE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT NS AEETFT AEBTR AEBTR ARETT
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=5-B-H
Cost A& ) 19.420 28,678 6177 36,009 24,689 114973
Accumulated amortisation and R BELAE
impairment (1941) (28,678) (6,177) (36,009) (20571) (110,846)
Net book amount REFE 9 - - - 4,118 4127
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-Z-=E
+ZA=+-H
LR
Opening net book amount BRAEFE 9 s s s 4118 4127
Amortisation charge BHER 9 - - - (4118) (4127)
Closing net book amount HREmEE - - - - - -
At 31 December 2023, 1 Januay HRZBZZ&
2024 and 31 December 2024 +ZB=+-B*
—E-mE-B-AH
RZE-ME
+ZB=+-H
Gross carrying amount RESE 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 114,973
Accumulated amortisation and R EELAE
impairment (19,420) (28,678) (6,177) (36,009) (24,689) (114,973)
Net book amount REFE - - - - - -
The amortisation charge for the year was recognised in the FANEBEERAN G ERRPE
consolidated statement of profit or loss. o

fully impaired in prior years.

*%

years.

"The Library Coffee Bar", "Quiznos" and "Johnny Rockets" have been

Franchise agreement and trademark were fully impaired in prior

o A subsidiary acquired by the Group in 2018 had established
relationships with its customers through contracts, for a period of
5 years commencing from 2018. The amount represents the fair

value of the customer relationship acquired by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. FYEE

ANENIKRE
2024
—E_ME

RMB'000
ARBFT

2023

=

—_—<——

RMB'000
ARBF T

REERTNKRERE

Cost of investments in associates, less

accumulated impairment BREHRIE 40,253 40,253
Share of post-acquisition profits and other ~ FE{LUREE &AM HAh 2 E UK
comprehensive income, net of dividends A R EIA R
received 12,219 11,462
52,472 51,715

TRECSEEIAHLAEREAMS
BEENKENAFE ZENT
AEFESTBRENIFELTEA
ERAESERAHBAEEN_Z
TNERE_=F+_A=+—

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which,
in the opinion of the directors, are material to the Group and are
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market prices are not
available, which in the opinion of the directors principally affected
the results or net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and

2023. HRNEXENEEPFERTIETE-
Country/place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued and paid % of
Name of associate Form of business structure  business up capital interest held Principal activity
AMEIRES BRTNARE EE-L
BERFHE e EE i FIEEIR /2 R AL FEXH
Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. ("Parkson  Incorporated The PRC RMB80,000,000 49 Operation of department stores
Newcore”) ERiiAva HE N (2023:49) HEEEE
BRATEREEE (LB) BRAT 80,0000007c (ZEZZ=fF !
Q=R s Tl 49)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERARMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16.

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Parkson
Newcore which are accounted for using the equity method:

REEQRNKRE (8
155 PR B 5 5 A\ BR B9 5 B 4R P R 69 B

HBEMMEZHEIWT :

2024 2023

—E_mE -
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFIT
Current assets MENEE 271,764 290,579
Non-current assets ERFEE 139,426 198,515
Current liabilities mEaR (204,039) (215,910)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (106,199) (172,806)
Net assets BERE 100,952 100,378
Revenue W 796,875 879,732
Total expenses R (757,715) (844,204)
Profit before tax mAF)E 39,160 35,528
Income tax expense FTEMREEX (10,989) (9,913)

Profit and total comprehensive FEMNBREZE

income for the year WA 4B %8 28,171 25,615
Dividends received from the associate B =N B WE A AR B 13,523 4,146
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16.

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of Parkson Newcore is set out below:

REEATNIRE (8)
bt o S 4B O R I R AR T Y
IREIEAV BRI T

2024 2023
—E@FE —E”=
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT AE®BFT
Total net assets of the associate BE NN EEFEEEE 100,952 100,378
Proportion of ownership interests held by REBRENFBEERLLA
Group 49% 499
Goodwill RS - -
Carrying amount of the investments in RE M EEmRRPREBE QT
associates in the consolidated financial KENREE
statements 49,466 49,185

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

Aggregate carrying amount of individually
immaterial associates in the consolidated

BRIMELAEEZNHEATNG
StEH

2024
—E-ME

RMB'000
ARETTT

RMB'000
AR®ETT

mEMBEREANENMSAE
ENHEATNEREMSE

financial statements 3,006 2,530
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of ZAEBEEZERHEATW

those associates': 4E%E .
- profit before tax — R AIA] 752 229
- total comprehensive income —Z2mRALELE 704 216

The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other
commitments relating to its investments in associates.

There were no profits or loss incurred by Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd.,
an associate of the Group, during the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023. The accumulated losses not recognised were
approximately RMB9,191,000 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB9,191,000).

AEBUTREETABENBEQT
RENERARAGRREMARE-

BHE_ T NER_T_=ZF+_
B=+—HIFEE xEEKHER
SlHabitat Blue Sdn. Bhd il fEE 418
HZFo R _E_WNE+_B=+—
H XAERNRFEBEBNAARKE
9,191,000 (ZE - =ZF : AR
9,191,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

17. OTHER ASSETS

17. HthEE

2024 2023
—E_mE -

RMB'000 RMB'000
AREEFT AR#EF T
Long-term rental deposits EfifEisEs = 94,211
Net investments in the subleases (note 13(g)) B &K & F58 (MT5E13(g)) 55,369 138,435
Others Hih - 874
55,369 233,520

3 = ==

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 18. BEREBERERKR
BE_ZWGER-E-F+

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

B=+—RHLEEE - BLERNEBEEE
REENEFWT

Recognised in

the consolidated

As at statement of As at
1 January profit or loss 31 December
) ®+=A
®—B—H BamRED =+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR
2024 ZEZNE
Deferred tax assets: FERIBEE .
Accrued other expenses et H AT 5,425 6,350 11,775
Right-of-use assets and lease FAAREEKRAE
liabilities =L 190,773 (5.419) 185,354
Accrued coupon provision [EsTEE SR 3,331 (369) 2,962
Tax losses RIERE (a) 63,965 10,345 74,310
263,494 10,907 274,401
Deferred tax liabilities: EEREEE .
Depreciation e (17) 17 -
Fair value adjustments WK B ABIFTES
arising from acquisition of ~ FIAAEERE
subsidiaries (162,808) 7,796 (155,012)
Right-of-use assets EHEEE (53,358) 41,339 (12,019)
Withholding taxes R (b) (10,198) 446 (9,752)
(226,381) 49,598 (176,783)
37,113 60,505 97,618
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 18. IRIEMIBEEEREE (@)

Recognised in
the consolidated
As at statement of As at
1 January profit or loss 31 December

MRS ®r+ZA

®—R—H BmRESD =t+—H

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B ARETT ARETT ARETT

2023 EC=HF
Deferred tax assets: BREREBEE
Depreciation e 233 (233) =
Accrued other expenses FEstEMES 2,268 3,157 5,425
Right-of-use assets and lease FAREEKRBE
liabilities =L 186,394 4,379 190,773
Accrued coupon provision s EEHERE 3,185 146 3,331
Tax losses RIERE (a) 86,590 (22,625) 63,965
278,670 (15,176) 263,494
Deferred tax liabilities: BERESE !
Depreciation e (2,021) 2,004 (17)
Fair value adjustments WK B ABIFTES
arising from acquisition of AR AEERE
subsidiaries (222,619) 59,811 (162,808)
Right-of-use assets EHEREE (78,699) 25,341 (53,358)
Withholding taxes R (b) (11,440) 1,242 (10,198)
(314,779) 88,398 (226,381)
(36,109) 73,222 37,113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ll\l

BT HRRMIEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

18.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses arising from overseas subsidiaries of RMB26,654,000 (2023:
RMB12,234,000), including amounts of RMB4,667,000 (2023:
RMB657,000) that will expire within three years, RMB12,732,000
(2023: RMB3,152,000) that will expire within seven years and
RMB9,255,000 (2023: RMB8,425,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits, respectively, or tax
losses arising from the PRC subsidiaries of RMB1,422,975,000
(2023: RMB1,161,146,000) that will expire within the next five
years, as it was not considered probable as at 31 December 2024
that taxable profits would be available against which such tax

losses can be utilised.

(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2024, deferred tax liability of RMB9,752,000
(2023: RMB10,198,000) has been recognised for withholding
taxes. Other than that, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in the PRC. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in the PRC for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised totalled approximately RMB4,738,842,000 as at 31

December 2024 (2023: RMB5,088,779,000).

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

18.

BRIERBEEERER (8

Mt

(a)

HRAEER _E_NFE+— ﬁ
=+—HRBPFKEIFEERA]
mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%#ﬁﬁﬂ’
LR D R TIE NS B A B EAE
ﬁﬁ%kﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂmmﬁgﬁ
AR #£26,654,00070 (T~ =4 :
AR #12,234,0007T) (BEHR=
FEREHI AR 154,667,0007T (Z
T =4 . AR¥657,00070) *#&
Rt EREIE AR 112,732,000
7T (CEZ=F . ARE3,152,000
o) RERBIBHNARE
92%0MﬁEL_7__ F£ARKE
8,425,0007T) ) IEF B BIKT B A
SEEBNRAKRAERNIHNGK
TER5 18 A R #81,422,975,0007T (Z
T =F: NE¥1,161,146,000
70) BMRRERIBEE

RIEPEEEMRBSRE RAEHE
AL LIS IR E (B2 ) SMNED
KREEZET KR ERE 000978
HR-zREB 2 NEFE—H
—HEER BRNR_Z2ZtE
+ZB=+—HZBEAHR
Mol EAINEKREEFTED
FEBEEITBERWHE  BloT#
sl BREBINME - AER
S BB EA5%I10%
It » A E BB S (TR B R AL
UNZERBRIN BT\
— B —HEEENENFIDIKN
& E BT FEINR -

ACE_NE+_HB=+—H"
EEREE A AR9,752,0007T
(ZZEZ=%: AR"%10,198,000
7)) ERLTEINRERIE FRIL
Gh > A FL R A £ B 5 FR B AR 3L
BB AB BEMEINRN K
Eﬂjﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ’iﬁm%ﬁmmﬁ&w
BEMBE-EEZRAE ZENEB
NE A A BE EATEEEJM}?)E
BREABEMN R_ZE_NE+_A4H
=+—H > AEREREERIE
BENTENNBATDKRERS
B EZHEAENAE AR
4,738,842,0007T (_7_:¢ A
R #5,088,779,0007T) ©



19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

—=.AH
=

AR IIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

INVENTORIES 19. 78
2024 2023
—EomE 0 —Z"=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTFR AREBTT
Merchandise 2 ah 375,889 418,695
Consumables JHAE 3,039 3,189
Less: Impairment A (167) (167)
378,761 421,717
The movements in provision for impairment of inventories during FREFEERERENEESU T .

the year are as follows:

2024 2023

- 111 3
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARTIT
As at 1 January —H—H 167 315
Reversal of impairment losses recognised, net %"@ B HESRIR AR 185 58 = (148)
As at 31 December B+-_B=+—H 167 167
Included in the above provision for impairment of inventories is STALMESRERESEBE

the provision for individually impaired inventories of nil (2023: =8
RMB69,000) with a carrying amount before provision of nil (2023:
RMB315,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, no reversal was made by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group reversed
RMB217,000 of inventories write down made in 2022 as the Group
has sold those goods to third parties at above cost.

WOR R F &

SEREATS (CE_=ZF: AR
69,0007T) * HEHERIREEAS (Z
=4 AR¥3150007T) °

BE_TNME+-_A=+—HL
FE> AEEMEFHED-

REE_ZE_=F+_"_A=+—H
¢EF AERELR _ZT__
S AR 217,000 0 A5

AEEEREARADE=ZFHE

1= O
ZEEmMme
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. FEWNE 518

230

2024 2023
“EmE

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFRT AREBTRE

Current B HA
Third party £= 373,982 297,582
Less: Impairment allowance OB E RS (7.592) (8,367)
366,390 289,215
Non-current JEBNHEA
Third party B=H 687,137 399,828
Less: Impairment allowance OB BRI (10,004) (7,911)
677,133 391,917
1,043,523 681,132

Trade receivables mainly arise from purchase by customers with
credit cards and credit services arise from loan receivables. The
credit period of trade receivables is generally one month. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances, except for loan receivables which are secured over the
motor vehicles of customers. Among the balance, RMB977,799,000
(2023: RMB590,357,000) are with an interest rate ranging from
6.6% to 16.0% per annum (2023: 7.6% to 16.0% per annum),
depending on the payment term of loan receivables, while others
are interest-free.

As at 31 December 2024, Parkson Credit's trade receivables
of RMB412,279,000 (2023: RMB207,850,000) and unrealised
receivables of RMB103,746,000 (2023: RMB78,918,000) which will
be due within 48 months, were pledged to secure Parkson Credit's
bank loans in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM") (note 27).
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2024
and 2023, based on the invoice dates and net of ECL allowance, is
as follows:

FEU & 7 ™ IE (8)
R_B_MER_E_=F+_#
=+—8B RERAMKNGEAR
EEBEREBZEREZREZ R
AT :

2024 2023
—E@mE —EF"=

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BETFT ARETIT

Within 1 year —FE RN 366,390 289,215

1to 2 years —EWF 276,937 172,761

Over 2 years mEM 400,196 219,156

1,043,523 681,132

The Group applies the simplified approach for impairment of
trade receivables (other than loans receivables). The Group uses a
provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables (other than
loans receivables). The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e. gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

AEEREABEEETREESZN
B BREWERSN BRE ~EH
RAEEFBEEUFERKE S ®RE
FREWEMIN NRRBEEBE-
BEXDENRAREEBLUGER
NS EE R D EETHE WRE
8h)) o

BEERRVIDEREAEENESE
BERENX -XEBERKEBFHEE
fe LU BB 1E (5 B 1R R A BR K Al BE
PEE R o B 40 > 5 TR AE R R (U0
Bl EERE BRI RR—FE
T8 HAEERTEXHTHNE
NEBERM BELEBORGEREZ-
RERSHR REMELTHER
BORIL ARG EHREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

20.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group applies the general approach for the impairment of loan
receivables. Under the general approach, an impairment analysis
is performed at the end of each reporting period based on three
stages to measure expected credit losses. The Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of loan receivables or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired and, hence, whether it needs to
provide for 12-month ECLs or lifetime ECLs. The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, loan receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject
to enforcement activity.

In the situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. Set
out below is the loss rate applied on the Group's trade receivables
where there were no comparable companies:

20.

FEU & 57 ™ IE (8)

7= £ [ 5t P W B OB (B FE AR — AR 75
o RBE—MRA R REREPFIR
B ERBRETRED T Ut e
BHEEFR - AEEEEAER
RS E R LR E H A RS

HE HItEERSTEM128A
RHREEHRENFERATAMEERS
BEHREE AT B REBHERM
BER BRHOREEEURINR
SHHRJESAEEBESMH ER
AT B R ARAOE IR B TRAIB &
BRAUSZFNER - BEMES HE
WEREBRBBE-—FERTETR
FIITIREN R T LIRS o

EEAHNABEEERANAIEL
RABNBERT AE2EELAER
WELEGERCSE  RABEXRTE
Lt AMEEBE BHIERRTHEH
B DU B S A AR O e AR BRAE B AR
BEA NEBA) ~EEFAELERA
BINERT  AEEBWE SRR

Fr@R <z BEEHINUWT :
Simplified
approach General approach
fiEA —RAN
Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs
- not credit - credit
impaired impaired
12-month financial financial
Lifetime ECLs ECLs assets assets
ERATEHR  FRAEH
FEBE- FEBE-
FRATEH 1EAEH FEERESR EERE
=EEE =EEBE REE EREE
2024 —EMmE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREE 0.00% 0.06% 6.08% 34.22% 1.66%
Gross carrying amount REARE 65,724 880,496 79,049 35,851 1,061,120
Expected credit losses BHEERE - 526 4,804 12,266 17,596
2023 -t
Expected credit loss rate RIEEREE 0.00% 0.08% 10.02% 61.19% 2.33%
Gross carrying amount IREAE 90,775 549,956 36,867 19,812 697,410
Expected credit losses B EEE = 462 3,694 12,122 16,278

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%



20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as
follows:

Simplified
approach

__ mitps

Lifetime
ECLs

20.

12-month
ECLs

FEU & 5 MIE (&)
A 5 TR AR 1 B R B
BT -

General approach

—HRAR

Lifetime ECLs  Lifetime ECLs
- not credit - credit
impaired impaired
financial LlETIE]
assets assets

FRAEH  FRAER
FEEE- FEB#R-

FRATER 2@BEHE EEERE EERE
EEEBE =EBE SHEE EREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TrT AR¥Tr ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR®
2024 —E-mE
As at 1 January K—B—H - 462 3,694 12,122 16,278
Amount written off during the year  FEPIHISH & 48 - - - (27,883) (27.883)
ECL allowance recognised FRBINEBREE
during the year 1R AHE - 64 1,110 28,027 29,201
As at 31 December R+ZB=+—H - 526 4,804 12,266 17,596
2023 TEC-F
As at 1 January R—HB—H - 297 1,898 6,465 8,660
Amount written off during the year ~ FERMiTH £ 58 = = (5) (12,656) (12,661)
ECL allowance recognised during FARINEBEE
the year [ ggibedic S 165 1,801 18313 20,279
As at 31 December BK+—-B=+—H S 462 3,694 12,122 16,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Lease prepayments related to variable lease

21.

BRAR EEE M RAY

A 11 7R I8 K H th FE W wR IR

2024 2023

—E_mE == —

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
AREBF T

payment FENHEE 11,230 83,195
Rental deposits HERs 195,130 95,864
Advances to suppliers 5] {4 8 7 TR A K 25,202 25,839
Operating lease receivables KEHRERWRIE 149,516 168,467
Prepaid tax FAIIRIE 5,122 10,548
Interest receivables FEWF] B 1,790 3,423
Other prepayments H a8 40,658 31,495
Net investments in the subleases (note 13(g)) HEFHER & FE8 (MI5E13(q)) 91,386 102,831
Other receivables HAthFE W =R I 64,232 78,868

584,266 600,530

Impairment allowance (note) HEEHE () (54,022) (34,098)

530,244 566,432

Less: Lease prepayments o A (11,230) (83,195)

Less: Advances to suppliers o AR ERE TR R (25,202) (25,839)

Less: Prepaid tax B FENRIE (5.122) (10,548)

Less: Other prepayments A EMTEARIE (40,658) (31,495)
Financial assets included in other receivables 5t A EfthFE U ZIBRY

EMEE 448,032 415,355

Note:

The movements in the provision for impairment of prepayments and other
receivables during the year are as follows:

PH5E -

7 O TR 0T R L R M (1 1
BB :

2024 2023
—EFEmE B =

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AEBEETIT

As at 1 January W—B—H 34,098 32,809

Impairment for the year FERE 19,924 1,289

As at 31 December W+-B=+—H 54,022 34,098

For financial assets included in other receivables that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date, the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The loss rate are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss
record of the Group or adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The

loss rate as at 31 December 2024 was 10.8% (2023 7.6%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
t=5H j?%E%M—JLI (II\E)

w37
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

21.  PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. FRAMIRIERHEMMEWRIE (&)
The movement of gross balance of other receivables is as follows: HEUWIBAEERZBA S SIA T ¢

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—PEE FIREE FFEER st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFR AR%Trn ARETR ARETR®

As at 1 January 2023 R-B-=£-A-H 317,102 2,554 30,867 350,523
Amounts originated/(received) ERNEE/ BW) 228

during the year 99,853 (960) 37 98,930

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ FHE—PEREEEE [ (2,130) 2,130 = =

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ HE—IERBEEEE =L (609) = 609 =

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ FHE _PEERER T E =L = (715) 715 =

As at 31 December 2023 and ﬁi\:g::fﬁ‘_ﬁ_‘l‘—ﬁﬁ

1 January 2024 “EmE—-B—H 414,216 3,009 32,228 449,453
Amounts originated/(received) FREE/ (EW 228

during the year 56,037 (2,051) (1,385) 52,601

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ HF—FEEBREEE MK (232) 232 - -

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ HF—FEEBREEF =K (295) - 295 -

Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ HF _MEEBREEF =[5 - (708) 708 -

As at 31 December 2024 \ZENME+"A=+—H 469,726 482 31,846 502,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. FE{OFIEREMEWRIE (B)
The movement in the ECL allowance of other receivables is as HithpEWHIE 2 BRI EEE1EEE
follows: RESEH T ;

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—REE FRR FoRE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFR ARBTR ARETR

As at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F—F—H 665 1277 30,867 32,809
ECL allowance recognised FRERNBHREEEEEE

during the year 6 378 905 1,289
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ FASE—TEREREE "M (206) 206 = =
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ FE—TEERBEEE =K (99) = 99 =
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ FAE _PEEREBBEE =M - (357) 357 =
As at 31 December 2023 and RIBZ=F+"A=+—Hk

1 January 2024 “E2-E—-F—H 366 1,504 32,228 34,098
ECL allowance recognised/(reversed) FRFERD,/ (HBi[o]) WFBHEAEE

during the year BiERE 21,605 (920) (761) 19,924
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ HF—FEEIBBEF M (M) 1 - -
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ HIF—MRBRZE E”_ =RBE (25) - 25 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ M5 _MBRBRZE EM_ =RBE - (354) 354 5
As at 31 December 2024 RZZEZMFE+ZA=+—H 21935 241 31,846 54,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR  22.
LOSS

RARBESIEEHEEHA
HamZEMEE

2024 2023
—E-NF 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTRT

Wealth management products HIEM
As at 1 January n—E—H 57,540 108,315
Addition during the year FARARE 68,000 49,403
Redemption during the year FREE (60,277) (101,007)
Change in fair value of financial assets BARBESEEHEEZS)
at fair value through profit or loss (note 6) STABmZEMBEES
~aBEEEZH (fize) 1,422 829
As at 31 December K+ZBA=+—H 66,685 57,540

The wealth management products are managed by licensed
financial institutions in the PRC to invest principally in certain
financial assets, including bonds, trusts, cash funds, bond funds
or unlisted equity investment issued and circulated in the PRC in
accordance with the related entrusted agreements.

The investments are measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The gain on the change in fair value of
RMB1,422,000 (2023: RMB829,000) is credited to "Finance income”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 6).

ZEEVERHTEF RS RIEE
RIEEBELEHREE TERE
RETEMEE SENPEET
krBzEs Gt -REEE A
FERETHIFLTRAESE-

RBEHER  ZERERAALEE
HAE - RAABEZEFNE AR
1,422,000 (ZE_=ZF : AR
829,0007T) EFF AGEEEERTAN
MEbE WA (FF5E6) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS 23. HRERREEEBYREHER

238

Cash and bank balances (including short-term IR R IR1T45 6%

2024 2023
Sl 10 - 2=

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTE

(BFERB AR

deposits with original maturity of less than ~ EBZIEEAE=ZEA W

three months when acquired) RRERER) 1,466,508 1,583,414
Restricted cash ZRHIIRE 63,999 100,191
Short-term deposits more than three months BB =188 B E—EM

and less than one year BERER 9,175 16,563
Long-term deposits EHER 26,202 27,202

1,565,884 1,727,370
Less: NS
- Pledged short-term time deposits for —1ERB A (R IR RV IR 17 52 HA
performance guarantees THE™R (1,000) (1,800)
- Pledged long-term time deposits for —1ER AR AR 1R R HA
performance guarantees THE™R (26,202) (25,302)
- Non-pledged long-term time deposits — BRI RBATHER - (1,900)
- Non-pledged short-term time deposits with —BE A BRF/RA 2 A H BB
original maturity of more than three = BRI EEFITH
months when acquired THE™R (8,175) (14,763)
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEZHEY 1,530,507 1,683,605

The cash and bank balances and time deposits of the Group
denominated in RMB amounting to RMB1,377,572,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: RMB1,571,797,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Requlations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The cash and bank balances included the short-term deposits with
original maturity of less than three months when acquired of
RMB176,499,000 (2023: RMB383,343,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has pledged deposits of
RMB27,202,000 (2023: RMB27,102,000) held in designated bank
accounts for performance guarantees.
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

TRADE PAYABLES 24. BENEZME
An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the recognition R BB BN E S HIEMNIRES
dates, is as follows: DWW

2024 2023
“EMFE 2=

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT

Within 3 months =EARN 562,875 666,107

4 to 12 months mE+_EAR 3,430 14,568

Over 1 year —&EE 19,876 21,888

586,181 702,563

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts of FrERIBEYHASEHIE At AE

the Group's trade payables are considered to be a reasonable BEMESHNENREERGEAH
approximation of fair value. RABEESEES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. HhFEHIERESTIER

2024 2023
—E-NE ==

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AREBTT

Rental payables FE{TFE & 23,108 37,562
Other tax payables HAh & RIE 7,389 39,810
Deposits from suppliers HEmZE 158,508 157,738
Construction fee payables FETIREE 39,776 76,627
Accrued salaries and bonuses FE st £ &TEAL 43,174 44,097
Accrued interest FEsHF] B 2,885 4,767
Other payables and accruals HiERIERESTIER 330,416 317,286
Note

B 5 605,256 677,887
Note: All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts of MisF : FRERIEHNAEERIE > A4
the Group's other payables are considered to be a reasonable EEHEMEMREBENRIERSR

approximation of fair value. REANREBEGERE-

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. HHER

2024 2023
—E-NE B =4

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTT

Contract liabilities arising from advances EXBBEWRE R TEMRB
received from customers sH8aE 591,111 600,991
Provision for loyalty point programme BB EGT B 13,197 14,718
604,308 615,709
Receiving advances from a customer before the Group transfers the FEALEEEEBEAES R RE Z A
related goods or services will give rise to contract liabilities at the W ENBNFIBES NG E
commencement of a contract. EEaNaE-e
All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as revenue FrESNEaEEEN —FERNESDA
within one year. I % o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

27. BEIRITER
2024
—E-MF

RMB'000
ARBFT

2023

RMB'000
ARST T

Current BN HA
Secured bank loans denominated MEFsHEN AR
in RM (note c) IRITER (FdsEe) 120,075 70,728
Secured bank loans denominated UAREHERN
in RMB BIRRIRITTER 100,000 S
Secured bank loans denominated #ETT (FB7)) sHER
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") BIRFIRTTER - 90,622
220,075 161,350
Non-current JEEPHA
Secured bank loans denominated in HK$ AT HENBIERFIRITER - 2,190,877
Secured bank loans denominated AR ENE T
in RMB RITEMR 2,320,000 =
Secured bank loans denominated M ESTENEIRF
in RM (note c) IRITER (Fd5Ec) 270,421 139,687
2,590,421 2,330,564
2,810,496 2,491,914

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group's bank loans were
repayable as follows:

RN_EBE_NFERZEBEZ=F+"A13

=t+—H AEEMNRTEREAN

THHAERE -
2024
—ENE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Carrying amount repayable FEEENIREE
- Within one year or on demand ——FRIFER 220,075 161,350
- In the second year —5%_ 370,421 2,252,453
- In the third to fifth years, inclusive —B=FEFEHE (BHEEEME) 2,220,000 78,111
Total carrying amount RME4EE 2,810,496 2,491,914
Less: P
- Amount due within one year ——FERNE N EE (220,075) (161,350)
Carrying amount shown under non-current  JESRENEEIE FHRAIEREE
liabilities 2,590,421 2,330,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZE_Z_UFE+_B=+—HI-FE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Banks' credit facilities amounting to RMB102,367,000 (2023:
RMB23,123,000) had not been utilised as at 31 December 2024.

(b) As at 31 December 2024, the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group's investment property, which
had an aggregate carrying value of RMB523,711,000 (2023:
RMB544,734,000) (note 12);

(if) mortgages over the Group's buildings, which had a net
carrying value of approximately RMB1,326,166,000 (2023:
RMB1,370,590,000) (note 11);

(ii1) mortgages over the Group's leasehold land, which
had an aggregate carrying value of approximately
RMB305,646,000 (2023: RMB318,494,000) (note 13(a));
and

(iv) the pledge of trade receivables of RMB412,279,000
(2023: RMB207,850,000) and unrealised receivables of
RMB103,746,000 (2023: RMB78,918,000) which will be due
within 48 months (note 20).

As at 31 December 2024, items (i), (ii) and (iii) are provided

to secure the Group's bank loans denominated in RMB (2023:

HK$), and item (iv) is provided to secure the Group's bank loans

denominated in RM.

(0) Pinnacle Yields was incorporated on 15 May 2024 as a special

purpose vehicle for the sole purpose of undertaking the Sukuk
Wakalah Asset-backed Medium Term Notes Programme amounted
up to RM1,000,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,620,000,000) (the
"Sukuk") which involve the purchase from Parkson Credit from
time to time of the loans and receivables meeting certain pre-
determined eligibility criteria. The purchase of the loans and
receivables were funded by the proceeds from the issuance of
Sukuk by Pinnacle Yields.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%

27.

JE-I- :%\ ﬁE '?i- g rtr“'A" (n\g)

PH5E -

(a) RITEERE AK102,367,0007T
(Z=—=%F: AR 123,123,000
TTRIENE+—_BA=+—

HiE kB H

(0) W_E_WE+_-_B=+—H"
AEEMWIRTERRUTEEE
HIF

0) K%@&ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ&#ﬁ’
HEEBEEAARE
523,711,00070 (Z&E - =
F 1 AR ¥E544,734,0007T)
(MEE12) 5

(ii) NEEEFHIKE
EEE@{E?%“U)\E“A%
1,326,166,00070 (ZZ - =
& 1 AR #1,370,590,0007T)

(fFzE1) 5
(i) AEBREIMpYIKE
HIEFBEANARE

305,646,00070 (Z & - =
F 1 AR %5318,494,0007T)
(MFsE13(0)) 5 K2

(iv) Aﬁmmz 279,0007%
(ZE2EZ=F: AR
207,850,0007T) BIFEWR & 57
RIE K A R #5103,746,000
T(CTEZ=ZF: AR
78,918,0007T) A9 K 415 fE
W IE (B rt4sf@ B W E
HR) O EE R (f95E20) ©

A—E_NWE+"B=+—H">
EEG) ()& ERBIEARE
BEUARE (ZTE2EZ=F ' B
FHEMIRITERWNIRR ; RIEE
(VEREIEA AR ER UMNT ST
BEIRITTERMIEF

(c) Pinnacle Yieldsit® — & _M&EH
B+hABsEMMILAR%E
MAB HE—BHENAERES
#1,000,000,000M F4F (FBE R
AR #1,620,000,0007T) BISukuk
WakalahZB EX PR E T2
(TSukukl) » E 9 KA EME
Parkson CreditflEBER & B THETE
EEREENER R EWTIE
BEERMERTIEBEBNESRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE (B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

(continued)

The Sukuk is constituted by a trust deed dated 27 November 2024
made between Pinnacle Yields and the Trustee for the holders of
the Sukuk.

During the year, Pinnacle Yields issued first tranch of Sukuk
amounting RM273,772,000 (equivalent to RMB443,483,000), out
of which RM68,443,000 (equivalent to RMB110,871,000) were
subscribed by Parkson Credit.

The main features of the Sukuk are as follows:

(i) The maximum issue size of the RM1,000,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,620,000,000) Sukuk consists of a
multiple series of Class A and Class B;

(i) All Sukuk under first tranche were issued at par and have
maturity tenures ranging from 2 to 5 years;

(iii) As at 31 December 2024, the Class A Sukuk bears effective
profit rates of 6.24% per annum, payable monthly in
arrears with the last profit payment to be made on the
respective maturity dates; and

(iv) As at 31 December 2024, the Class B Sukuk bears effective
profit rates of 70% per annum, payable monthly in arrears
with the last profit payment to be made on the respective
maturity dates.

The Sukuk is secured against the following:
(i) By way of first fixed and floating charge of all its present

and future assets of Pinnacle Yields;

(i) By way of first assignment of all its present and future
rights, titles, benefits and interests in and all benefits and
all other revenue or income of Pinnacle Yields; and

27. TEIRITER (@)
W (@)

()

()

SukukJ5 HPinnacle YieldsE2525E A
ASukukMIF B ASTIIHEAZE
“WE+—B -+t AMEER
KIFTAEAY

PREE RN > Pinnacle YieldsZE{T5
—HASukuk > & BB #3273,772,000%%
F4F (FBE R AR #443,483,000
7T) » H 68,443,000k 45 (B
7 AR 1110,871,0007%) HParkson
CreditsR B8 o

SukukBY EEHFEEMTE ¢

0] SukukM &R KETE
1,000,000,000MA 545 (1B
AR #1,620,000,0007T)
A RBEZE R4
B s

(i) F—HF B SukukgL |
BEE17 BIHAESH N F2
E54E

(i) RZIE_NME+ A
=+—H > AfBSukukM &
PREEF) R £6.24% B
—HAFEI R B N R BIHA
HEZASZMY;, &

vy WIZZ2EZOFE+A
=—+—HBfESukukpI g
BREFBEER70% &E
—HAFE SR BAE R & EIHA
HiZzBXZfte

SukukIA 3B IBEAIKIR

(i) HE—EE R EHRL S
=, > #5CPinnacle YieldsZ
FIBIRERAKREE ;

(i) DEREESN  HiEH
#APinnacle YieldsZ Fr B IR
B R ZRBER PR AR
H) 21 e i w5 0 LA K Pinnacle
YieldsZ Fr B Fl & &P B
Hmsi WA ; &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

27.  INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued) 27. s EIRITER @
Notes: (continued) MIsE @ (58
(c) (continued) (c) (€))
(i) By way of a first assignment of all its present and future (i) MUEREEZESN EHEH
right assigned to the trustee. BEETRFEAZMBER
BF Ko SR SR AR
28. ISSUED CAPITAL 28. BRITRA
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
=gl 4= mfE
'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T TAET ARBTT
Authorised: 3T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each SREEOETNEER 7,500,000 150,000 156,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE:
As at 1 January 2023, RZE_=F—-A—H"
31 December 2023, “E-=F4+"H1
1 January 2024 and =+—[-ZE-m&E
31 December 2024 —A—-BR-E-ImE
+ZA=+—H 2,634,532 52,691 55477
No transactions occurred in the Company's issued share capital BHE_ZWGER-E_-F+=
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. B=+—HIFE AR BE%1T

AR EELERS o
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 120 of the consolidated
financial statements.

(a)

(b)

PRC reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and requlations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's joint venture which is established in the PRC
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted
to use.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, Sino-
foreign joint venture companies registered in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage, as approved by
the board of directors, of their profit after income tax, as
determined in accordance with PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to the reserve fund, the enterprise expansion
fund and the employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds
are restricted to use.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of
the wholly-owned foreign enterprises ("WOFEs") registered
in the PRC is required to transfer not less than 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC (the "PRC GAAP"),
to the reserve funds, until the balance of the funds reaches
50% of the registered capital of that company. WOFEs
registered in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage, as approved by the board of directors, of their
profit after income tax to the employee bonus and welfare
fund. These funds are restricted to use.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
PRC domestic companies are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after income tax, as determined in accordance
with the PRC GAAP, to the statutory common reserve, until
the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, the statutory common reserve
may be used to offset against the accumulated losses, if
any.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve represented the fair value
adjustments to the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and lease prepayments which
were already owned by the Group before the acquisition
of the remaining 44% equity interest in Parkson Retalil
Development Co., Ltd. in 2006.

29.

f#fE

rEBXAFERBEFENEES
BREREHENGEYHTRES
0BEMFEERmEEH K-

(a)

(b)

FEARE
RIEPINEERENERZE
BRGER  EPEIR IR A EE
B2t XeRBoFEE
ERFIBENFEES-

IRFRRPELER AR 10
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ATEFGHENBERT R
BB g sHRR AR R ER
FIEMENBZE—EED
BRENMET - CEERES
MR B ETEAL R @R B 5 o 5%
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RIBHEBRBEERERER
PRAHEFEMANESINEREE
(MhEBETE) BRRE
REAREFZER (THREA
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HERBAE 100 B E AR
& BERSEHEIZAT
SE M & 250002 LE o PR EEE
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B EHEZ—TEDLEEBEAR
BT KRENEE ZEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  30. ZASABMFERRE

Information about the statement of financial position of the KABR ZE_NERZZT =
Company as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

+ZR=+—BABMBIKRERN

BRI
2024 2023
—E-MF 2=
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR T IT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ABNKRE 2,074,380 2,187,436
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Prepayments and other receivables FETRVIE R A E R T IE 2,506 2,490
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEFEY 11,475 8,552
13,981 11,042
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Other payables and accruals Hh e RIBERESTIEE 2,655 5,776
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRTTEMR 100,000 90,622
102,655 96,398
Net current liabilities B EFEE (88.674) (85,356)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #% EiR Rei& @& 1,985,706 2,102,080
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHERE
Interest-bearing bank loans HREIRITEM 2,320,000 2,190,877
NET LIABILITIES BEFE (334,294) (88,797)
EQUITY bi g
Issued capital BEITRA 55,477 55,477
Reserves (note) #E (M5 (389,771) (144,274)
CAPITAL DEFICIT BSR4 (334,294) (88,797)

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem

Juliana Cheng San San

Director Director
B EEER 5 I 3
EE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 30. ZAATBMBRRER (&)
(continued)

Note: MasE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: KABMBEBREWNT :
Retained
earnings/
Exchange (Accumulated
reserve losses) Total
REEFH
ER#E (RETE18) =1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABEETIT AEBEETIT ABEETIT
As at 1 January 2023 RIE-_=%—H—H (404,125) 469,839 65,714
Total comprehensive expense FELX>ERZERE
for the year (12,997) (170,646) (183,643)
Dividend paid BURE - (26,345) (26,345)
As at 31 December 2023 BNZE—=
+-B=+—H (417,122) 272,848 (144,274)
Total comprehensive expense FE>ERZEE
for the year (3,409) (189,398) (192,807)
Dividend paid BEMRE = (52,690) (52,690)
As at 31 December 2024 RZZE_OE
+-B=+—H (420,531) 30,760 (389,771)
31. COMMITMENTS 31. K
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as at 31 (a) REEBR _ZE_NEKR_Z
December 2024 and 2023: “ZE+”"BA=+—HBU
TEARKIE

2024 2023
—E-ME TRT=4F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRT AREBTRE

Contracted, but not provided for: B4 BXRER -
- Construction in progress and —ERIEREEMERE
leasehold improvement 46 7,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

31.  COMMITMENTS (continued) 31, KiE @)

(b) The Group has two (2023: three) lease contracts that (b) R_EBE_NME+_-_A=+—
have not yet commenced as at 31 December 2024. The H xXEBGTAEMMG (ZE
future lease payments for these non-cancellable lease T =% =) MkREENE
contracts are nil (2023: RMB105,000) due within one year, BN -ZEARATREIHSELY
RMB81,638,000 (2023: RMB59,044,000) due in the second R—ERN-BF_EFHE (B
to fifth years, inclusive, and RMB515,692,000 (2023: EEEMF) REFRIEN
RMB550,370,000) due after five years. KKBENMNTDIAEE (T

— =% AR¥105,0007T)
AR 1881,638,00070 (2=
F : AR ¥559,044,0007T) & A
R #5515,692,0007C (Z & _=
£ AR #550,370,0007T) °

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. FAMKA RSB
The Group's related parties include its associates and a joint AEBMB L EREEBRERT K—
venture, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries and the holding company XeErE - KERNWB AT A&
of the Group and key management personnel. MBABKRIER AU EEERE
=K
Details of the transactions between the Group and its related AEBHAHRBK S B 5N ER
parties are summarised below. T o
32.1 The Group had the following significant transactions with 321 FRAEEHEBEEKSETH
related parties during the year: BEARZWT .

2024 2023
—E_NE ==

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T

Interest income T B A (i) 9,794 13,713
Property management expenses MEEIEEY (i) 10,161 9,576
Consultancy income SN (iif) 1,321 1,321
Royalty expenses S ERY (iv) 1,500 1,253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
32.1 Notes: (continued)

(1)

(iif)

(iv)

The interest income is received or receivable from Parkson
Newcore, an associate of the Group. The interest income
is resulted from the finance lease which is leased out
from Shanghai Honggiao Parkson Development Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group.

The property management expenses are paid or payable to
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.,
an associate of the Group. The property management fee
was charged according to the underlying contract.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the consultancy
income is received or receivable from Parkson Newcore,
an associate of the Group, amounting to RMB1,321,000
(2023: RMB1,321,000). The consultancy income is
determined according to the underlying contracts.

The royalty expenses are paid or payable to Parkson
Services Pte. Ltd., a fellow subsidiary of the Group, for the
Group's entitlement to use the "Parkson” trademark in the
PRC.

32. RAEEAAR
32,1 BiEE:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

7 (@)

(&)

HEBBABBEEREE
AE) BB F YA S
WERY R IE © Z A S A TS
HAEER—RWBEAE L
BIUBEEBBEARAT
HHRMEBEMESE

MEEERZRHENE
N FEEER-—RPEQT
EBNEEHYEEERER
RABPRIBE - YEEE
BHIREAER S AIIEL

HE_Z_ME+_A4
=+—HIEEE BB
FEWAEBBE AT BB
MEIBAIEARAB AR
#1,321,0007c (Z &2 - =
F : AR%1,321,0007T) °
WA T IRBERAEH
BT

TR AERERRAF
B 5 T B P A T AT
NENAER—KE RN
J& A BParkson Services Pte.
Ltd. BYFRIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

VA=PAN
N 3

AT R R IEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

32.1

32.2

Notes: (continued)

The royalty expenses paid or payable to a fellow subsidiary
of the Group constitute connected transaction and
continuing connection transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, as this continuing
connected transaction represent less than 0.1% of
the relevant percentage ratios, pursuant to paragraph
14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, this continuing connected
transaction is exempted from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders' approval
requirements.

The consultancy income received or receivable from an
associate of the Group, the property management expenses
payable to an associate of the Group, and the interest
income generated from an associate of the Group do not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management of the Group are members of the board
of directors, as well as members of the "management
board" of the parent company. Key management personnel
remuneration includes the following expenses:

32.

RS R (8

32.1

32.2

PiaE o (48

ENRESTFEAER KA
ZMB AT RS
RRER G RIFERERS
(EERETHRAUE+MHE
AZ) c AT BRZEBERFE
RIERXSWMEET DX
E720.1% IR3E EHREE
14A.76(1)(a)E% > SZIBISIERE B
REAERGETHR - EES
B AERBIUREHER
o

FEB-RBEQATENH
AR B A BN S EE
—XBERENYEEER
X RAER—-REE QT
EERF] B WAL 45 Bl R
BRBUAFBEAERS (E&
R EDHRAE+HAZ) o

FEEEAS M
AEENTIEZEEERES
B TRERETEER
Eg NRE-TE2EEAER
HMEEUTER !

2024 2023
—E_mE —EF=
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBEF T
Fees wWE 1,314 1,296
Other emoluments: HMEE
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e R TEA R EfhER]
other benefits 9,418 9,396
10,732 10,692
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had non-cash increase of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of RMB959,828,000 (2023: decrease
of RMB13,874,000) and RMB934,501,000 (2023: decrease of
RMB42,830,000), respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
buildings for department stores.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing
activities can be classified as follows:

4= AN
whk 3

33. FEEREXRS
FROAEEEHEEEETFHE
ZHNEEREERTEESENIF
IR &1 1045 5 A A R 959,828,000
T(ZTE_=ZF AL AR
13,874,00070) Mz AR #934,501,000
T(ZE_ZF . ALARK

42,830,0007T) ©

34. EXBMEGINEEHIR

AERELTERBEIINEGEE
BIDERAT

Accrued
interest
Interest- included in
bearing Lease other payables
bank loans liabilities and accruals
5t AHA
FE{FTRRIE R
H =) FEstIER /Y
RITE™R HE&R FEFIE fst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TT AR¥Tr AR®TR ARETR®
1 January 2024 —Z¥-_mE—-B—H 2,491,914 3,017,563 4,767 5,514,244
Changes from financing cash flows RERERED 230,696 (731,604) (184,266) (685,174)
Non-cash: FERE
- Entering into new leases —s]iUMAE - 38,354 - 38,354
- Increase from lease modification - HEBHRKRIEEEN
and termination 12 - 896,013 - 896,013
- Exchange adjustments —ERBFE 87,886 134 - 88,020
- Interest expense —FEH% - 269,934 182,384 452,318
31 December 2024 “ECNE+ZA=+—H 2,810,496 3,490,394 2,885 6,303,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

34.

35.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

34.

EXERMEIINERHER

(&)

Accrued
interest
Interest- included in
bearing Lease  other payables
bank loans liabilities and accruals
5t AEAt
5 E
RITEM HE&RE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETET
1 January 2023 —2-=5—-H8-H 2,529,932 3,499,654 5,137 6,034,723
Changes from financing cash flows MERESTER (66,034) (736,886) (195,568) (998,488)
Non-cash: FRE
- Entering into new leases —sJUMHEE S 72,755 S 72,755
- Decrease from lease modification —-HEBMRREEEN
and termination B - (117,620) - (117,620)
- Exchange adjustments —EREE 28,016 2,035 S 30,051
- Interest expense —MER% = 297,625 195,198 492,823
31 December 2023 “®B-=#+"A=+-H 2491914 3,017,563 4,767 5,514,244
ZS TN=1
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35, HERREERAAEBEHS

MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing
the Group's short to medium term cash flows by minimising its
exposure to financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.

There has been no change to the types of the Group's exposure in
respect of financial instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35.

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.1

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

4= AN
whk 3

AR IIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

MBEABEERAABESE

(&)

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

35.1

THEERARER
FREMBRNEREIRE
BEHETIENNERMEER
THEEERH !

2024 2023
—E-NF 2=

RMB'000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARBTT

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: b N
THEE
Trade receivables FEW B 5 =1a 1,043,523 681,132
Financial assets included in other s A E M E W RIS
receivables TREE 448,032 415,355
Financial assets included in other assets sTAEMBENSREE 55,369 232,646
Restricted cash ZIRHIRE 63,999 100,191
Time deposits THER 35,377 43,765
Cash and bank balances HE RIBITAER 1,466,508 1,583,414
3,112,808 3,056,503
Financial assets at fair value: BRREEFEZH
Financial assets at fair value through BAREBEFEEEEH)
profit or loss FFABEmZEMEE 66,685 57,540
3,179,493 3,114,043
Financial liabilities AR
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: BT Py K5 B2
I=F/- N
Trade payables FE(TE S akE 586,181 702,563
Financial liabilities included in other ST A HAMAEI FRIEH
payables Eiy =K 111,562 168,222
Interest-bearing bank loans SHRIRITE®R 2,810,496 2,491,914
Lease liabilities GEN =K 3,490,394 3,017,563
6,998,633 6,380,262
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's
exposures to currency risk arise from its debt financing
denominated in HK$ and USS$, other than the units'
functional currencies.

Since the Group mainly engages in the operation of
department stores in the PRC and provision of credit
services in Malaysia, the transactional currency exposure
arising from sales or purchases in currencies other than
RMB and RM has an immaterial impact on the Group's
(loss)/profit after tax and equity.

35.

MBEABEERAANBESE

(&)
35.2

b1 s L B

SN ERIEEM T ANAR
BEIAKRRERERINE
EXEFHMELERSHHER
%o AEEEEHNEEEEK
B H BT G LUSMNEY
BITRETHENEHHE -

HRAEEETBRREEEER
B BREERIEREER
MEERT HEEUAAR
B ME R LUNE B EITRIH
EUNRBENRZEEARYE
AEERE (BE) FBEK
BmEEIKe

2024 —E-mE
HK$ us$
AT E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETr
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 2,496 26,880
Net exposure arising from recognised assets ERERDEEMBEMESE
and liabilities B f& Pz % 2B 2,496 26,880
2023 —E" =
HK$ us$
BT ETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTFT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 8,279 19,243
Financial liabilities included in other payables &t A EL fth F& T FRIEHY
Bt =R (4,767) S
Interest-bearing bank loans SHEIRITER (2,281,499) =
Lease liabilities HE&E - (52,636)
Net exposure arising from recognised assets EHEREE R BEAESL
and liabilities 89 /2 e 5 KB (2,277,987) (33,393)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35.
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)

MBEABEERAABESE
(48)
35.2 SMERBE (8)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 to a reasonably possible change
in the HK$ and US$ exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's equity (due to the translation
of the operating results and financial position of each
subsidiary with functional currencies other than RMB into
the presentation currency of RMB used for the consolidated
financial statements of the Group).

THREJMAAEhE S
FA8 R-T_MOFEKR=
T_-HF+-R=+—H=%F
SEEDHBETRETER
BRI SE S IEEEHIBURKE (F
RERWBLBMNEERE
KM BRRERHARB U
SIYEEBMBDAERLET
EHMBHREZIIFMAHAR
) o

Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) in (Decrease) in
Sensitivity rate profit or loss equity
b=k g
BKE  EmGRA) s G
% RMB'000 RMB'000
EE= ARBTT ARBTFT
2024 —ENE
HK$ BT 5% 94 94
Us$ ETT 5% 1,008 1,008
2023 S——
HK$ BT 500 (85,425) (85,425)
us$ E7T 500 722 722

The same 9% depreciation in the group entities' functional
currencies against the respective foreign currencies would
have the same magnitude on the Group's profit for the year
and equity but of opposite effect.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the
year depending on the volume of overseas transactions.
Nevertheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group's exposure to foreign currency
risk.

EEERNEEB BRI
BNMERRBEDLEERE Y
7 £ B BY 6 P A R 1
EHERREETS RERBE
@O

R E g R T FERNBEI
RBBEMAFTRE -EEWN
It EF RS R RERE
EBPTAERIMNE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e ERRMEE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35.
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing bank loans with
floating interest rates.

The Group manages interest rate risk by monitoring its
interest rate profile as set out below. The Group is exposed
to changes in market interest rates on its bank borrowings,
which are at variable rates.

The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings at the
end of the reporting period were as follows:

2024
—E_MmE

Effective
interest rate
BRME
Variable rate borrowings: AR REE
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRTTEM 6.26%

MBEABEERAANBESE

(&)

353 FIEEE
MERERESMTEANAR
BEHIREREATHHX
S2EaMELERIOBEREAE
Ble AEEARERTERE
FEMRE BIRITEM

AEBEBBEE TXHEM
MRBESLUEEBF KA &
EEHETEEMAETS
FlxgsE > ILEEEZT

BRI B

RIS AEEEENE
BRI T

2023
—F°=

Effective
interest rate

RS

RMB'000
AREBTT

RMB'000
ARBT T

2,810,496 8.05% 2,491,914

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's
profit after income tax for the year and equity to a possible
change in interest rates with effect from the beginning of
the year. This sensitivity analysis is provided internally to key
management personnel.

2024
—EWE

(Decrease)/
Increase in

profit or loss
# (AL)

/Y&
RMB'000
ARETT

Interest rate: FE
Increase by 5 basis point I Ns{E & 2Y (1,054)
Decrease by 5 basis point B 28 B 1,054

TERRBTEBFERFREF
MR R s W F AR
BIREF RE BRI - 288
RESWBRARESSEEE

BABRMH
2023
_E=F

(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase in Increase in Increase in
equity profit or loss equity
e (AL) Bm (A1) #m (i)
/1 /12 /18m
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFRT ARETT ARETT
(1,054) (935) (935)
1,054 935 935

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents management's assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the next
twelve month period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4= AN
whk 3

AR IIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.3

35.4

Interest rate risk (continued)

The calculations are based on a change in average market
interest rates for each period, and the financial instruments
held at the end of each reporting period that are sensitive
to changes in interest rates. All other variables are held
constant. The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
has been prepared on the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group trades on credit only with third parties
who have an established trading history with
the Group and have no history of default. It is
the Group's policy that new customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. Concentrations of credit risk
are managed by analysis by customer/counterparty.
There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the customer bases of
the Group's trade receivables are widely dispersed.
Further details are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

35. HBEAREERAABESE

(&)

35.3

35.4

FIEEAR (8

AR ELERSHETY
IS BB LR RS
HA K5 B R B R
BHERMTEET - FRAR
MBRRZFTR - RE_F
THHERZEZ=F+"H
S+—BIEENMBERE
MERED A — R
o

EERE
FEERBREEMIAENRS
HFAARERBETHMIAZ
BRETHERE AEER
RMFBFRRBER - S EE X
ENEERBRETERENH
EEBERTAZERAREN
58

()  ERESHIE
AEBERAEHEH
EHXZ B EHE
RHZBEBHNE=ZRHE
TRIER S - REX
EEMNKEK BRE
BRERXSPIHE
EFWERBNKRT -EH
SERBHBRER
ROBFHOMER
ANEBEIKE SIS
BEEZDE &
BEAEREERMK &
— T HBENEESY
BRI EE200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.4 Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables, time deposits and cash and cash
equivalent. In order to minimise the credit risk of
other receivables, management has designated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. The management would make
periodic collective and individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience
and current external information and adjusted
to reflect probability-weighted forward-looking
information, including the default rate where
the relevant debtors operates. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, certain
sundry debtors failed to settle the advances which
constituted a default event. Accordingly, ECL is
changed to be measured by lifetime ECL. The gross
balance of other receivables and the corresponding
ECL of RMB232,000 and RMB11,000 (2023:
RMB2,130,000 and RMB206,000), respectively, were
then reclassified from stage 1 to stage 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.4 Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Other financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

Certain other receivables which were defaulted by
the sundry debtors for more than 365 days. In the
opinion of the directors, these advances were credit-
impaired. The gross balance of other receivables
and the corresponding ECL of RMB295,000 and
RMB25,000 (2023: RMB609,000 and RMB99,000),
respectively, were then reclassified from stage 1 to
stage 3, and RMB708,000 and RMB354,000 (2023:
RMB715,000 and RMB357,000), respectively, were
then reclassified from stage 2 to stage 3.

In the opinion of the directors, risk of default of
other receivables which were defaulted by the
sundry debtors in prior years if settled during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is low
after considering the recovered amounts. ECL will
then change to 12-month ECL accordingly. There
was no such settlement occurred during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, hence no
reclassification between stage 3 and stage 1.

35. HBEAREERAABESE

(&)

354 fEERAR (@

(i)

B BRH

e FEE (#8)
ETHEHMEKRRIER
HEEERAHEXE
B65H c EERBA &
ZHEWBFEBEHIREE
BB - HfhE W= IE 48
FREE MR AEENTERE
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TR ANR®250007T
—E=ZF AR
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P ER > ’e N R 18708,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.4 Credit risk (continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

The credit risks on pledged time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are considered to be
insignificant because the counterparties are banks/
financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

35.5 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of interest-bearing bank loans and lease liabilities. 13%
(2023: 17%) of the Group's lease liabilities and interest-
bearing bank loans would mature in less than one year as at
31 December 2024 based the maturity profile. The directors
have reviewed the Group's liquidity position, working capital
and capital expenditure requirements and determined that
the Group has no significant liquidity risk.

Analysed below is the Group's remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31 December
2024. When the creditor has a choice of when the liability
is settled, the liability is included on the basis of the earliest
date on when the Group can be required to pay. Where the
settlement of the liability is in instalments, each instalment
is allocated to the earliest period in which the Group is
committed to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)
35.5 Liquidity risk (continued)

R ERARMIEE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE_ZT-NF+-"FA=+—HItFE

35. Eﬁ?;!illﬁ““ﬁ&’&ﬁ%fﬁ%"r%
(#&

35.5

REBEZEARE (@

35.6

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

TXHNEWEBHBDATHE
REREENARFTRESRR

=
=°

Over
1 year but Total
within Over  undiscounted Carrying
Within 1 year 5 years 5 years amount Discount amount
—FHE
—ENR EEMUA EEME  KIFRAHE g REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEBTR ARETrn ARETx AEETR ARBTR AERETR®
2024 —E_mE
Interest-bearing bank loans 5t BIR{TEM 343,148 2,759,536 - 3,102,684 (292,188) 2,810,496
Lease liabilities HEaE 762,650 1,938,007 2,623,996 5324653  (1,834259) 3,490,394
Trade payables ENEZHE 586,181 - = 586,181 - 586,181
Financial liabilities included in 5t A E A FE(TFRIBAY
other payables THEE 111,562 - - 111,562 - 111,562
1,803,541 4,697,543 2,623,996 9125080  (2,126447) 6,998,633
2023 —B_=f
Interest-bearing bank loans T EIRTER 342,896 2,344,635 5 2,687,531 (195,617) 2,491,914
Lease liabilities HEAE 890,288 1,885,924 1,652,018 4,428,230 (1,410,667) 3,017,563
Trade payables BNEZHNE 702,563 5 5 702,563 5 702,563
Financial liabilities included in 5T A EL At (3 FRIERY
other payables B ) =X 168,222 5 5 168,222 5 168,222
2,103,969 4,230,559 1,652,018 7,986,546 (1,606,284) 6,380,262
The Group considers expected cash flows from financial AEBIGEAREERGES
assets in assessing and managing liquidity risk, in particular, RiERaeZEREBEEMmEE
its cash resources and other liquid assets that readily WNiEstiIRem= S Al 2R Bl
generate cash. The Group's existing cash resources and HEARTNREERRE
other liquid assets significantly exceed the cash outflow trsEE - ~NERRERS
requirements. BERAEMABEEKBB
BREMLER-
Fair value measurements of financial instruments 356 TRMITAMNAREEZE

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped
into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels
are defined based on the observability and significance of
inputs to the measurements, as follows:

° Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities.

REMBIRRERPLURRE
EBEtENERMEERERS
DRANBESHREBTH
AR —ERRENE
AR REE R ABEN
BEAEEEENT

e F-B ASHEER
& R E R TS B
(GRS o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

35.6 Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, and not using

significant unobservable inputs.

° Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the

fair value measurement.

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables, time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these

instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by a director is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The director reports directly to the audit committee. At
each reporting date, the finance manager analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and

determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,

other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BZE_Z _UF+_F=+—HItFE

35.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 35. MBEEGEERAAEBEIE
MEASUREMENTS (continued) (48)
35.6 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 35.6 MTAEMNAREESTE

(continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of time deposits
and interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair value
as a result of the Group's own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank loans as at 31 December 2024 and
2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

€=

EHER R EBIRITERIE
BD HA =B \Eﬁﬁﬁfa{EELL
MEBAEBBEUGR EERRE
KR eHEMN T AN ERE
BRI EAIRFBHARRER
EERE R _E_NE
E_E_=ZF+"_B=+—
H>AEEEAZN EIRTT
ERTEANRBEENAR

BEEMETER/LIEKR-
The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent REBKRENIELTKRE AL
wealth management products issued by banks in the PRC. RERRIBITEITHNIEME
The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted me AEECIFKANRERESM

investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on the market interest rates of instruments
with similar terms and risks.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position on a recurring

zfﬁﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬂttﬂ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁ 1H
ENTRNHBH M
FFLHRENAAEE.

REBHEEEN RSV B
MERURABEFENS

basis are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: MEERAABEZREE
Ell AR I
Significant Weighted
Valuation technique  unobservable average yield
2024 2023 and key inputs inputs rate
HERMRIESH EATTHEZE Ty
ZBCmE CTT=fF AHE BAHE ) §g S
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEBTR ARETR
Level 3 $=E
Financial assets at fair A REBEGEEHEHH
value through profit ABHZEHEE
or loss
- Wealth management ~ — BRI E M 66,685 57,540  Discounted cash flows  Expected yield rate 2.0%
products HEREERE BHREX (2023: 2.7%)
CBZ=F:

2.7%)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: nil).

The higher of the expected yield rate, the higher of the fair
value, and vice versa.

BE_S_ME+ A7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tra MR RN (R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z_UF+"A=+—HIFFE

36.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders' value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, taking into consideration changes
in economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
adjusted debt divided by the capital plus net adjusted debt. The net
adjusted debt includes interest-bearing bank loans, trade payables,
contract liabilities, lease liabilities, and other payables and accruals
less cash and bank balances, time deposits, restricted cash and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was:

36.

BEFXER
AEFREFEENTZERERE
AEEFEEEERTE I URE
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AEBERBRIKREEREALR
B U TRAEHEETHE | K
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ERAFAABENEN KERER
E - BABFARAIKRBEAEKRE

W e

AEBEREFAEREXREEHE
A ZEERTDREHEBEHIRU
EAMERAEFEBABE - KRE
FEGEEARRITEN - BNHE
ZRAGHABE - HEER Hit
B REREEEBRERIRT
HEER S EMEFER RIRFIREREAR
REESHEREREFHHAARRZZE
MEE -

RB|BEHR BEPFEBELRS !

2024 2023
“ENE -

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREETFT ARETIT

Interest-bearing bank loans SHREIRITE®R 2,810,496 2,491,914

Trade payables FET B 5 =IE 586,181 702,563

Other payables and accruals Hh e mIB R ESTIER 605,256 677,887

Contract liabilities aHEE 604,308 615,709

Lease liabilities HE&R 3,490,394 3,017,563

Less: Cash and bank balances B IR RIRTTAARR (1,466,508) (1,583,414)

Time deposits TEHER (35,377) (43,765)

Restricted cash ZRHIRE (63,999) (100,191)
Financial assets at fair value through BANBEt=EHES)

profit or loss SABTZEMEE (66,685) (57,540)

Net adjusted debt KERBFET 6,464,066 5,720,726
Capital: equity attributable to owners BAE  AREFMEBE ARG ER

of the Company 3,015,374 3,244,942

Capital and net adjusted debt BRRERABFES 9,479,440 8,965,668

Net debt to equity ratio BEFEEEIEER 68% 64%

2024 ANNUAL REPORT FE#R%
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